
 

 

 

SYRACUSE CITY 
 

Joint Syracuse City Council/RDA **AMENDED**  

Work Session Notice 

May 28, 2013 – 6:00 p.m.  

 Municipal Building, 1979 W. 1900 S. 

 

 
Notice is hereby given that the Syracuse City Council will meet in a work session on 

Tuesday, May 28, 2013, at 6:00 p.m. in the large conference room of the Municipal 
Building, 1979 W. 1900 S., Syracuse City, Davis County, Utah. The purpose of the work 
session is to discuss/review the following items: 

 
a. Public comments.  

 

b. Presentation from Scott Peppler re: recycling (15 min.) 
 

c. Report from the Mosquito Abatement District. (10 min.) 
 

d. Request to be on the agenda: West Davis Corridor team. (10 min.) 
 

e. Presentation from North Davis Sewer District.  (10 min.)  
 

f. Review Special Meeting Agenda item 3 - Proposed Ordinance 13-06, Amending Title Six, 
Chapter Five of the Syracuse City Code regarding irrigation service. (10 min.)  

 

g. Review Special Meeting Agenda items 4 and 5 – Proposed agreements with Irben 
Development for the purchase of water shares. (10 min.)  

 
 

**The Council will break from the extended work session and convene in the Special 
Business Meeting to hold a public hearing and consider action items three, four, and 
five. The Council will then reconvene in the work session to review items h, i, j, and k.** 

 

h. Discussion regarding RDA areas.  
 

i. Discussion regarding proposed utility rate increases.  
 

j. Discussion regarding the budget.  
 

k. Council business.  
 

~~~~~ 
In compliance with the Americans Disabilities Act, persons needing auxiliary communicative aids and services for this meeting should contact the City Offices at 
801-825-1477 at least 48 hours in advance of the meeting. 

 

CERTIFICATE OF POSTING 

The undersigned, duly appointed City Recorder, does hereby certify that the above notice and agenda was posted within the Syracuse City limits on this 27th  
day of May, 2013 at Syracuse City Hall on the City Hall Notice Board and at http://www.syracuseut.com/.  A copy was also provided to the Standard-Examiner 
on May 27, 2013. 
. 
 
  CASSIE Z. BROWN, CMC 
  SYRACUSE CITY RECORDER 

    



  
 

Agenda Item #b Presentation from Scott Peppler re: recycling. (15 

min)  

 

Factual Summation  

• Please see the attached letter and presentation from Scott Peppler regarding a 

recycling program.  

 

• Please see the attached letters written from students of Legacy Junior High 

regarding recycling.  

  

 

COUNCIL AGENDA 
May 28, 2013 







Opt-Out Recycling Program

for Syracuse Cityfor Syracuse City

Presented By

Scott Peppler

May 28, 2013



WHY OPT OUT 
• NOT A MANDATORY PROGRAM.

• TYPICALLY 75 % OF RESIDENTS
PARTICIPATE IN OPT OUT RECYCLING.

• RESIDENTS WITH MULTIPLE TRASH 
CANS WOULD SAVE MONEY BY HAVING CANS WOULD SAVE MONEY BY HAVING 
A RECYCLING CAN.

• RECYCLING PROLONGS LIFE OF A 
LANDFILL.

• REVENUE SHARING FROM RECYCLING 
PROGRAM.



CITY PROGRAM

• SOLID WASTE IS COMPRISED OF 
GARBAGE, YARD WASTE AND 
RECYCLABLE MATERIALS.

• UTAH CITY’S OVERSEE EFFICIENT • UTAH CITY’S OVERSEE EFFICIENT 
AND EFFECTIVE SOLID WASTE 
COLLECTION PROGRAMS.

• SYRACUSE CITY HAS CONTRACTED 
SERVICES FOR GARBAGE AND YARD 
WASTE ONLY.



Recycling Facts

• EPA REPORTS THAT 65% OF WHAT WE THROW 

AWAY EVERY WEEK COULD BE RECYCLED, 

ONLY 25% IS CURRENTLY MAKING IT INTO 

THE RECYCLING CAN.

• RECYCLING IN SLC AND SALT LAKE COUNTY • RECYCLING IN SLC AND SALT LAKE COUNTY 

HAS INCREASED THE LIFE OF THE LANDFILL 

FROM 25 TO 50 YEARS.

• SINGLE-STREAM RECYCLING HAS GAINED 

POPULARITY BECAUSE OF THE EASE AND 

CONVENIENCE OF ALL RECYCLABLES MIXED 

INTO ONE CAN.   



What Can We Find In The 

Normal  Trash Can?

Paper and Paperboard 

28.5%

Food Scraps 13.9%

Other 3.4% 1. Syracuse City has the 

potential to recycle 

over 50 %  of it trash 

with a residential 

curbside recycling 

program.

2. Syracuse City’s current 

Plastics 12.4%

Metals 9%

Yard Trimmings 13.4%

Glass 4.6%

Wood 6.4%

Rubber, Leather 

&Textiles 8.4%

2. Syracuse City’s current 

yard waste program 

with curbside recycling 

has the potential to 

raise the total landfill 

diversion to 65%.

3. Chart 2010 EPA Data.



PROVO CITY OPT OUT 

PROGRAM
• PROVO STARTED AN OPT IN (SUBSCRIPTION) 

PROGRAM IN AUGUST 2003 THAT GREW TO 4,500 
RESIDENTS IN MAY 2011.

• PROVO CITY COUNCIL APPROVED STARTING AN • PROVO CITY COUNCIL APPROVED STARTING AN 
OPT OUT PROGRAM IN NOVEMBER 2011 AND THE 
NUMBER RECYCLING INCREASED TO 11,500 
RESIDENTS.
– 200 TON PER MONTH DIVERTED FROM LANDFILL

– OVER $90,000 PER YEAR IN SAVINGS TO THE CITY 

• THE MAJORITY OF PROVO CITY RESIDENTS 
WANTED TO RECYCLE, BUT NEVER TOOK THE 
TIME TO OPT IN.



RESIDENTS WITH MULTIPLE GARBAGE CANS

• 2,990 (45%) OF THE  6,667 SYRACUSE 
RESIDENTS WITH A GARBAGE ACCOUNT 
HAVE AT LEAST TWO GARBAGE 
CONTAINERS.CONTAINERS.

• APPROXIMATELY ONE SIXTH (17%) OF 
PROVO CITY’S RESIDENTS HAVE MORE 
THAN ONE GARBAGE CONTAINER.

• OVER 1,500 RESIDENTS WILL PROBABLY 
TURN IN A GARBAGE CONTAINER FOR A 
RECYCLING CONTAINER AND SAVE $2.00-
3.00 PER MONTH.



RECYCLING PROLONGS LIFE OF 

A LANDFILL.

• 1,000 TONS OF RECYCLABLES WOULD BE 

DIVERTED FROM THE LANDFILL, IF 

TWO THIRDS OF THE CITY OPTED OUT.TWO THIRDS OF THE CITY OPTED OUT.

• SITING A NEW LANDFILL IN DAVIS 

COUNTY WILL NOT BE AN ENJOYABLE 

EXPERIENCE.



RECYCLING REVENUE 

SHARING
• RECYCLED MATERIALS HAVE VALUE.

• ROCKY MOUNTAIN RECYCLING IS PAYING 
CITIES IN SALT LAKE AND UTAH COUNTIES 
FOR CITY RECYCLABLES.

• A SIMILAR CITY IN UTAH COUNTY IS • A SIMILAR CITY IN UTAH COUNTY IS 
RECEIVING $10.00 PER TON FROM ROCKY 
MOUNTAIN RECYCLING FOR RECYCLABLES

• THIS REPRESENTS A POTENTIAL OF $10,000 
PER YEAR FOR SYRACUSE CITY.

• PROVO CITY RECEIVED OVER $30,000 LAST 
YEAR.



RECOMMENDATION

• SYRACUSE CITY COUNCIL APPROVES AN 
OPT OUT RECYCLING PROGRAM.

• WITHIN SIX MONTHS, SYRACUSE CITY 
IMPLEMENT AN OPT OUT RECYCLING 
PROGRAM WITH COUNCIL APPROVAL, IF PROGRAM WITH COUNCIL APPROVAL, IF 
MORE THAT HALF OF THE RESIDENTS 
WANT TO PAY FOR RECYCLING 
SERVICES.

• SYRACUSE RESIDENTS HAPPY WITH 
THEIR CURRENT RECYCLING HAULER 
CAN OPT OUT.



Thank You For Your Time! 

I Would Be Pleased To Set Up A Tour Of I Would Be Pleased To Set Up A Tour Of 

The Rocky Mountain Recycling Plant For 

The Mayor, Council And City Staff.















































































































































































































































































































































































































































  
 

Agenda Item #c Report from the Mosquito Abatement District.    

(10 min)  

 

Factual Summation  

• Please direct any questions to Gary Hatch with the Mosquito Abatement District.  

 

• Please see the following letter prompting discussion with the Mosquito 

Abatement District.  

 
Name: Tim Witte 

Email Address: twittes1@yahoo.com 

Subject: Alternative to Mosquito Abatement 

Comment: 

 

Dear Mayor and Council Members, 

 

As I was out and about this evening (3/13/13) enjoying the early spring and doing some yard work, I 

couldn't help notice the dozens of mosquito's harassing and feasting on my children and me. I instantly 

wished that the city would get the mosquito abatement trucks going already. I started to think of how costly 

it must be to pay someone for their time and and the cost of supplies to drive around the entire city spraying 

a chemical that we've been told will not harm humans but still burns if you get a lung full of it. I started 

thinking of my good old days as a young man growing up in Syracuse off of David Street. We loved being 

outside as long as we could. We had mosquito's then just as we do now, but there didn't seem to be as 

many. I remember the beautiful dragonfly's dancing in the sunset in the evenings as well. I remember my 

Dad telling me that in addition to the dragonfly's beauty, they also helped us by eating mosquito's. 

 

I've done enough research to know that the above statement is true. I would like to propose that we stop 

wasting money on mosquito abatement and start utilizing the natural resources that are provided for us. 

Dragonfly's breed in an abundance in Syracuse, however the mosquito abatement chemicals kill them as 

well. If we strategically place dragonfly larva around the city and allow them to take care of the mosquito's, 

we will not only save money but we will also not be putting unnecessary chemicals into the air. 

 

Like I said, dragonfly larva grow abundantly around the area, if we do a little research, we can find ways to 

harvest the larva that can then be transported to specific areas of the city. 

 

Please think outside the box and consider this idea. Thank you for your time. 

 

Sincerely, 

 

Tim Witte. 
  

COUNCIL AGENDA 
May 28, 2013 



  
 

Agenda Item #d Request to be on the agenda: West Davis Corridor 

team. (10 min.)  

 

Factual Summation  

• Please direct any questions to the West Davis Corridor team.  

 

 

COUNCIL AGENDA 
May 28, 2013 



  
 

Agenda Item #e Presentation from North Davis Sewer District.   

(10 min)  

 

Factual Summation  

Last Tuesday, city staff presented the NDSD request to the Syracuse City Council to 

extend the contract with the NDSD. The City Council expressed concerns about the 

length of the extension and asked that a representative of the NDSD come to the meeting 

on the night of May 28 to identify the minimum extension that the NDSD needs for 

current bonding. 

  

• Please see the attached information included in the May 14 Council Meeting 

regarding this agenda item.  

COUNCIL AGENDA 
May 28, 2013 



 

 

 

Mayor  
Jamie Nagle  
 
City Council  
Brian Duncan 
Craig Johnson 
Karianne Lisonbee 
Douglas Peterson  
Larry D. Shingleton 

 

 

 

 

 

 

              
MEMORANDUM 

To: Mayor and City Council  
From: City Attorney, William J. Carlson  
Date: April 15, 2013  
Subject: Revised Expiration of City Contract With North Davis Sewer District 
 

In 2002, Syracuse renewed a contract with the North Davis Sewer 
District (the NDSD) that began in 1955. That renewed contract will expire in 
2031. The NDSD is in the process of refunding several issues of General 
Obligation Bonds that will mature after 2031. Bond rating agencies have asked 
about the expiration date ending before the bond maturation date. If 
unresolved, this issue could affect the NDSD’s favorable bond rating and the 
interest rate available to the NDSD. 

 
The NDSD has asked the Syracuse City Council to approve the attached 

resolution, which will approve an amendment to the 2002 contract. The 
proposed amendment would change the expiration date from 2031 to the latter 
of: 

1. 2062; OR 
2. Five years after the NDSD has fully paid or discharged all bonds; OR 
3. Five years after the NDSD has abandoned or transferred all interest 

in its facilities and improvements; OR 
4. Five years after the facilities and improvements are no longer useful 

in providing sewer service. 
 

Other than the extension, all other terms and conditions of the 2002 
contract will remain the same. Approving the amendment will increase the time 
that Syracuse is obligated to work with the NDSD for sewer services. Denying 
the amendment may affect the NDSD’s bond rating and the interest the 
NDSD (and thus taxpayers) must pay on bonds. 
 

Three Appendices follow: the proposed resolution, the 2002 contract, 
and the NDSD’s proposed Amendment . 

###### 



mwhitaker
Text Box
R13-10

















































  
 

Agenda Item #f Review Special Meeting Agenda Item 3 - 

Proposed Ordinance 13-06, Amending Title Six, 

Chapter Five of the Syracuse City Code regarding 

irrigation service. 

 

Factual Summation  

• Questions may be directed at Public Works Director Robert Whiteley or City 

Attorney Will Carlson.  

• Please see the attached memo, proposed secondary water user notice, and 

proposed Ordinance 13-06.  

  

 

COUNCIL AGENDA 
May 28, 2013 



 

 

 

          
MEMORANDUM 

 
  To: Mayor and City Council  

From: City Attorney, William J. Carlson  
Date: May 28, 2013  

  Subject: Water Conservation Ordinance 
 

 

 

The Davis & Weber Counties Canal Company, the primary supplier to 
Syracuse’  pressurized irrigation (“secondary”) water system, announced that 
2013 water shortages require it to drastically limit water distribution. Customers 
can expect to receive 25% to 40% less water this year than in previous years. 
Since Syracuse operates its own secondary water system, the City has a choice 
in how to impose this reduction on the residents of Syracuse. Even so, the City 
should plan to have only 60% of last year’s water to meet the secondary water 
needs of residents and visitors during this irrigation season. This requires the 
City to promptly implement some form of water conservation. 
 

Traditionally, municipal water conservation efforts have focused on 
prescriptive regulations, such as rationing water for specific uses or requiring 
installation of specific appliances or infrastructure. Recent research suggests 
that market-based policies (charge higher rates for more use and lower rates for 
less use) are the most cost effective way to conserve, while prescriptive 
regulations are better at reaching a specific conservation level. See “Comparing 
price and nonprice approaches to urban water conservation,” Water Resources Research, 
Volume 45, W04301. Since Syracuse has thus far declined to meter secondary 
water, it does not currently have an option of a market-based conservation 
strategy. 
 

At the meeting on May 14, 2013, the City Council expressed interest in 
an ordinance recommended by the St. Johns River Water Management District 
in Florida. This ordinance allows watering two days per week for up to thirty 
minute increments, subject to several exceptions. Four concerns were 
expressed: 

1. Agricultural irrigation needs to be exempt. 
2. Any penalties should only be applicable in drought years. 
3. Moisture detectors on sprinkler systems may be prohibitively 

expensive.  
4. People should be trusted to self regulate without an ordinance. 



 

 

 

Regarding agriculture, in the draft ordinance landscape irrigation is 
defined to exclude “agricultural crops, nursery plants, cemeteries, golf course 
greens, tees, fairways, primary roughs, and vegetation associated with 
recreational areas such as playgrounds, football, baseball and soccer fields.” 
Accordingly, farms will not be regulated by the proposed ordinance. 

 
An enforcement trigger has also been added to the proposed ordinance. 

The proposed ordinance attaches no penalty for watering outside the schedule 
“unless the City Council has passed a resolution declaring a drought.” The 
ordinance allows the Council to pass such a resolution upon recommendation 
of the Public Works Director and limits the life span of the resolution to “the 
end of Daylight Savings Time for that calendar year or passage of a nullifying 
resolution by the City Council.” 

 
Basic research on moisture detectors indicates that costs can be minimal. 

For example, Amazon is selling a Hunter Solar Sync Rain Sensor for about $77. 
 
Finally, whether to regulate secondary water conservation or simply 

educate is a policy decision for the Council to make. Even so, as operators of a 
secondary water system, the City has a duty to ensure that the system operates. 
The City has been informed that its water supply will be substantially lower this 
year than in past years. Failure to take action to conserve water will result in a 
drained and damaged system and substantial expense to the city.  

 
###### 
 

 



 

2013 Secondary Water User Notice 

Syracuse City has been notified by our irrigation water supplier that there are water shortages 

amounting to 25% to 40% this year. This shortage is a result of low snow pack in the high 

mountain elevations during the winter seasons of 2011/12 and 2012/13. Many of the cities in 

this area are responding to this watershed shortage by implementing watering schedules. 

Because our water delivery has been reduced, we request our residential water users in 

Syracuse City to implement water conservation practices by following the schedule, as 

indicated: 

Day of the 

week House Number 

Max. watering 

time / setting 

Monday Odd 20 - 30 min 

Tuesday Even 20 - 30 min 

Wednesday Other 20 - 30 min 

Thursday Odd 20 - 30 min 

Friday Even 20 - 30 min 

Saturday Other 20 - 30 min 

Sunday No watering 0 min 

 

We strongly recommend that good judgment be used when utilizing secondary water. We have 

included some simple considerations that may help us be more responsible in conserving this 

precious resource. 

1. Apply water anytime between 6:00 PM and 10:00 AM when temperatures are lower. 

2. Adjust water sprinklers and spray heads to prevent overspray that is wasted into the 

gutters, streets and storm drains. 

3. Periodically check for leaks in the sprinkler system and make repairs as necessary.  

4. Hose watering should not be left unattended. 

5. Turn off sprinklers during moderate to high winds, during and immediately after 

rainstorm downpours as well as mild rainstorm events lasting more than 20 minutes. 

6. Small garden areas may be supplemented more frequently with water using 

conscientious efforts to remain attentive. 

7. New landscape areas and areas where grass must be established from seed are able to 

water more frequently once approval is obtained from the city in advance. 

 



Ordinance 13-06 1 

An Ordinance Amending Chapter 5 of Title 6 Regarding Irrigation Service 2 

WHEREAS, the state legislature has granted general welfare power to the City Council, 3 

independent, apart from, and in addition to, its specific grants of legislative authority, 4 

which enables the City Council to pass ordinances as are necessary and proper to 5 

provide for the safety, promote the prosperity, improve the peace and good order, 6 

comfort, and convenience of the City and its inhabitants, and for the protection of 7 

property in the City; and 8 

WHEREAS, one of the ways the City Council has exercised its legislative authority is 9 

through the creation of a secondary water system providing for the irrigation and 10 

secondary water needs of the residents of Syracuse; and 11 

WHEREAS, the primary supplier of water to the City secondary water system is Weber & 12 

Davis Counties Canal Company (WDCCC); and 13 

WHEREAS, WDCCC issued a notice on May 1, 2013 that water shortages are inevitable due 14 

to low snow pack in the high mountain elevations during the 2013 winter, the drought 15 

of 2012, the Echo Reservoir Safety of Dams construction, and low reservoir storage 16 

carryovers; and 17 

WHEREAS, in that May 1 notice WDCCC estimated water shortages could be as much as 18 

40% less water than last year for the 180 day outdoor irrigation water season; and 19 

WHEREAS, as the operator of the secondary water system for Syracuse, it behooves the 20 

City Council to implement regulations to address the inevitable water shortages; 21 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF SYRACUSE, 22 

UTAH, Sections 4-05-200 through 4-05-280 of the Syracuse Municipal Code are 23 

hereby enacted as follows: 24 

SECTION 1: 25 

4-05-200  Intent and Purpose. It is the intent and purpose of this Part to implement 26 

procedures that promote water conservation through more efficient landscape 27 

irrigation.  28 

4-05-210 Definitions. For the purposes of this part: 29 



“Landscape irrigation” means the outside watering of plants in a landscape such as 30 

shrubbery, trees, lawns, grass, ground covers, plants, vines, gardens and other 31 

such flora that are situated in such diverse locations as residential areas, public, 32 

commercial, and industrial establishments, and public medians and rights-of-33 

way. “Landscape irrigation” does not include agricultural crops, nursery plants, 34 

cemeteries, golf course greens, tees, fairways, primary roughs, and vegetation 35 

associated with recreational areas such as playgrounds, football, baseball and 36 

soccer fields.  37 

“Non-residential landscape irrigation” means the irrigation of landscape not included 38 

within the definition of “residential landscape irrigation,” such as that 39 

associated with public, commercial and industrial property, common areas not 40 

assigned to a specific unit, and public medians and rights-of-way.  41 

 “Residential landscape irrigation” means the irrigation of landscape associated with 42 

any housing unit having sanitary and kitchen facilities designed to accommodate 43 

one or more residents, including multiple housing units and mobile homes. 44 

4-05-230  Landscape Irrigation Schedules 45 

(1)When Daylight Savings Time is in effect, landscape irrigation should occur 46 

only in accordance with the following irrigation schedule:  47 

(a) Residential landscape irrigation at odd numbered addresses may occur on 48 

Monday and Thursday, but not between 10:00 a.m. and 6:00 p.m.; and  49 

(b) Residential landscape irrigation at even numbered addresses may occur 50 

on Tuesday and Friday, but not between 10:00 a.m. and 6:00 p.m.; and  51 

(c) Non-residential landscape irrigation and residential landscape irrigation at 52 

addresses without a number may occur on Wednesday and Saturday, but 53 

not between 10:00 a.m. and 6:00 p.m.; and  54 

(d) Landscape irrigation should not last more than 30 minutes per irrigation 55 

zone on each day that irrigation occurs.  56 

(2) All landscape irrigation should be limited in amount to only that necessary 57 

to meet landscape needs.  58 

4-05-240  Exceptions to the Landscape Irrigation Schedule. Landscape irrigation 59 

shall be subject to the following irrigation schedule exceptions: 60 



(1) Irrigation using a micro-spray, micro-jet, drip or bubbler irrigation system is 61 

allowed anytime.  62 

(2) Irrigation of new landscape is allowed at any time of day on any day for the 63 

initial 30 days and every other day for the next 30 days for a total of one 60-64 

day period, provided that the irrigation is limited to the minimum amount 65 

necessary for such landscape establishment.  66 

(3)Watering in of chemicals, including insecticides, pesticides, fertilizers, 67 

fungicides, and herbicides, when required by law, the manufacturer, or best 68 

management practices, is allowed at any time of day on any day within 24 69 

hours of application. Watering in of chemicals shall be limited to the amount 70 

required by law, the manufacturer, or best management practices. 71 

(4) Irrigation systems may be operated at any time of day on any day for 72 

maintenance and repair purposes not to exceed 20 minutes per hour per 73 

zone.  74 

(5) Irrigation using a hand-held hose equipped with an automatic shut-off 75 

nozzle is allowed at any time of day on any day.  76 

(6) Discharge of water from a water-to-air air-conditioning unit or other water- 77 

dependent cooling system is not limited.  78 

(7) The use of water from a reclaimed water system is allowed anytime. For the 79 

purpose of this paragraph, a reclaimed water system includes systems in 80 

which the primary source is reclaimed water, which may or may not be 81 

supplemented from another source during peak demand periods.  82 

4-05-250 Additional Regulations. Any person who purchases and installs an automatic 83 

landscape irrigation system must properly install, maintain, and operate 84 

technology that inhibits or interrupts operation of the system during periods of 85 

sufficient moisture.  86 

4-05-260 Declaration of Drought Authorized. The City Council, upon the 87 

recommendation of the Public Works Director, is hereby authorized to pass a 88 

resolution declaring a drought during any irrigation season and to implement 89 

penalties as set forth in section 4-05-290. Any resolution declaring a drought 90 

shall remain in effect until the earlier of the end of Daylight Savings Time for 91 

that calendar year or passage of a nullifying resolution by the City Council. 92 



4-05-270 Variance From Specific Day of the Week Limitations. A variance from the 93 

specific landscape irrigation days or day set forth in Section 4-05-230 may be 94 

granted by the City Manager if strict application of the scheduled days or day 95 

would lead to unreasonable or unfair results in particular instances, provided 96 

that the applicant demonstrates with particularity that compliance with the 97 

scheduled days or day will result in a substantial economic, health or other 98 

hardship on the applicant requesting the variance or those served by the 99 

applicant. Where a contiguous property is larger than one acre, a variance may 100 

be granted hereunder so that each acre may be irrigated on different days or day 101 

than other acres of the property. However, in no event shall a variance allow a 102 

single acre to be irrigated more than two days per week during Daylight Savings 103 

Time.  104 

4-05-280 Enforcement Officals. Law enforcement officials having jurisdiction in the 105 

area governed by this Ordinance are hereby authorized to enforce the 106 

provisions of this Ordinance. In addition, the City Manager may also delegate 107 

enforcement responsibility for this ordinance to other City employees.  108 

4-05-290 Penalties. There shall be no penalty for violating any provision of this 109 

ordinance unless the City Council has passed a resolution declaring a drought in 110 

compliance with section 4-05-260. When such a resolution declaring a drought 111 

is in effect, violation of any provision of this Ordinance is subject to the 112 

following penalties:  113 

(1) First violation per calendar year: Written Warning 114 

(2) Second violation per calendar year: Infraction with a fine of $50.00  115 

(3) Subsequent violation per calendar year: Infraction with a fine of $500.00 116 

A separate offense shall be deemed committed upon each day during or on 117 

which a violation occurs or continues.  118 

SECTION 2. Effective Date. This ordinance shall become effective upon publication. 119 

PASSED BY THE SYRACUSE CITY COUNCIL, STATE OF UTAH, THIS ______ 120 

DAY OF _________________, 2013. 121 

 122 

____________________________________ 123 

Jamie Nagle, Mayor 124 



 125 

_________________________________  126 

 127 

ATTEST:        SEAL 128 

Cassie Brown, City Recorder 129 



  
 

Agenda Item #g Review Special Meeting Agenda items 4 and 5 – 

Proposed agreements with Irben Development for 

the purchase of water shares. (10 min.) 
Factual Summation  

• Any questions regarding this agenda item may be directed at City Attorney Will 

Carlson.  

• Please see the attached memo and executed REPC.  

• Please see the attached “Addendum No. 4” to the Real Estate Purchase Contract.  

• Please see the attached Memorandum of Understanding 

 

  

 

COUNCIL AGENDA 
May 28, 2013 



 

 

 

          
MEMORANDUM 

 
  To: Mayor and City Council  

From: City Attorney, William J. Carlson  
Date: May 28, 2013  

  Subject: South Jensen Park Seller Financing and Water Rights 
 
 

Summary 
 
In January 2012 the City entered an agreement to sell 60.595 acres of 

land directly south of Jensen Park (“South Jensen Park”) to Irben 
Development (“Irben”). That sale had a settlement deadline of October 18, 
2013 and did not include the transfer of any water rights. Irben has asked the 
city to finance the sale over 18 months between next October and April 2015. 
Additionally, Irben plans to develop a residential subdivision on the property, 
which will require Irben to convey water rights to the City as a condition of 
subdivision approval. 

 
Seller Financing 

 
Irben has drafted the attached “Addendum No. 4” to the Real Estate 

Purchase Contract and requests the City Council’s approval. This addendum 
proposes five changes to the contract: 

1. Under the current agreement, payment of $1,969,400 is due in full at 
the settlement date, October 18, 2013. Under this Addendum, Irben 
will make a down payment “at closing” of $527,850.00. There is no 
closing date provided. 

2. Under this addendum, Irben will make three additional payments at 
six month intervals for the remaining $1,441,550.00 owed.  

3. The City’s loan to Irben will be charged 3% simple interest per year. 
Assuming the payments are on schedule, this will amount to 
approximately $43,200.00 in interest over 18 months. 

4. The land would be divided into four horizontal quarter sections 
stacked from south to north. At closing, the southernmost section 
would be transferred to Irben. Upon the first loan payment the next 
section to the north would be transferred, and so on until all 
payments are received and all land transferred. 



 

 

 

5. Irben has until September 18, 2013 to choose this City financing. By 
September 18, both parties must also agree on the form of the 
promissory note. 

 
City staff has three concerns about the proposed addendum: the 

extended time of the contract will extend the time that the city is exposed to 
risk, seller financing will place restrictions on the city’s ability to expend the 
funds as required by law, and the proposed time frame assumes a rate of home 
sales that is historically unsupported for new subdivisions in Syracuse. 

 
First, approving addendum 4 will extend the time that the city is exposed 

to risk. The City entered this real estate purchase contract seventeen months 
ago and is obligated for another five months under the current agreement. 
During that time, the city has been prevented from considering changed 
circumstances, including the improved economy and UDOT’s proposed West 
Davis Corridor route, in deciding what to do with the land. Should addendum 
4 be approved by the City Council, the City will sell land in April 2015 based on 
its estimated value in December 2011. Additionally, during the time that the 
city is financing Irben’s development, it will also be regulating the development 
as the land use authority. This could result in subdivisions being proposed 
under an ultimatum of approving a subdivision or risking the sale of the 
remaining sections of land.  

 
Second, the land in question was purchased by the city with park 

purchase impact fees and so the money from the sale must be used to purchase 
additional park lands. Under state code, the city must spend impact fees 
“within six years of their receipt.” UCA §11-36a-602(2)(a). Unspent impact fees 
plus interest should be refunded to the developer. UCA §11-36a-603. Neither 
statutes nor case law outline the time frame that applies when impact fees are 
spent and then returned to the city years later, which is what is anticipated here. 
If the time frame is six years from original receipt, then the City will be in 
violation as soon as it receives payment for South Jensen Park. If the six year 
time frame is paused while the city has expended the funds and then resumes 
when the funds are returned to the city, then it will be important the City act 
promptly to expend the Park Purchase funds. If the six year time frame restarts 
when spent impact fees are returned, then the city will have six years from the 
first payment for South Jensen Park to spend the funds.  

 
Since the city is selling a large span of park property, it would serve to 

promptly purchase a separate large span of park property. The Seller financing 
will create a span of at least eighteen months between the first payment and 



 

 

 

final payment to the city, which will require the city to either purchase multiple 
smaller land areas or to wait to purchase a large space. This delay increases the 
risk that the City would be in violation of the time restraints on expending 
impact fees. 

 
Third, while Irben anticipates using profits from the sale of properties 

on the earlier sections to fund their payments for later sections, the eighteen 
month time frame would require that homes be built at a rate that is not 
supported historically in Syracuse. This increases the risk to the city that either 
1- the sale of the later sections will fall through, or 2- Irben will return with 
requests for subsequent addendums to further extend the time before payment 
is due.  

 
Since the recession, developers have been cautious in creating 

subdivisions. For example, Trailside Park has proposed subdivision phases of 
approximately ten lots at a time, completing one phase before beginning the 
next. Since 2002, city code has required subdivisions larger than 36 lots be 
planned in subsequent phases, which prevents developers from over 
committing resources before the subdivision can be completed. Even with this 
cap, several subdivisions across the city remain unfinished, the result of 
developers who were more optimistic than the market could support. Irben 
anticipates building approximately 200 homes, or 50 per quarter section. This 
would require Irben to build and sell approximately 150 lots over the course of 
eighteen months, approximately two per week every week. Even with the 
recovering economy, Syracuse has issued building permits for 74 single family 
residences in 2013, which is about 3.5 per week across the entire city. While 
possible, Irben’s projected development is very optimistic. Should Irben fall 
short, the City will either be left holding the bag on the remainder of the 
property, or be asked by Irben to extend the city’s time commitment and risk. 

 
For the above reasons, City Staff urges extreme caution in considering 

whether to approve Addendum 4. 
 

Water Rights 
 
The City serves dual roles as the “Seller” of South Jensen Park without 

water rights and the “Land Use Authority” requiring conveyed water rights as a 
condition of subdivision approval. Irben has asked the city as Seller for help 
providing the water rights to the Land Use Authority. Accordingly, the City 
Attorney has drafted the attached Memorandum of Understanding for the 
Council’s consideration. 



 

 

 

 
Under this Memorandum of Understanding, Irben must convey water 

rights to the Land Use Authority as required by city code. This is a condition of 
subdivision approval. However, for the portion of any proposed subdivision 
that is on South Jensen Park, Irben Development may instead pay the City 
$9,836.07 per acre or part thereof. The city will not deposit any such payment 
in the general fund or park purchase impact fund, but in the Secondary Water 
Operating Fund. If Irben’s proposed subdivision were to develop less than an 
acre of South Jensen Park, it could pay $9,836.07 instead of conveying water 
rights for that portion. On the other end of the spectrum, if Irben’s proposed 
subdivision develops all of South Jensen Park, it could pay $600,000.00 instead 
of conveying water rights for South Jensen Park’s portion of the subdivision. 
Whether it pays or conveys water rights is in the discretion of Irben. 

 
This price is in accordance with the fair market value of water rights at 

Layton Canal Company, the irrigation company that supplies water to the area 
surrounding South Jensen Park. Public Works Director Robert Whiteley has 
determined that Layton Canal water shares are one acre foot per share and are 
currently valued between three and four thousand dollars per share. This MOU 
values the water rights at under $3,300 per acre foot. 

 
Mike Thayne of Irben has disputed the City’s valuation of water shares. 

He indicated that he has purchased some water shares at a lower price and that 
several decades ago, before water rights were conveyed as a condition of 
subdivision approval, water shares were valued under one hundred dollars each. 
Nevertheless, he has agreed to enter this Memorandum of Understanding at 
the price indicated.  

 
The City Council may accept, reject, or amend this Memorandum of 

Understanding. If accepted or amended, it will be forwarded to Irben 
Development for consideration. 

 
Summary & Staff Recommendation 

 
The City Council may accept, reject, or amend Addendum 4 and the 

Water Rights Memorandum of Understanding. If accepted or amended, they 
will be forwarded to Irben Development for consideration. 

 
City Staff recommends extreme caution regarding Addendum 4. 
 
###### 





























 
ADDENDUM NO.  4    

TO 
REAL ESTATE PURCHASE CONTRACT 

 
THIS IS AN [X ] ADDENDUM  [   ] COUNTEROFFER to that REAL ESTATE PURCHASE CONTRACT (the "REPC") with 
an Offer Reference Date of December 22, 2011, including all prior addenda and counteroffers, between IRBEN 
DEVELOPMENT LLC,  as Buyer, and SYRACUSE CITY CORP. as Seller, regarding the Property described in the REPC.   
The following terms are hereby incorporated as part of the REPC: 
 
1. Seller Financing:   If elected by Buyer on or before the Financing and Appraisal Deadline, Seller agrees to provide 
Buyer with Seller financing in the following form: 
 a. Buyer will provide an additional down payment at Closing of $25,000.00, for a total of down payment, including 
earnest money deposit, of $527,850.   
b. Buyer may satisfy the Loan portion of the Purchase Price by executing a Promissory Note, in favor of Seller, in the 
amount of $1,441,550, secured by a First Position Trust Deed.   
 b. The Promissory Note shall provide for three equal payments of principal and interest, due each six (6) months, 
from and after the Closing.   The entire principal balance of the Promissory Note shall be fully paid on or before April 18, 
2015, and may be prepaid in whole or in part at any time.   
 c. Interest will accrue at the rate of 3% per year, simple interest.   
 d. At Closing, one-fourth of the land to be purchased, comprising approximately the southern-most quarter section of 
the land (for purposes of this paragraph, consider the property as if divided into four horizontal quarter sections), will be 
conveyed free of the lien of the Trust Deed.  At the time of each payment, a proportionate amount of the Land (beginning 
with the quarter section immediately north of that quarter section which is conveyed free and clear at Closing, and then 
the quarter section immediately north of that, and finally the northern-most quarter section of the land) will be released 
from the Trust Deed.  .  The parties shall cooperate in good faith to reach mutual agreement on the particular location and 
boundaries of the released portions of land, on the form of the land releases, and on the reservation and priority of 
easements and rights for access and utilities as may be reasonably necessary to protect the security of the Promissory 
Note and to allow for development of the released land. As part of the release provisions, adequate access and utility 
easements shall be granted/retained for the parties. 
 e. The form of the Promissory Note and Trust Deed, release provisions and other terms and conditions must be 
agreed upon satisfactory to Buyer and Seller prior to the Financing and Appraisal Deadline. 
2. Buyer’s financing contingency will remain effective until the Financing and Appraisal Deadline. Until that date, Buyer 
may reject all financing options in Buyer’s discretion, based on terms and conditions which may be unsatisfactory to 
Buyer. If other financing is found by Buyer, Seller will no longer be obligated to provide Seller financing.   
                                 
 
To the extent the terms of this ADDENDUM modify or conflict with any provisions of the REPC, including all prior addenda 
and counteroffers, these terms shall control.  All other terms of the REPC, including all prior addenda and counteroffers, 
not modified by this ADDENDUM shall remain the same.  [X ] Seller [    ] Buyer shall have until                  [   ] AM [   ] 
PM Mountain Time on                                                    (Date), to accept the terms of this ADDENDUM in accordance with 
the provisions of Section 23 of the REPC.  Unless so accepted, the offer as set forth in this ADDENDUM shall lapse. 
 
                                 
[ X] Buyer  [   ] Seller Signature  (Date) (Time)    [   ] Buyer  [   ] Seller Signature   (Date) (Time) 
 

ACCEPTANCE/COUNTEROFFER/REJECTION 
CHECK ONE: 
[   ]  ACCEPTANCE:  [   ] Seller [   ] Buyer hereby accepts the terms of this ADDENDUM. 
 
[   ]  COUNTEROFFER:  [   ] Seller [   ] Buyer presents as a counteroffer the terms of attached ADDENDUM NO.     
. 
 
                                 
 (Signature)       (Date) (Time)    (Signature)        (Date) (Time) 
 
[   ]  REJECTION:  [   ] Seller [   ] Buyer rejects the foregoing ADDENDUM. 
 
                                 
 (Signature)       (Date) (Time)    (Signature)        (Date) (Time) 



 
THIS FORM APPROVED BY THE UTAH REAL ESTATE COMMISSION AND THE OFFICE OF THE UTAH ATTORNEY 
GENERAL, EFFECTIVE AUGUST 17, 1998.  IT REPLACES AND SUPERSEDES ALL PREVIOUSLY APPROVED 
VERSIONS OF THIS FORM. 



1 

MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING 

Regarding Water Rights related to Stillwater Estates 

After entering into an agreement between Syracuse, a Municipal Corporation (“Seller” and “Land Use 

Authority”), and Irben Development LLC (“Buyer”) to purchase 60.95 acres of land (“South Jensen 

Park”) which will be part of a residential development (“Stillwater Estates”), the parties have concluded 

that the best method to address a transfer of water rights related to Stillwater Estates is through this 

Memorandum of Understanding.  

A. Recitals 

1. Whereas, a reliable secondary water supply is needed by current and future residents, 

businesses and agriculture; and 

2. Whereas, In addition to selling South Jensen Park, Seller is also the Land Use Authority for the 

area; 

3. Whereas, the Land Use Authority has considered the area’s climate, temperature, precipitation, 

evapotranspiration rate, length of irrigation season, and soil type and has concluded that each 

acre of irrigable property in the area requires roughly four acre feet (4 a.f.) of secondary water 

annually during normal water years; and  

4. Whereas, based on such considerations, the Land Use Authority has calculated that during 

normal water years the nature and extent of a residential subdivision’s impact on the water 

supply is roughly proportionate to three acre feet of secondary water annually for each acre or 

part thereof; and  

5. Whereas, the Land Use Authority has approved an ordinance imposing various conditions of 

subdivision approval, including that residential developers convey sufficient water rights 

equivalent to 3 acre feet of secondary water annually for each acre or part thereof within the 

subdivision; and 

6. Whereas, Buyer wishes to develop South Jensen Park and surrounding property into Stillwater 

Estates, a residential subdivision; and 

7. Whereas, the agreement to purchase South Jensen Park excluded the transfer of any water 

rights with the land; 

B. Now, Therefore Be It Resolved That: 

1. As a condition of subdivision approval for Stillwater Estates, Buyer will comply with city code 

and convey to the Land Use Authority water rights sufficient to provide three acre feet of 

secondary water for each acre or part thereof within the proposed Stillwater Estates subdivision. 

In the event there are no owner water rights on property to be developed, Buyer shall obtain and 

convey water rights acceptable and usable by the Land Use Authority. 

2. For water rights necessary to develop 60.95 acres of Stillwater Estates referred to herein as 

South Jensen Park, Buyer may, at Buyer’s discretion, either: 



2 

a. obtain and convey water rights acceptable and usable by the Land Use Authority which 

are sufficient to provide 183 (61 x 3) acre feet of secondary water annually during normal 

water years; or 

b. pay Seller six hundred thousand dollars ($600,000), which is the fair market value of 

water rights sufficient to provide 183 acre feet of secondary water annually during 

normal water years at a price of $9,836.07 per acre or part thereof that is developed. 

The water is valued at $3,278.69 per acre foot. 

3. Should Buyer propose a subdivision that develops only a portion of the 60.95 acres of South 

Jensen Park, he will only be required to provide water shares for the portion that is developed. 

As an alternative to providing water shares for that portion, he may pay Seller $9,836.07 for 

every acre or part thereof of South Jensen Park that is developed. 

4. Should Buyer elect to pay Seller the fair market value of water rights as outlined in Sections 

B.2.b and B.3 herein, Seller shall deposit such funds into the Secondary Water Operating Fund 

of the Land Use Authority. Seller shall then affirm to the Land Use Authority that Buyer has 

conveyed water rights acceptable and usable by the City which are sufficient to provide 

necessary secondary water annually during normal water years for the portion of Stillwater 

Estates developed on South Jensen Park.  

5. Except to the extent stated herein, Buyer shall not receive subdivision approval from the Land 

Use Authority until sufficient water rights have been transferred for the secondary water needs 

of the subdivision as calculated by city code.  

C. Term of the Memorandum of Understanding 

This Memorandum of Understanding shall remain in force and effect until the earlier of either the 

Settlement Date identified in the purchase agreement for South Jensen Park, October 18, 2013, or the 

approval of the final subdivision plat by the Land Use Authority for Stillwater Estates, whichever comes 

first. Should the Settlement Date occur before final subdivision plat approval, this Memorandum of 

Understanding is null and void. 

D. Legal Authority 

Nothing in this Memorandum of Understanding or attached Real Estate Purchase Contract (Exhibit A) 

is intended to give any signatory, agency, entity or organization expansion of any existing authority. 

E. Non-Contractual Agreement 

This Memorandum of Understanding is intended to embody general principles agreed upon between 

and among the signatories but it is not intended to, and does not, create contractual relationships, 

rights, obligations, duties or remedies enforceable in a court of law by, between, or among the 

signatories or any third parties.  

F. Changed Conditions and Amendments to this Memorandum of Understanding 

Given the complexity of issues, level of detail, and changed circumstances that will undoubtedly occur 

some changes may call for renegotiation of some terms. However, a request for renegotiation does not 



3 

necessarily mean the Memorandum of Understanding will be revised. The Memorandum of 

Understanding can be changed or modified only with the expressed approval and consent of the 

signatories. Any proposal to amend this Memorandum of Understanding would be considered in the 

context of the city’s coequal roles as Seller and Land Use Authority. 

G. In witness thereof the undersigned parties have executed this Memorandum of Understanding this 

________ day of _______________, 2012. 

__________________________________________________________________________________ 

Buyer Signature  (Title)  (Date)  (Time) 

__________________________________________________________________________________ 

Seller Signature  (Title)  (Date)  (Time) 

  



4 

 

 

 

 

EXHIBIT A 

Real Estate Purchase Contract for South Jensen Park 



  
 

Agenda Item #h Discussion regarding RDA areas.  

 
Factual Summation  

 Any question regarding this agenda item may be directed at Finance Director 

Stephen Marshall or Community & Economic Development Director Sherrie 

Christensen. 

 

 Please review the PowerPoint presentation and files that are attached with this 

discussion. 

  

 

COUNCIL AGENDA 
May 28, 2013 



Redevelopment Agency 

Community & Economic Development

Redevelopment Agency 

(RDA) Information & 

Budget



FACTS

• A Re-development Area (RDA) is an area within 
city limits that has blighted area’s  which are 
detrimental or inimical to the public health, 
safety.  safety.  

• These area’s are identified in an RDA and a 
project area plan is created to help remove the 
blight area’s, incentivize new businesses to locate 
to the area,  to encourage businesses already in 
area to renovate and beautify, and facilitate new 
development.



FACTS

• A taxing entity committee (TEC) made up of 
individuals from each of the taxing entity 
determines the length of time and percentage determines the length of time and percentage 
share of tax increment dollars that will go to the 
RDA to help complete the project area plan.

• Only tax dollars generated in excess of the 
current tax base will go to the RDA (i.e. tax 
increment).



FACTS

16.1%

1.5%

0.7%
2.7%

6.7%

Normal Property Tax Bill

Davis County

Davis School District16.1%

60.3%

12.3%

Davis School District

Syracuse City

Weber Basin Water

Mosquito Abatement

County Library

North Davis Sewer District



RDA – Tax Increment Dollars

20%

RDA Tax Distribution FY2013 - FY2017

Taxing Entities

In the remaining 15 years the percentage share 

decreases from 75% to 60% in the final year.

80%

Taxing Entities

RDA



FACTS

• Syracuse City has two RDA’s:

–Town Center RDA–Town Center RDA

–750 West RDA



Syracuse City Town Center 

RDARDA



Town Center RDA - FACTS

• Created in 2004. 

• First year of tax increment taken in 2007.  

• 25 year life with final year in 2031.

• Currently 80% of tax increment dollars go to 

the RDA.  This number drops to 75% in FY2018 

and tails off in subsequent years.



Town Center RDA – Project Area 

Plan

Criteria:

1. Enable the Agency to make financing 

alternatives available for participants in the alternatives available for participants in the 

RDA thereby providing necessary assistance 

for investment, redevelopment, 

rehabilitation, and the elimination of blight 

within the Project Area.



Town Center RDA – Project Area 

Plan

2. It will help prevent erosion of Syracuse City’s 

economic base.

3. It will help attract desirable businesses to 3. It will help attract desirable businesses to 

locate and expand within the project area.

4. It will facilitate revitalization and 

beautification of the Project Area.



Town Center RDA – Project Area 

Plan

5. It will enable the Agency to help meet some 
of the infrastructure needs of the City of 
Syracuse which are important for Syracuse which are important for 
revitalization of the Project Area.

6. It will contribute in a variety of other ways to 
the redevelopment of the Project Area, and 
further the interests of public peace, health, 
safety, and welfare.



Town Center RDA  

Projects Completed

• Holrob Investments – Buildings & Infrastructure 
Improvements  Improvements  

• Syracuse City – Infrastructure Improvements to area 

• HN Capital – Infrastructure improvements

• Wendy’s sign 

• Theater  sign



Town Center RDA  

Proposed Projects & Ideas

• Fun Center Expansion – agreement to rebate property 
tax payments to fund pool expansion.

• Parking lot repairs – fix land drain and create easier • Parking lot repairs – fix land drain and create easier 
access and flow through parking area.

• Clock Tower Sign – Enhance the town center structure to 
advertise businesses in town center area.

• Incentive Money – give money to incentivize businesses 
to local to town center area.  Also incentivize existing 
businesses to renovate or relocate.



Town Center RDA  

Parking Lot Repairs
• Full Removal of Island 

• Not feasible

• Grade change

• Cost prohibitive

• Reduce Island
• Loss of 8 parking • Loss of 8 parking 

spaces

• Cost ~ $273,0000

• Not cost effective

• Modified Proposal
• Curb Cut Entrance

• Remove North End of 
Island

• Loss of only 2 spaces

• Cost ~ $25,000



Town Center RDA  

Clock Tower
• Upgrade Face

• Move Wal-mart
to top.

• Take advantage of 
space.space.

• Promote tenants 
in town center 
area.

• Add Town Center 
and Syracuse 
Logo.

• Estimated Cost

• ~$15,000



Town Center RDA  

Incentive Program

• Create a program that would incentivize businesses 

to locate to town center.to locate to town center.

• Based on performance measures.

• Paid after relocation and performance measures 

were satisfied.

• Money could be used for relocation expenses.



Syracuse City 750 West RDASyracuse City 750 West RDA



750 West RDA - FACTS

• Also created in 2004. 

• First year of tax increment taken in 2007.  

• 25 year life with final year in 2031.

• Currently 80% of tax increment dollars go to 

the RDA.  This number drops to 75% in FY2018 

and tails off in subsequent years.



750 West RDA – Project Area 

Plan

1. Promote and market project area to enhance 

economic base.

2. Provide utilities, streets, curbs, sidewalks, 2. Provide utilities, streets, curbs, sidewalks, 

landscape as necessary.

3. Create additional jobs within the city and 

state.

4. Elimination of environmental deficiencies.



750 West RDA – Project Area 

Plan

5. Provide the strengthening of income tax base 
and economic health of the entire 
community.community.

6. Provide improved public streets and road 
access to and within the project area to 
facilitate better traffic circulation.

7. Insure compatible relationship among land 
uses.



750 West RDA  

Investment Ideas
• Extend 500 West through to Antelope Drive.

• Road & infrastructure improvements within area.

• Incentive money to remove or relocate apartments 

on northwest corner of Antelope & 1000 West. 

• Incentive money to bring in new commercial 

development.



750 West RDA  

• 500 West Extension

• Extend road to 
Antelope Dr.

• One Power Pole in 
alignment.

• Road will have to 
be aligned on one 
side or the other 
be aligned on one 
side or the other 
of Pole

• Estimated 
improvement cost 
$250,000.

• Participation from 
Clearfield and 
Developer 
expected to help 
with costs.



750 West RDA  

• Infrastructure 
Improvements

• Road 
Improvements.

• Park • Park 
Strip/sidewalk on 
West Side of 
Bluffridge Drive.

• Estimated Cost 
$ 27,000

• Participation by 
Property Owner.



750 West RDA  

• Renovate/ 

Relocation
• Redevelopment of 

sitesite

• Relocation costs

• Incentivizes new 

commercial use. 

• Participation by 

Property Owner.

• Estimated Cost = 

????



RDA Budget 

Questions?







Line Description Total 1700 South RDA 750 West RDA

Revenues

Tax Increment 341,362.00$  266,454.00$                   74,908.00$                 

Interest 3,800.00$       2,966.13$                       833.87$                      

Total Revenues 345,162.00$     269,420.13$                   75,741.87$                 

Expenses

Infrastructure Impr. 61,440.00$        61,440.00$                     -$                             

Repayment to Financers 371,444.00$     371,444.00$                   -$                             

Transfer to EDA Fund 70,000.00$        -$                                 70,000.00$                 

Office Supplies -$                    -$                                 -$                             

RDA Management Fee 51,204.30$        39,968.10$                     11,236.20$                 

Total Expenses 554,088.30$     472,852.10$                   81,236.20$                 

Net increase (decrease) (208,926.30)$    (203,431.97)$                  (5,494.33)$                  

Beginning Fund Balance 690,508.29$     388,985.14$                   301,523.15$              

Change in Fund Balance (208,926.30)$    (203,431.97)$                  (5,494.33)$                  

Ending Fund Balance 481,581.99$     185,553.18$                   296,028.81$              

FY2013 - Estimated

Notes: 

Repayment to financers include: Holrob reimbursement = $63,514, City = $7,930 and Fun 

Center of $300,000.  Infrastructure Improvements include: Wendy’s sign = $36,440 and an 

estimate of $25,000 to fix parking lot. 

 



FY2012 FY2013 FY2014 FY2015 FY2016 FY2017 FY2018

Tax Increment Calculation

RDA Area Tax Rate 0.014706 0.01459 0.01459 0.01459 0.01459 0.01459 0.01459

Est. Tax Incremental Value 24,653,960$              22,828,519$        22,143,663.43$           27,479,353.53$          26,654,972.92$          25,855,323.73$          25,079,664.02$           

Percentage of Tax Incr. 100% 80% 80% 80% 80% 80% 75%

Est. Tax Increment 362,561.14$              266,454.47$        258,460.84$                320,739.01$               311,116.84$               301,783.34$               274,434.22$                

Fun Center Value Added 112,805.73$              83,933.16$          81,415.16$                  150,426.60$               145,913.80$               141,536.39$               128,709.65$                

Revenues

Tax Increment 362,561.14$              266,454.47$        258,460.84$                320,739.01$               311,116.84$               301,783.34$               274,434.22$                

Interest 2,730.04$                   3,000.00$             500.00$                        500.00$                       500.00$                       500.00$                       500.00$                        

Total Revenues 365,291.18$              269,454.47$        258,960.84$                321,239.01$               311,616.84$               302,283.34$               274,934.22$                

Expenses

Infrastructure Impr. -$                             100,000.00$        100,000.00$                100,000.00$               100,000.00$               50,000.00$                  40,000.00$                   

Beautification & Tentant Outreach -$                             

Repayment to Holrob 79,392.00$                63,515.00$          63,515.00$                   63,515.00$                  63,515.00$                  63,515.00$                  59,544.00$                   

Repayment to City 40,173.00$                7,930.00$             7,930.00$                     7,930.00$                    7,930.00$                    7,930.00$                    7,435.00$                     

Repayment to Fun Center 300,000.00$        96,000.00$                  168,000.00$               168,000.00$               168,000.00$               168,000.00$                

Interest Expense

Office Supplies/Prof Tech 5,000.00$             2,000.00$                     2,000.00$                    2,000.00$                    2,000.00$                    2,000.00$                     

RDA Management Fee 54,384.17$                39,968.17$          12,923.04$                   16,036.95$                  15,555.84$                  15,089.17$                  13,721.71$                   

Total Expenses 173,949.17$              516,413.17$        282,368.04$                357,481.95$               357,000.84$               306,534.17$               290,700.71$                

Net increase (decrease) 191,342.01$              (246,958.70)$       (23,407.20)$                 (36,242.94)$                (45,384.00)$                (4,250.83)$                   (15,766.49)$                 

Beginning Fund Balance 197,643.26$              388,985.27$        142,026.57$                118,619.37$               82,376.43$                  36,992.43$                  32,741.60$                   

Change in Fund Balance 191,342.01$              (246,958.70)$       (23,407.20)$                 (36,242.94)$                (45,384.00)$                (4,250.83)$                   (15,766.49)$                 

Ending Fund Balance 388,985.27$              142,026.57$        118,619.37$                82,376.43$                  36,992.43$                  32,741.60$                  16,975.12$                   

1700 South RDA



FY2019 FY2020 FY2021 FY2022 FY2023 FY2024 FY2025 FY2026

0.01459 0.01459 0.01459 0.01459 0.01459 0.01459 0.01459 0.01459

24,327,274.10$          23,597,455.88$         22,889,532.20$          22,202,846.24$           21,536,760.85$          20,890,658.02$         20,263,938.28$         19,656,020.13$         

75% 75% 75% 75% 70% 70% 70% 70%

266,201.20$               258,215.16$               250,468.71$               242,954.64$                219,954.94$               213,356.29$              206,955.60$              200,746.93$              

124,848.36$               121,102.91$               117,469.82$               113,945.73$                103,158.87$               100,064.10$              97,062.18$                 94,150.31$                 

266,201.20$               258,215.16$               250,468.71$               242,954.64$                219,954.94$               213,356.29$               206,955.60$               200,746.93$               

500.00$                       500.00$                       500.00$                       500.00$                        500.00$                       500.00$                       500.00$                       500.00$                       

266,701.20$               258,715.16$               250,968.71$               243,454.64$                220,454.94$               213,856.29$               207,455.60$               201,246.93$               

30,000.00$                  75,000.00$                 75,000.00$                  75,000.00$                   70,000.00$                  50,000.00$                 50,000.00$                 50,000.00$                 

59,544.00$                  59,544.00$                 59,544.00$                  59,544.00$                   55,575.00$                  45,550.00$                 -$                             -$                             

7,435.00$                    7,435.00$                    7,435.00$                    7,435.00$                     6,939.00$                    10,025.00$                 62,514.00$                 62,514.00$                 

168,000.00$               96,000.00$                 90,000.00$                 90,000.00$                  84,000.00$                 84,000.00$                 72,000.00$                 72,000.00$                 

2,000.00$                    2,000.00$                    2,000.00$                    2,000.00$                     2,000.00$                    2,000.00$                   2,000.00$                   2,000.00$                   

13,310.06$                  12,910.76$                 12,523.44$                  12,147.73$                   10,997.75$                  10,667.81$                 10,347.78$                 10,037.35$                 

280,289.06$               252,889.76$               246,502.44$               246,126.73$                229,511.75$               202,242.81$               196,861.78$               196,551.35$               

(13,587.86)$                5,825.40$                    4,466.27$                    (2,672.09)$                    (9,056.81)$                   11,613.48$                 10,593.82$                 4,695.59$                   

16,975.12$                  3,387.25$                    9,212.66$                    13,678.93$                   11,006.84$                  1,950.03$                   13,563.51$                 24,157.33$                 

(13,587.86)$                5,825.40$                    4,466.27$                    (2,672.09)$                    (9,056.81)$                   11,613.48$                 10,593.82$                 4,695.59$                   

3,387.25$                    9,212.66$                    13,678.93$                  11,006.84$                   1,950.03$                    13,563.51$                 24,157.33$                 28,852.92$                 

1700 South RDA



FY2027 FY2028 FY2029 FY2030 FY2031 FY2032

0.01459 0.01459 0.01459 0.01459 0.01459 0.01459

19,066,339.53$         18,494,349.34$         17,939,518.86$         17,401,333.30$         16,879,293.30$         16,372,914.50$         

70% 60% 60% 60% 60% 60%

194,724.53$              161,899.53$              157,042.55$              152,331.27$              147,761.33$              143,328.49$              

91,325.80$                 75,930.88$                 73,652.96$                 71,443.37$                 69,300.07$                 67,221.06$                 

194,724.53$               161,899.53$               157,042.55$               152,331.27$               147,761.33$               143,328.49$               

500.00$                       500.00$                       500.00$                       500.00$                       500.00$                       500.00$                       

195,224.53$               162,399.53$               157,542.55$               152,831.27$               148,261.33$               143,828.49$               

50,000.00$                 50,000.00$                 50,000.00$                 50,000.00$                 50,000.00$                 51,587.24$                 

-$                             -$                             -$                             -$                             -$                             -$                             

62,514.00$                 44,653.00$                 53,583.00$                 53,583.00$                 53,583.00$                 53,583.00$                 

60,000.00$                 60,000.00$                 60,000.00$                 48,000.00$                 48,000.00$                 30,000.00$                 

2,000.00$                   2,000.00$                   2,000.00$                   2,000.00$                   2,000.00$                   2,000.00$                   

9,736.23$                   8,094.98$                   7,852.13$                   7,616.56$                   7,388.07$                   7,166.42$                   

184,250.23$               164,747.98$               173,435.13$               161,199.56$               160,971.07$               144,336.66$               

10,974.30$                 (2,348.44)$                  (15,892.58)$                (8,368.29)$                  (12,709.73)$                (508.17)$                     

28,852.92$                 39,827.21$                 37,478.77$                 21,586.19$                 13,217.90$                 508.17$                       

10,974.30$                 (2,348.44)$                  (15,892.58)$                (8,368.29)$                  (12,709.73)$                (508.17)$                     

39,827.21$                 37,478.77$                 21,586.19$                 13,217.90$                 508.17$                       (0.00)$                          

1700 South RDA



750 West RDA

Tax Year FY2012 FY2013 FY2014 FY2015 FY2016 FY2017 FY2018

Tax Increment Calculation

RDA Area Tax Rate 0.014706 0.01459 0.01459 0.01459 0.01459 0.01459 0.01459

Est. Tax Incremental Value 5,632,834$                6,417,761$          6,225,228.17$             6,038,471.32$            5,857,317.19$            5,681,597.67$            5,511,149.74$             

Percentage of Tax Incr. 100% 80% 80% 80% 80% 80% 75%

Est. Tax Increment 82,836.46$                74,908.11$          72,660.86$                   70,481.04$                  68,366.61$                  66,315.61$                  60,305.76$                   

Revenues

Tax Increment 82,836.00$                74,908.11$          72,660.86$                   70,481.04$                  68,366.61$                  66,315.61$                  60,305.76$                   

Interest 623.74$                      500.00$                500.00$                        500.00$                       500.00$                       500.00$                       500.00$                        

Total Revenues 83,459.74$                75,408.11$          73,160.86$                   70,981.04$                  68,866.61$                  66,815.61$                  60,805.76$                   

Expenses

Infrastructure Impr. -$                             250,000.00$                100,000.00$               75,000.00$                  50,000.00$                   

Tentant Outreach 200,000.00$               

Repayment to Financers -$                             

Loan to EDA for startup costs 70,000.00$          (70,000.00)$                

Interest Expense -$                             

Office Supplies

RDA Management Fee 12,425.40$                11,236.22$          3,633.04$                     3,524.05$                    3,418.33$                    3,315.78$                    3,015.29$                     

Total Expenses 12,425.40$                81,236.22$          253,633.04$                133,524.05$               103,418.33$               78,315.78$                  53,015.29$                   

Net increase (decrease) 71,034.34$                (5,828.11)$           (180,472.18)$               (62,543.01)$                (34,551.72)$                (11,500.17)$                7,790.47$                     

Beginning Fund Balance 230,488.80$              301,523.14$        295,695.03$                115,222.85$               52,679.84$                  18,128.11$                  6,627.94$                     

Change in Fund Balance 71,034.34$                (5,828.11)$           (180,472.18)$               (62,543.01)$                (34,551.72)$                (11,500.17)$                7,790.47$                     

Ending Fund Balance 301,523.14$              295,695.03$        115,222.85$                52,679.84$                  18,128.11$                  6,627.94$                    14,418.41$                   



750 West RDA

FY2019 FY2020 FY2021 FY2022 FY2023 FY2024 FY2025 FY2026

0.01459 0.01459 0.01459 0.01459 0.01459 0.01459 0.01459 0.01459

5,345,815.25$            5,185,440.79$            5,029,877.57$            4,878,981.24$             4,732,611.80$            4,590,633.45$           4,452,914.44$           4,319,327.01$           

75% 75% 75% 75% 70% 70% 70% 70%

58,496.58$                  56,741.69$                 55,039.44$                  53,388.25$                   48,334.16$                  46,884.14$                 45,477.62$                 44,113.29$                 

58,496.58$                  56,741.69$                 55,039.44$                  53,388.25$                   48,334.16$                  46,884.14$                 45,477.62$                 44,113.29$                 

500.00$                       500.00$                       500.00$                       -$                               -$                              -$                             -$                             -$                             

58,996.58$                  57,241.69$                 55,539.44$                  53,388.25$                   48,334.16$                  46,884.14$                 45,477.62$                 44,113.29$                 

50,000.00$                  50,000.00$                 50,000.00$                  50,000.00$                   50,000.00$                  50,000.00$                 50,000.00$                 50,000.00$                 

2,924.83$                    2,837.08$                    2,751.97$                    2,669.41$                     2,416.71$                    2,344.21$                   2,273.88$                   2,205.66$                   

52,924.83$                  52,837.08$                 52,751.97$                  52,669.41$                   52,416.71$                  52,344.21$                 52,273.88$                 52,205.66$                 

6,071.75$                    4,404.60$                    2,787.46$                    718.84$                        (4,082.54)$                   (5,460.07)$                  (6,796.27)$                  (8,092.38)$                  

14,418.41$                  20,490.16$                 24,894.76$                  27,682.23$                   28,401.07$                  24,318.52$                 18,858.45$                 12,062.19$                 

6,071.75$                    4,404.60$                    2,787.46$                    718.84$                        (4,082.54)$                   (5,460.07)$                  (6,796.27)$                  (8,092.38)$                  

20,490.16$                  24,894.76$                 27,682.23$                  28,401.07$                   24,318.52$                  18,858.45$                 12,062.19$                 3,969.81$                   



FY2027 FY2028 FY2029 FY2030 FY2031 FY2032

0.01459 0.01459 0.01459 0.01459 0.01459 0.01459

4,189,747.20$           4,064,054.78$           3,942,133.14$           3,823,869.15$           3,709,153.07$           3,597,878.48$           

70% 60% 60% 60% 60% 60%

42,789.89$                 35,576.74$                 34,509.43$                 33,474.15$                 32,469.93$                 31,495.83$                 

42,789.89$                 35,576.74$                 34,509.43$                 33,474.15$                 32,469.93$                 31,495.83$                 

-$                             -$                             -$                             -$                             -$                             -$                             

42,789.89$                 35,576.74$                 34,509.43$                 33,474.15$                 32,469.93$                 31,495.83$                 

40,000.00$                 35,000.00$                 35,000.00$                 30,000.00$                 30,000.00$                 33,769.98$                 

2,139.49$                   1,778.84$                   1,725.47$                   1,673.71$                   1,623.50$                   1,574.79$                   

42,139.49$                 36,778.84$                 36,725.47$                 31,673.71$                 31,623.50$                 35,344.77$                 

650.39$                       (1,202.10)$                  (2,216.04)$                  1,800.44$                   846.43$                       (3,848.94)$                  

3,969.81$                   4,620.21$                   3,418.10$                   1,202.07$                   3,002.51$                   3,848.94$                   

650.39$                       (1,202.10)$                  (2,216.04)$                  1,800.44$                   846.43$                       (3,848.94)$                  

4,620.21$                   3,418.10$                   1,202.07$                   3,002.51$                   3,848.94$                   (0.00)$                          

750 West RDA



  
 

Agenda Item #i Discussion Regarding Proposed Utility Rate 

Increases. 

 
Factual Summation  

 Any question regarding this agenda item may be directed at Finance Director 

Stephen Marshall. 

 

 I have included with this discussion a PowerPoint presentation that I will direct 

the council to review as we discuss utility rates. 

 

 Also included with this presentation are supporting documents as follows: 

 

o Utility Rate comparison spreadsheet.  

o North Davis Sewer District handout that describes its intentions on raising 

the sewer fee by $1.50 each year for the next three fiscal years. 

o Utility Fund Detail Statements for each Utility Fund and analysis on the 

effects of utility rate changes.  

 

Staff Recommendation 

 Adopt utility rate changes as outlined on the PowerPoint Presentation.  This 

would include an increase of $1.65/per user per month for Secondary Water, an 

increase of $1.65/per user per month for Storm Water, and a decrease of 

$.55/per user per month on Garbage.  As a note, the North Davis Sewer District 

is also increasing its fee by $1.50/ per user per month starting July 1, 2013.   

 

 I also recommend making these proposed rate increases effective July 1, 2013.  

 

 

 

  

 

COUNCIL AGENDA 
May 28, 2013 



Utility Rate Review

Stephen MarshallStephen Marshall

Finance Director



UTILITY RATES

• We have a responsibility as a city to charge rates 

for utilities that are reasonable, responsible, and 

that only cover the costs of our expenses.that only cover the costs of our expenses.

• We have not adjusted utility rates for at least 

three years with the exception of the rate charged 

by North Davis Sewer District. 

• Costs during this 3 year period have increased.



UTILITY RATES

• Utility rates can be broken down into operational 
costs and capital costs.

• Operational costs are those costs that are • Operational costs are those costs that are 
incurred to provide the utility service (i.e. salaries, 
wages, disposal fees, water purchase, 
equipment, supplies, etc.)

• Capital Costs are those costs incurred to repair, 
maintain, and improve our infrastructure system 
that delivers the utility to our homes and 
businesses. 



UTILITY RATES

• Capital costs for infrastructure repairs, 
maintenance, and improvement projects is our 
biggest issue when talking about utility rates.

• The costs of repairing, maintaining, and • The costs of repairing, maintaining, and 
improving our infrastructure is charged as an 
expense to each utility in the form of depreciation 
expense.

• It is charged as an estimated cost over 40-50 
years.  This is an estimate of the useful life of the 
infrastructure.



UTILITY RATES

• If the City calculates into the utility rate the cost of the 
depreciation expense for infrastructure, then the City 
will have money now and in the future to repair, 
maintain, and improve our infrastructure.maintain, and improve our infrastructure.

• If we don’t fund depreciation expense, then 
eventually the City will have no money to fund 
improvement projects and will have to Bond to 
complete the repairs, maintenance, and 
improvements to our infrastructure.

• Rates would then have to increase to fund the bond 
and the City would pay interest costs as well.



UTILITY RATES

• Currently the City is NOT completely funding the depreciation 
expense in the secondary water fund, storm water fund, sewer 
fund, and now in the Culinary Fund.

• Currently shortage of funding for depreciation expense in each 
fund:fund:

• Secondary Water = Shortage of $267,938.

• Storm Water = Shortage of $275,025.

• Sewer Fund = Shortage of $75,697.

• Culinary Fund = Shortage of $69,896.

• Garbage Fund = Surplus of 44,951.

• Street Lights = No shortage or surplus.

• Parks Maintenance = No shortage or surplus.



UTILITY RATES - DEPRECIATION

Secondary Storm Culinary Sewer Garbage

Cash Balance $              - $  242,889 $ 1,527,972 $     833,000 $ 315,000 

Use of Retained Earnings $ (267,938) $ (275,025) $     (69,896) $     (75,697) $   44,951 

Depreciation $  460,000 $  215,000 $     510,000 $     295,000 $             -

Cash  Balance Available $  192,062 $  182,864 $ 1,968,076 $ 1,052,303 $ 359,951 Cash  Balance Available $  192,062 $  182,864 $ 1,968,076 $ 1,052,303 $ 359,951 

Capital Projects $              - $   (78,000) $   (400,000) $   (300,000) $             -

Capital Assets $   (65,000) $              - $     (65,000) $                - $             -

Ending Cash Balance $  127,062 $  104,864 $ 1,503,076 $     752,303 $ 359,951 

Net Depr over use of balance $  192,062 $   (60,025) $     444,904 $     219,303 $   44,951 



UTILITY RATES

• In order to fully fund the depreciation expense for each of these 

funds rates would need to be increased.

• Secondary water = $3.30/household per month

• Storm water = $3.35/household per month• Storm water = $3.35/household per month

• Culinary water = $0.70/household per month

• Sewer Fund = $0.90/household per month

• North Davis Sewer District is also raising its rate by $1.50 in 

July 2013.

• Rates could be reduced in garbage by $0.55/household per 

month.

• Total Rate increase needed of $9.20/household per month



UTILITY RATES

• North Davis Sewer District has approved rate increases of 

$1.50 each year for the next three fiscal years.

• Fiscal Year 2013-2014 = $1.50 / per month per user• Fiscal Year 2013-2014 = $1.50 / per month per user

• Fiscal Year 2014-2015 = $1.50 / per month per user

• Fiscal Year 2015-2016 = $1.50 / per month per user



UTILITY RATES

• I have compiled a benchmark of 9 other cities utility 
rates for comparison purposes.

• This document is included in your dropbox.• This document is included in your dropbox.

• Syracuse City has the 3rd cheapest rates out of 10 
cities.

• Even if the City increased rates by $9.20 per month 
($3.3+3.35+0.70+0.90+1.5-0.55) to $73.25 per month 
we would have the 4th cheapest rates out of 10 cities.



UTILITY RATES - COMPARISON

City Total  Bill @ 8,000 GAL Notes

ROY CITY $63.28 Basic  

CLINTON CITY $63.56 Basic

SYRACUSE CITY $64.05 BasicSYRACUSE CITY $64.05 Basic

LAYTON CITY $68.07 INCLUDING AN ESTIMATE FOR SEC WATER

FARMINGTON CITY $77.43 BENCHLAND SECONDARY

FARMINGTON CITY $89.93 WEBER BASIN - SECONDARY

CLEARFIELD CITY $80.69 INCLUDING AN ESTIMATE FOR SEC WATER

KAYSVILLE CITY $81.75 Basic

WEST POINT $82.65 Basic

NORTH ODGEN CITY $83.96 Basic

SARATOGA SPRINGS $102.35 Basic

AVERAGE RATE $77.97



UTILITY RATES

• Recommendation to adjust utility rates to fully 

fund depreciation expense.

• Long-term = better financial plan. • Long-term = better financial plan. 

• Rates would still be very competitive with 

surrounding cities.  These other cities have 

recognized the need to fund their infrastructure 

costs.



UTILITY RATES

• Options to adjust utility rates to recommended 

levels:

• All at once (Not Recommended)• All at once (Not Recommended)

• In step increases over 3 years

• Increase rates in funds that have lowest cash 

balances first: Secondary Fund & Storm Fund



UTILITY RATES

• Staff Recommendation – Rate Increases:

Fiscal Year 2013 - 2014

• Secondary Water - $1.65/month per user• Secondary Water - $1.65/month per user

• Storm Water - $1.65/ month per user

• Culinary Water - $0

• Sewer Fund - $1.50/month per user (NDSD FEE)

• Garbage Fund – ($0.55)/month per user

• Total Syracuse City proposed - $2.75/month per user

• Total NDSD proposed - $1.50/month per user

• Total Increase proposed - $4.25/month per user



UTILITY RATES

• Staff Recommendation – Rate Increases:

Fiscal Year 2014 - 2015

• Secondary Water - $0.85/month per user• Secondary Water - $0.85/month per user

• Storm Water - $1.65/ month per user

• Culinary Water - $0

• Sewer Fund - $1.50/month per user (NDSD FEE)

• Total Syracuse City proposed - $2.50/month per user

• Total NDSD proposed - $1.50/month per user

• Total Increase proposed - $4.00/month per user



UTILITY RATES

• Staff Recommendation – Rate Increases:

Fiscal Year 2015 - 2016

• Secondary Water - $0.80/month per user• Secondary Water - $0.80/month per user

• Storm Water - $0

• Culinary Water - $0.70/month per user

• Sewer Fund - $1.50/month per user (NDSD FEE)

• Sewer Fund - $0.90/month per user (Syracuse City)

• Total Syracuse City proposed - $2.50/month per user

• Total NDSD proposed - $1.50/month per user

• Total Increase proposed - $3.90/month per user



UTILITY RATES

Fruit Heights storm water bills to rise by 150 

percent 

By Dana Rimington 

Standard-Examiner  

Sun, 06/26/2011 - 9:52pm 

Copyright 2011 . All rights reserved. This material may not be published, broadcast, rewritten or 

redistributed. 

Images 

Utah cities scramble to 
comply with EPA mandate 
BY KATIE DRAKE THE SALT LAKE TRIBUNE  

PUBLISHED FEBRUARY 26, 2012 9:23 PM 
This is an archived article that was published on sltrib.com in 2012, and information in the article may be outdated. It is 
provided only for personal research purposes and may not be reprinted.  

Cities that were waiting for a rainy day to deal with new rules on keeping storm water clean have discovered the storm has 
finally arrived. 

Now they're scrambling to raise fees to comply with the regulations — and avoid risking hefty penalties. 

"The only choice is to comply or not to comply, and if you don't, you pay," said West Jordan Mayor Melissa Johnson.  

Now her City Council is rushing to raise the storm water fee from $1.80 to $3.65 in order to hire two new staff members and 

 

 

FRUIT HEIGHTS -- After 14 years of unchanged rates, residents and business owners here will 

soon see a dramatic increase in their storm water utility bills.  

The city council tried to be mindful of residents by not raising rates in previous years, but the 

storm water utility expenses are now in the red. 

To address those expenses, the council recently passed a motion -- by a 3-2 vote -- for the 150 

percent increase, which will result in about a $6 increase per month for most residents.  

Commercial businesses, however, will see a significant increase in rates because of a change in 

recalculation of the measurement rates. 

It was discovered that the rates set in 1997 needed to be refigured to match this year's 

calculations, said Brandon Jones, Fruit Heights city engineer. 

With the outdated rates, residents were carrying some of the burden of the commercial 

businesses, which will not be the case with the utility rate increases.  

Now her City Council is rushing to raise the storm water fee from $1.80 to $3.65 in order to hire two new staff members and 
purchase equipment to bring the city into compliance. The workers will spend their time sending cameras down each of the 
city's storm water lines to check for debris, as well as maintaining and upgrading all the valves, catch basins and other 
infrastructure that keeps storm water clean as it enters the Jordan River. 

And West Jordan is not alone. Sandy is in the final stretch of a three-year plan to raise fees from $5 to $6, and Riverton's will 
jump from $4 to $7 by 2014. All storm water fees are based on "equivalent residential units," so larger properties and 
businesses will pay even more. The fees vary by city based on individual water systems and how much of the pipe needs to 
be replaced. 

Storm water enters natural waterways untreated, said Rhonda Thiele of the Utah Department of Environmental Quality 
(DEQ). The standards may require infrastructure improvements to keep debris, chemicals and silt from destroying river 
banks, fisheries and wetlands where storm water enters the ecosystem. 

Cities have known about the new requirements since 2002, but the compliance deadline was extended to Feb. 1, 2012, said 
Thiele. Now she is auditing the 78 Utah municipalities that fall under the regulations, which are set by the federal 
Environmental Protection Agency and enforced by Utah's DEQ. 

The audit examines six factors, from public education to construction-site runoff. The eventual goal, Thiele said, is that only 
pure rainwater and snowmelt flow into natural waterways. Most cities aren't there yet, but as long as they are making 
progress, DEQ is usually willing to work with them, Thiele said. 

But it's a different story for those who fail to show progress on implementing major tenants of the plan, Thiele said. DEQ is 
still determining the penalty for those who aren't making a diligent effort, but it is likely to involve hefty fines, she said. 

Full compliance can take several years, said Taylorsville Mayor Russ Wall. The city adopted a storm water fee about six 
years ago, but only about 75 percent of its system is in compliance. Wall is hoping the city's consistent effort will reflect 
favorably on its audit. 

"Nobody likes fees and taxes, but you have to maintain your infrastructure," Wall said. "An emergency is more costly than 
construction, and nobody wants to get spanked by the EPA." 

Others have not planned so far in advance, said Jennifer Scott, district director for Rep. Jason Chaffetz. His office has been 
flooded with requests for help in complying this year. Many attribute their failure to act to the tough economy, while others 
were waiting to see if the mandates changed, Scott said.  



UTILITY RATES
Bountiful considers water 

rates bump 

Images 

 

BOUNTIFUL -- City officials are expected to consider raising 

water rates as part of the new fiscal year budget for 2013-14. 

City Manager Gary Hill said needs to the city’s water 

infrastructure have city officials looking at the possibility of 

raising water rates. The city’s fiscal year runs July 1 to June 30. 

The city council will consider a tentative budget at its May 14 

Layton adds street light fee to 

Layton 2013-2014 budget 

plans 

 

LAYTON — City residents will pay a new street lighting utility bill of $2 per month, 

per household, as part of the 2013-2014 fiscal year budget, which was recently 

unveiled publicly. 

The street lighting fee will help city officials purchase some 

existing street lights in the city from Rocky Mountain Power, 

potentially saving the city in utility costs over the long term. It 

is one of two fee increases expected to be in the new fiscal year 

budget. 

The city council will consider a tentative budget at its May 14 

meeting and is required to pass a finalized budget in June. Hill 

said the spending plan is a work in progress, with council 

review still required on some items. 

Even with a possible increase, however, he said the spending 

plan will be conservative. 

“As a new kid here this is very conservative,” Hill said of the 

budget. Hill became city manager earlier this year, replacing 

long-time city manager Tom Hardy. 

A conservative approach to fiscal matters is not new for city 

officials. Bountiful has not raised property taxes for 31 

consecutive years. 

The city is currently operating under a $62 million spending 

plan for the current fiscal year. A lion’s share of the spending 

plan includes the operation of the Bountiful City Light & Power 

Company, the city owned utility. Almost $26 million of the 

existing budget is funding related to BCL&P. 

Bountiful also owns its own landfill and golf course, which are 

also funded through the budget. 

 

 

A pass-through increase of $1.50 per household from North 

Davis Sewer District is also part of the spending plan. 

There is no property tax increase as part of the proposal. 

Two other key components of the proposed fiscal year plan 

include a 2.5 percent merit pay increase for some of the city’s 

300 full-time employees and a projected increase of 6 percent in 

retirement benefits for city employees. The city’s fiscal year 

runs July 1 to June 30. 

City council members unanimously approved a tentative budget 

for the new fiscal year at the first meeting of the month. 

They also approved an outline for a public hearing and final 

consideration of the proposal. 

A public hearing on the budget is scheduled for 7 p.m. June 20. 

The city council is expected to finalize approval of a new fiscal 

year plan after the hearing. 

City Manager Alex Jensen said the lion’s share of the new 

budget is in place but said that could be subject to change in the 

weeks before the public hearing. 



Secondary Water Fund With No incr. With $1.65 inc With $3.30 inc.

30-33-10 FEDERAL GRANTS 0 0 0 0 -                           

30-34-25 SERVICE FEE - SECONDARY WATER 1,315,916 1,325,242 781,320 1,337,000 1,368,500              1,502,650          1,636,800         

30-34-50 SECONDARY WATER IMPACT FEES 0 0 0 0 -                           

30-36-10 INTEREST INCOME 3,909 6,686 3,499 5,000 3,600                      3,600                  3,600                 

30-36-40 SALE OF ASSETS 0 0 0 0 -                           -                      -                     

30-36-90 SUNDRY REVENUE 0 246 0 0 -                           -                      -                     

30-37-60 CONNECTION FEES, SEC. WATER 15,175 27,939 26,390 45,000 56,100                    56,100                56,100               

30-39-40 TRANSFERS FROM OTHER FUNDS 0 0 0 0 -                           -                      -                     

30-39-45 CONTRIBUTIONS FROM SUBDIVISION 630,688 30,863 0 0 -                           -                      -                     

30-39-92 USE OF RETAINED EARNINGS 0 0 0 227,834 267,938                  133,788              

30-40-08 SOURCE OF SUPPLY 272,598 281,882 271,212 285,000 300,000                  300,000              300,000            

30-40-10 OVERTIME 2,360 2,507 646 5,000 5,000                      5,000                  5,000                 

30-40-11 PERMANENT EMPLOYEE WAGES 119,695 148,537 78,852 137,166 137,156                  137,156              137,156            

30-40-12 PART-TIME WAGES 5,292 6,558 9,095 22,703 22,713                    22,713                22,713               

30-40-13 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 60,806 61,516 38,270 65,692 75,766                    75,766                75,766               

30-40-15 UNIFORMS 0 24 377 600 600                          600                      600                    

30-40-20 INTEREST EXPENSE 0 0 0 0 -                           -                      -                     

30-40-23 TRAVEL & TRAINING 0 0 0 0 -                           -                      -                     

30-40-24 OFFICE SUPPLIES 0 102 13 1,000 1,000                      1,000                  1,000                 

30-40-25 EQUIPMENT SUPPLIES AND MAINTEN 5,754 4,471 1,751 4,500 4,500                      4,500                  4,500                 

30-40-26 VEHICLE EXPENSES 18,065 20,970 22,784 34,500 36,500                    36,500                36,500               

30-40-27 UTILITIES 111,908 148,236 98,152 155,000 165,000                  165,000              165,000            

30-40-28 COMMUNICATIONS 2,628 3,313 1,501 2,000 3,600                      3,600                  3,600                 

30-40-36 INTERNAL SERVICES ALLOCATION 100,000 153,298 122,057 209,240 215,450                  215,450              215,450            

30-40-37 PROFESSIONAL & TECH SERVICES 6,892 5,130 0 6,000 6,000                      6,000                  6,000                 

30-40-45 SECONDARY SYSTEM MAINTENANCE 78,740 47,302 42,868 67,950 75,000                    75,000                75,000               

30-40-48 TRANSFERS TO OTHER FUNDS 186,230 186,793 25,991 186,983 186,853                  186,853              186,853            

30-40-50 DEPRECIATION 372,724 413,128 241,604 430,000 460,000                  460,000              460,000            

30-40-53 INTEREST 0 0 0 0 -                           -                      -                     

30-40-55 BAD DEBT 902 410 0 1,000 500                          500                      500                    

30-40-60 SUNDRY 0 64 158 500 500                          500                      500                    

30-40-70 CAPITAL OUTLAY 0 0 0 1,410,000 65,000                    65,000                65,000               

30-40-71 MOVE CAPITAL TO BALANCE SHEET 0 0 0 -1,410,000 (65,000)                   (65,000)               (65,000)             

30-40-94 RETAINED EARNINGS 0 0 0 0 -                           362                    

-                     

          Total Sec. Water  Revenues 1,965,689    1,390,976      811,209         1,614,834      1,696,138              1,696,138          1,696,500         

          Total Sec. Water Expenses 1,344,594    1,484,240      955,331         1,614,834      1,696,138              1,696,138          1,696,500         

Surplus (Shortfall) 621,095        (93,265)          (144,122)        -                  -                           -                      -                     



Storm Water Fund With no Increase With $1.67 With $3.35 inc

40-36-10 INTEREST INCOME 1,289 2,133 1,524 1,500 1,200                      1,200 1,200

40-36-90 SUNDRY REVENUES 0 0 450 0 -                           

40-37-10 STORM WATER USER FEES 285,548 288,838 170,498 288,000 295,000                  434,300              573,600

40-39-40 TRANSFERS FROM OTHER FUNDS 0 0 0 0 -                           

40-39-43 USE OF FUND BALANCE 0 0 0 194,641 275,025                  135,725              0

40-39-45 CONTRIBUTIONS FROM SUBDIVISION 532,497 49,055 0 0 -                           

40-40-10 OVERTIME 1,054 2,850 2,750 3,000 5,000                      5,000 5,000

40-40-11 PERMANENT EMPLOYEE WAGES 69,891 66,392 42,476 72,896 104,468                  104,468 104,468

40-40-12 PART-TIME WAGES 1,992 7,374 0 10,660 10,660                    10,660 10,660

40-40-13 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 32,348 49,772 31,348 55,305 84,347                    84,347 84,347

40-40-15 Uniforms 0 0 0 0 300                          300 300

40-40-23 TRAVEL & TRAINING 365 67 44 500 1,000                      1,000 1,000

40-40-24 OFFICE SUPPLIES 63 64 0 500 500                          500 500

40-40-25 EQUIPMENT SUPPLIES AND MAINT 1,243 332 1,326 6,400 2,500                      2,500 2,500

40-40-26 VEHICLE EXPENSE 680 2,171 2,994 7,500 9,000                      9,000 9,000

40-40-28 COMMUNICATIONS 0 0 0 0 -                           0 0

40-40-36 INTERNAL SERVICES ALLOCATION 100,000 84,835 51,963 89,080 103,150                  103,150 103,150

40-40-37 PROFESSIONAL & TECH SERVICES 17,503 0 300 4,000 10,300                    10,300 10,300

40-40-40 TRANSFER TO OTHER FUNDS 0 0 0 0 -                           0 0

40-40-45 STORM WATER SYSTEM MAINTENANCE 15,323 8,532 9,663 25,000 25,000                    25,000 25,000

40-40-47 PROFESSIONAL & TECHNICAL SERVI 0 0 0 0 -                           0 0

40-40-50 DEPRECIATION 185,450 202,431 118,588 209,000 215,000                  215,000 215,000

40-40-53 INTEREST 0 0 0 0 -                           0 0

40-40-55 BAD DEBT 211 123 0 300 -                           0 0

40-40-60 SUNDRY 0 0 0 0 -                           0 0

40-40-70 CAPITAL PROJECTS 0 0 0 200,000 78,000                    78,000 78,000

40-40-71 MOVE CAPITAL TO BALANCE SHEET 0 0 0 -200,000 (78,000)                   (78,000) (78,000)

40-40-94 RETAINED EARNINGS 0 0 0 0 -                           3,575

          Total Storm Water  Revenues 819,333        340,026         172,473         484,141         571,225                  571,225              574,800            

          Total Storm Water Expenses 426,122        424,943         261,452         484,141         571,225                  571,225              574,800            

Surplus (Shortfall) -                           -                      -                     



Culinary Water Fund No increase With $0.70 inc

50-33-10 FEDERAL GRANTS 0 0 0 312,168 -                       

50-33-15 STATE GRANTS & REIMBURSEMENTS 0 71,833 0 75,000 -                       

50-34-60 WATER CONNECTION FEES 21,204 36,454 38,200 63,750 60,775                 60,775                

50-36-10 INTEREST INCOME 8,379 13,755 9,267 15,000 13,000                 13,000                

50-36-40 SALE OF ASSETS 20,886 4,732 0 0 -                       -                       

50-36-84 PENALTIES ON UTILITY BILL 23,018 59,539 68,313 100,000 100,000               100,000              

50-36-90 SUNDRY REVENUES 255 416 259 500 300                       300                      

50-36-91 Credit Card CONVENIENCE FEE 0 0 0 0 -                       -                       

50-37-10 WATER REVENUE 1,483,902 1,511,945 874,851 1,500,000 1,550,000           1,616,000           

50-38-85 COLLECTION OF BAD DEBTS 0 0 0 0 -                       -                       

50-39-45 CONTRIBUTION FROM SUBDIVISIONS 776,719 42,420 0 0 -                       -                       

50-39-92 USE OF RETAINED EARNINGS 0 0 0 0 69,896                 3,896                   

50-39-95 TRANSFER FROM OTHER FUNDS 0 0 0 0 -                       -                       

50-40-08 SOURCE OF SUPPLY 393,229 398,950 412,749 413,000 425,000               425,000              

50-40-10 OVERTIME 2,389 3,674 3,211 6,000 6,000                   6,000                   

50-40-11 PERMANENT EMPLOYEE WAGES 133,124 144,091 85,044 147,858 148,887               148,887              

50-40-12 PART-TIME WAGES 7,289 19,747 18,581 30,160 29,131                 29,131                

50-40-13 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 67,302 88,768 50,092 88,973 94,553                 94,553                

50-40-15 UNIFORMS 0 1,749 280 1,500 1,600                   1,600                   

50-40-21 BOOKS, SUBSCRIPTS & MEMBERSHIP 0 0 1,010 3,500 6,500                   6,500                   

50-40-23 TRAVEL & TRAINING 1,075 4,126 1,395 6,500 6,500                   6,500                   

50-40-24 OFFICE SUPPLIES 1,858 1,828 1,507 4,500 4,500                   4,500                   

50-40-25 EQUIP SUPPLIES & MAINT 11,101 3,830 1,549 5,000 6,000                   6,000                   

50-40-26 VEHICLE EXPENSES 36,701 30,518 21,740 37,500 43,000                 43,000                

50-40-27 UTILITIES 13,978 16,305 9,140 21,000 18,000                 18,000                

50-40-28 COMMUNICATIONS 3,453 3,659 1,667 3,200 3,600                   3,600                   

50-40-36 INTERNAL SERVICES ALLOCATION 224,000 281,293 177,614 304,481 304,900               304,900              

50-40-37 PROFESSIONAL & TECH SERVICES 50,893 45,793 158 6,000 6,000                   6,000                   

50-40-44 SEWER COLLECTION SYSTEM 0 0 0 0 -                       -                       

50-40-45 CULINARY SYSTEM MAINTENANCE 32,317 44,764 41,019 90,000 70,000                 70,000                

50-40-46 CUSTOMER ACCTS. & COLLECTIONS 0 0 0 0 -                       -                       

50-40-50 DEPRECIATION 443,460 469,097 267,745 475,000 510,000               510,000              

50-40-54 CONTRIBUTIONS 0 0 0 0 -                       -                       

50-40-55 BAD DEBT 2,860 723 0 1,500 1,000                   1,000                   

50-40-60 SUNDRY 0 469 519 500 500                       500                      

50-40-70 CAPITAL OUTLAY 0 0 0 1,510,000 465,000               465,000              

50-40-71 MOVE CAPITAL TO BALANCE SHEET 0 0 0 -1,510,000 (465,000)             (465,000)             

50-40-81 TRANSFER TO OTHER FUNDS 0 0 0 0 -                       -                       

50-40-94 RETAINED EARNINGS 0 0 0 323,326 -                       



50-41-23 TRAVEL & TRAINING 0 0 0 0 -                       -                       

50-41-24 OFFICE SUPPLIES 29,234 41,187 22,377 41,920 43,900                 43,900                

50-41-25 EQUIP SUPPLIES &  MAINTENANCE 1,000 1,253 95 2,000 2,000                   2,000                   

50-41-26 VEHICLE EXPENSE 700 166 0 0 -                       -                       

50-41-28 COMMUNICATIONS 186 140 0 600 -                       -                       

50-41-37 PROFESSIONAL & TECH SERVICES 47,942 54,177 33,763 55,200 62,400                 62,400                

          Total Culinary Water  Revenues 2,334,363     1,741,094   990,890          2,066,418       1,793,971           1,793,971           

          Total Culinary Water Expenses 1,504,091     1,656,304   1,151,253       2,069,218       1,793,971           1,793,971           

Surplus (Shortfall) -                       -                       



Sewer Fund With $1.5 increase With $0.90

53-34-82 SEWER CONNECTION FEES 19,511 33,611 30,922 55,000 56,100                 56,100                

53-36-10 INTEREST INCOME 2,480 4,788 3,569 6,000 4,000                   4,000                   

53-36-40 SALE OF FIXED ASSETS 0 0 0 0 -                       

53-36-90 SUNDRY REVENUES 0 0 0 0 -                       

53-37-30 SEWER REVENUE 966,191 977,912 625,438 1,070,000 1,195,000           1,270,764           

53-39-45 CONTRIBUTION FROM SUBDIVISIONS 607,457 39,050 0 0 -                       

53-39-50 USE OF RETAINED EARNINGS 0 0 0 65,041 75,697                 0

53-39-95 TRANSFER FROM OTHER FUNDS 0 0 0 0 -                       

53-40-10 OVERTIME 1,776 2,107 1,774 5,000 5,000                   5,000                   

53-40-11 PERMANENT EMPLOYEE WAGES 100,271 77,435 52,169 84,189 93,153                 93,153                

53-40-12 PART-TIME WAGES 1,992 0 0 0 -                       -                       

53-40-13 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 47,863 45,231 29,500 57,372 52,594                 52,594                

53-40-18 SEWAGE DISPOSAL FEES 556,991 568,374 385,521 665,000 794,400               794,400              

53-40-23 TRAVEL & TRAINING 0 20 775 1,000 1,500                   1,500                   

53-40-24 OFFICE SUPPLIES 204 18 0 500 500                       500                      

53-40-25 EQUIP SUPPLIES & MAINT 2,022 654 1,827 6,900 3,500                   3,500                   

53-40-26 VEHICLE EXPENSES 6,018 1,706 849 9,500 9,000                   9,000                   

53-40-28 COMMUNICATIONS 0 0 0 500 500                       500                      

53-40-36 INTERNAL SERVICES ALLOCATION 40,000 46,882 34,463 59,080 71,150                 71,150                

53-40-37 PROFESSIONAL & TECH SERVICES 83 0 0 500 2,500                   2,500                   

53-40-45 SEWER SYSTEM MAINTENANCE 2,577 1,872 620 10,000 1,000                   1,000                   

53-40-50 DEPRECIATION 252,255 273,568 160,500 295,000 295,000               295,000              

53-40-55 BAD DEBT 699 311 0 1,000 500                       500                      

53-40-60 SUNDRY 0 0 0 500 500                       500                      

53-40-70 CAPITAL OUTLAY 0 0 0 100,000 300,000               300,000              

53-40-71 MOVE CAPITAL TO BALANCE SHEET 0 0 0 -100,000 (300,000)             (300,000)             

53-40-81 TRANSFER TO OTHER FUNDS 0 0 0 0 -                       -                       

53-40-94 RETAINED EARNINGS 0 0 0 0 -                       67                        

          Total Sewer Revenues 1,595,639     1,055,361   659,929          1,196,041       1,330,797           1,330,864           

          Total Sewer Expenses 1,012,750     1,018,178   667,998          1,196,041       1,330,797           1,330,864           

Surplus (Shortfall) -                       -                       



Garbage Fund With No decr. With .55 decr.

55-36-10 INTEREST INCOME 1,018 1,468 1,244 500 1,500                   1,500                   

55-36-90 SUNDRY REVENUES 0 0 0 0 -                       

55-37-70 WASTE COLLECTION REVENUE 1,145,248 1,114,929 657,454 1,123,560 1,143,000           1,098,200           

55-37-71 GREEN WASTE RECYCLING 17,991 98,733 61,072 103,600 105,000               105,000              

55-37-75 GARBAGE CAN PURCHASE FEE 6,520 11,200 10,100 15,000 18,700                 18,700                

55-39-92 USE OF RETAINED EARNINGS 0 0 0 0 -                       -                       

55-39-95 TRANSFER FROM OTHER FUNDS 0 0 0 0 -                       -                       

55-40-10 OVERTIME 30 0 35 0 -                       -                       

55-40-11 PERMANENT EMPLOYEE WAGES 21,178 31,532 23,278 41,270 41,270                 41,270                

55-40-12 PART-TIME WAGES 3,205 0 0 0 -                       -                       

55-40-13 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 7,285 16,101 5,773 9,828 10,829                 10,829                

55-40-15 UNIFORMS 0 0 0 500 500                       500                      

55-40-23 TRAVEL & TRAINING 0 0 0 500 -                       -                       

55-40-24 OFFICE SUPPLIES 42 0 0 1,000 1,000                   1,000                   

55-40-25 SERVICE SUPPLIES & MAINTENANCE 0 0 0 0 -                       -                       

55-40-26 VEHICLE EXPENSES 0 0 0 0 -                       -                       

55-40-28 COMMUNICATIONS 0 0 0 0 -                       -                       

55-40-30 GARBAGE COLLECTION EXPENSE 1,017,506 963,599 539,205 998,000 1,005,000           1,005,000           

55-40-31 GARBAGE CAN PURCHASES 42,727 0 0 10,000 15,000                 15,000                

55-40-36 INTERNAL SERVICES ALLOCATION 40,000 46,882 27,463 47,080 40,150                 40,150                

55-40-40 GREEN WASTE COLLECTION FEES 15,059 82,295 50,444 98,000 99,000                 99,000                

55-40-41 GREEN WASTE CAN PURCHASES 0 0 0 18,750 10,000                 10,000                

55-40-50 RECYCLING COLLECTION FEES 0 0 0 0 -                       -                       

55-40-51 RECYCLING CAN PURCHASES 0 0 0 0 -                       -                       

55-40-55 BAD DEBT 1,254 430 0 1,000 500                       500                      

55-40-60 SUNDRY 0 0 0 0 -                       -                       

55-40-70 CAPITAL OUTLAY 0 0 0 0 -                       -                       

55-40-81 TRANSFER TO OTHER FUNDS 0 0 0 0 -                       -                       

55-40-94 RETAINED EARNINGS 0 0 0 16,732 44,951                 151

          Total Garbage Fund Revenues 1,170,777     1,226,330   729,870          1,242,660       1,268,200           1,223,400           

          Total Garbage Fund Expenses 1,148,286     1,140,839   646,198          1,242,660       1,268,200           1,223,400           

Surplus (Shortfall) -                       -                       





City Water Use 0 Gallons Use 4,000 Gallons Use 8,000 Gallons Secondary Water Storm Sewer Garbage Green Waste Recycling Other Fees Total  Bill @ 8,000 GAL Notes

 $16.50 base up 

to 8,000 Gal 

 $11.00 for 

first can 

$1.32               

street light fee

$64.05 Basic

 8,000 - 15,000 

Gal  - $2.05 

per/thousand 

 $7.20 for 

addl can 

$2.93               

park maint. fee

$70.55 With Green 

Waste

 $12.50 base up 

to 10,000 Gal 

$21.41                                          

- based on lot size

 $13.10 for 

first can 

$0.65               

animal control

$63.56

 10,000 - 15,000 

Gal  - $1.05 

per/thousand 

 $9.50 for 

addl can 

$.95               

emergency 

dispatch

 $22.50 base up 

to 6,000 Gal 

 $11.50 for 

first can 

No additional 

fees

$82.65 Basic

 6,000 - 10,000 

Gal  - $1.35 

per/thousand 

 $9.00 for 

addl can 

$88.65 With Green 

Waste

 $12.85 base up 

to 7,000 Gal 

 $10.70 for 

first can 

Proposed $2.00 

street light fee

$47.24

 7,000 - 15,000 

Gal  - $1.14 

per/thousand 

 $8.10 for 

addl can 

$68.07 INCLUDING AN 

ESTIMATE FOR 

SEC WATER

 $21.00 base up 

to 8,000 Gal 

 $11.50 for 

first can 

No additional 

fees

$81.75 Basic

 8,000 - 15,000 

Gal  - $2.00 

per/thousand 

 $8.00 for 

addl can 

$92.10 With Green 

Waste & 

Recycling

City Water Use 0 Gallons Use 4,000 Gallons Use 8,000 Gallons Secondary Water Storm Sewer Garbage Green Waste Recycling Other Fees Total  Bill @ 8,000 GAL Notes

 $6.65 base  

 $13.35 for 

first can 

$5.54 CAPITAL 

IMPR./EQUIP 

FEE

$63.28 Basic  

 0 - 9,000 Gal  - 

$0.77 

per/thousand 

 $8.10 for 

addl can 

$76.38 Basic - add 

$13.10 if east of 

1900 West

 $18.25 base up 

to 5,000 Gal 

 $12.50 for 

first can 

No additional 

fees

$77.43 BENCHLAND 

SECONDARY

 5,000 - 10,000 

Gal  - $2.50 

per/thousand 

 $9.75 for 

addl can 

$89.93 WEBER BASIN - 

SECONDARY

 $11.53 base  

 $15.25 for 

first can 

$59.86 $2.26 IN TAX ON 

WATER & SEWER

 0 - 10,000 Gal  - 

$0.87 

per/thousand 

 $7.00 for 

addl can 

$80.69 INCLUDING AN 

ESTIMATE FOR 

SEC WATER

 $6.49 base  $11.57 for 

first can 

No additional 

fees

$83.96

 0 - 20,000 Gal  - 

$1.62 

per/thousand 

 $12.59 for 

addl can 

 15.08 base $16.87                                          

- based on lot size

 $11.69 for 

first can 

$102.35 With 8,000 

gallons of water 

usage for sewer 

calc

 0 - 10,000 Gal  - 

$1.55 

per/thousand 

 $6.73 for 

addl can 

City Water Use 0 Gallons Use 4,000 Gallons Use 8,000 Gallons Secondary Water Storm Sewer Garbage Green Waste Recycling Other Fees Total  Bill @ 8,000 GAL Notes

AVERAGE RATE $14.34 $16.26 $19.32 $20.51 $4.85 $16.13 $6.33 $4.79 $77.97

5.31                

Optional

$2.83 - 3.34             

street light fee 

depending on 

where you live

N/A INCLUDED IN 

GARBAGE FEE

SARATOGA SPRINGS

$15.08 $21.28 $27.48 $4.45  $15.99 

plus 2.88 

per 1000 

gallons of 

water 

used 

N/A

N/A N/A 6% TAX ON 

WATER AND 

SEWER CHARGES

NORTH ODGEN CITY

$6.49 $12.97 $19.45 NOT PROVIDED BY CITY    

SEPARATE PRIVATE 

COMPANY - $349 PER 

YEAR

$6.10 17.76$    

$4.61  $    19.25 

FARMINGTON CITY

$18.25 $18.25 $25.75 NOT PROVIDED BY CITY     

3 SEPARATE PRIVATE 

COMPANIES - RANGE 

FROM $100 - $250 FOR 

1/4 ACRE

CLEARFIELD CITY

$11.53 $15.01 $18.49 NO SECONDARY SERVICE 

IN MAJORITY OF CITY.  

WATER WITH CULINARY 

WATER - CAN ADD UP TO 

200 -300 TO BILL IN 

SUMMER

$2.00  $14.35 

OR 

$27.45 

EAST OF 

1900 

WEST 

N/A  6.20                   

OPTIONAL 

20.00$    N/A 3.85 OPT OUT 

WHEN 

STARTED 

NOW 

MANDATORY

$7.00

ROY CITY

$6.65 $9.73 $12.81 NOT PROVIDED BY CITY - 

ROY CONSERVANCY BILLS 

BASED ON SIZE OF LOT - 

1/4 ACRE = $182.78

N/A N/A

KAYSVILLE CITY

$21.00 $21.00 $21.00 $22.00                                          

- based on lot size

$8.00 19.25$    $6.50 3.85              

OPT OUT

14.70$    $6.00 4.75  

Mandatory

LAYTON CITY

$12.85 $12.85 $13.99 NOT PROVIDED BY CITY     

3 SEPARATE PRIVATE 

COMPANIES - RANGE 

FROM $175 - $250 FOR 

1/4 ACRE

$4.60 15.95$    

WEST POINT

$22.50 $22.50 $25.20 $22.50                                          

- based on lot size

$4.00

N/A N/A

$15.50                                           

- based on line size

$4.25

$6.50 N/A

CLINTON CITY

$12.50 $12.50 $12.50 10.70$    

SYRACUSE CITY

$16.50 $16.50 $16.50 13.30$    $3.50



  
 

Agenda Item # j Discussion regarding tentative Fiscal Year (FY) 

2013-2014 budget. 
 

Factual Summation 
 Any questions regarding this agenda item may be directed at Finance Director Stephen 

Marshall. 

 

 This agenda item has been added to give the Council an opportunity to ask any questions 

they may have concerning the tentative budget proposal. 

 

COUNCIL AGENDA 
May 28, 2013 



 
 

SYRACUSE CITY      
Syracuse City Council Special Meeting Agenda **AMENDED** 
May 28, 2013 – 7:00 p.m. 
City Council Conference Room 
Municipal Building, 1979 W. 1900 S. 

 
 
1. Meeting called to order 

Adopt agenda 
 

2. Approval of Minutes: 
a. Work Session of May 14, 2013 
b. Special Meeting of May 14, 2013  

 

3. Public Hearing: Proposed Ordinance 13-06, Amending Title Six, Chapter Five of the Syracuse City Code 
regarding irrigation service.  
 

4. Authorize Mayor Nagle to execute the “Addendum No. 4” to the Real Estate Purchase Contract with Irben 
Development.  

 

5. Authorize Mayor Nagle to execute the Memorandum of Understanding with Irben Development regarding 
Water Rights related to Stillwater Estates.  

 

6. Adjourn 
 

~~~~~ 
In compliance with the Americans Disabilities Act, persons needing auxiliary communicative aids and services for this meeting should contact the City Offices at 
801-825-1477 at least 48 hours in advance of the meeting. 

 

CERTIFICATE OF POSTING 

The undersigned, duly appointed City Recorder, does hereby certify that the above notice and agenda was posted within the Syracuse City limits on this 27th  
day of May 2013 at Syracuse City Hall on the City Hall Notice Board and at http://www.syracuseut.com/.  A copy was also provided to the Standard-Examiner on 
May 27, 2013. 
. 
 
  CASSIE Z. BROWN, CMC 
  SYRACUSE CITY RECORDER 
 
**Members of the public who desire to offer a thought or invocation at Syracuse City Council Meetings shall contact the City Administrator at least two (2) 
weeks in advance of the meeting.  Request will be honored on a first come, first serve basis.  In the event there are no requests to offer a comment or 
prayer, the Mayor may seek opening comment or prayer from those members of the public attending the meeting or from City Staff or City Council.   



  
 

Agenda Item #2 Approval of Minutes. 

 

Factual Summation  

Please see the draft minutes of the following meetings: 

a. Work Session of May 14, 2013 

b. Special Meeting of May 14, 2013 

 

Any question regarding this agenda item may be directed at Cassie Brown, City 

Recorder. 

 

 

COUNCIL AGENDA 
May 28, 2013 



1 

Minutes of the Syracuse City Council Work Session Meeting, May 14, 2013.  1 
   2 

Minutes of the Work Session meeting of the Syracuse City Council held on May 14, 2013, at 6:00 p.m., in the 3 
Council Work Session Room, 1979 West 1900 South, Syracuse City, Davis County, Utah. 4 
 5 

Present:  Councilmembers: Brian Duncan 6 
     Craig A. Johnson 7 
     Karianne Lisonbee  8 
       Douglas Peterson  9 
      10 
  Mayor Jamie Nagle 11 
  City Manager Robert Rice 12 
  City Recorder Cassie Z. Brown 13 
 14 
Absent:  Councilmember Larry D. Shingleton 15 
 16 
City Employees Present: 17 
  City Attorney Will Carlson 18 
  Finance Director Steve Marshall 19 
  Public Works Director Robert Whiteley 20 
  Parks and Recreation Director Kresta Robinson 21 
  Fire Chief Eric Froerer 22 
  Police Chief Garrett Atkin 23 
  Community Development Director Sherrie Christensen 24 
       25 
The purpose of the Work Session was for the Governing Body to hear a presentation from Davis Weber Canal 26 

Company re: 2013 water shortage; review agenda item 11, resolution amending treatment agreement with North Davis Sewer 27 

District (NDSD); discuss the proposed Fiscal Year (FY) 2014 budget – specifically the COPS grant; discuss agenda items 12 28 

and 13, proposed ordinances re: rezone requests; discuss the Syracuse Arts Council; and discuss Council business. 29 

  30 

6:00:57 PM  31 

Presentation from Davis Weber Canal Company re: 2013  32 

water shortage 33 

 Ivan Ray, General Manager, and Kent Spencer, Superintendent of Secondary Water Operations, provided the 34 

Council with a presentation regarding the anticipated 2013 water shortage for the Davis Weber Canal Company.   35 

6:17:10 PM  36 

 Council discussion regarding the presentation then commenced.   37 

6:21:53 PM  38 

DRAFT 

tre://ftr/?label=&quot;WorkSession&nbsp;Chambers&quot;?datetime=&quot;20130514180057&quot;?Data=&quot;a83cc399&quot;
tre://ftr/?label=&quot;WorkSession&nbsp;Chambers&quot;?datetime=&quot;20130514181710&quot;?Data=&quot;4b7ddb11&quot;
tre://ftr/?label=&quot;WorkSession&nbsp;Chambers&quot;?datetime=&quot;20130514182153&quot;?Data=&quot;ef01846d&quot;


City Council Work Session 

May 14, 2013 

 

 2 

 

 

City Attorney Carlson summarized his staff memo regarding the recommendation to adopt an ordinance imposing 1 

watering restrictions.  The Davis & Weber Counties Canal Company, the primary supplier to Syracuse’ irrigation 2 

(“secondary”) water system, announced that 2013 water shortages require it to drastically limit water distribution. Customers 3 

can expect to receive 25% to 40% less water this year than in previous years. Since Syracuse operates its own secondary 4 

water system, the City has a choice in how to impose this reduction on the residents of Syracuse. Even so, the City should 5 

plan to have only 60% of last year’s water to meet the secondary water needs of residents and visitors during this irrigation 6 

season. This requires the City to promptly implement some form of water conservation.  Traditionally, municipal water 7 

conservation efforts have focused on prescriptive regulations, such as rationing water for specific uses or requiring 8 

installation of specific appliances or infrastructure. Recent research suggests that market-based policies (charge higher rates 9 

for more use and lower rates for less use) are the most cost effective way to conserve, while prescriptive regulations are better 10 

at reaching a specific conservation level.  Since Syracuse has thus far declined to meter secondary water, it does not currently 11 

have an option of a market-based conservation strategy.  In the short term, rationing is the only viable conservation strategy 12 

available to the City. There are several approaches to water rationing, but most require a metered system. One approach that 13 

does not require meters is to restrict the uses to which water can be put, without specifically restricting the amount of water 14 

that a home can use. This approach usually is accompanied by a fine or possibly a brief jail sentence for violations. A typical 15 

ordinance in this strategy would be one prohibiting using sprinklers at all, or permitting sprinkling a lawn only during certain 16 

hours on certain days of the week. For longer term solutions, other options for water conservation include: encouraging gray 17 

water systems, requiring installation of moisture detectors and other water conserving technologies, or market driven 18 

strategies using meters.  Each of these strategies take time to fully implement and are unlikely to have a significant impact on 19 

the 2013 irrigation season, but should be considered by the Council to address the long term water needs of the City.  20 

Attached are three ordinances for immediate consideration by the Council: “Tucson,” “St. John’s River,” and “Ivory Tower.” 21 

Tucson is an emergency water conservation ordinance based on one adopted in Arizona municipalities. It allows the city to 22 

declare a water emergency and prohibit certain water uses within city limits during the emergency. St. John’s River is an 23 

ordinance encouraged by water management districts in Florida, limiting the days and times that watering can occur. Ivory 24 

Tower is a model ordinance written by attorneys and law professors that contains elements of both Tucson and St. Johns as 25 

well as other additions. Adopting any of these ordinances will provide tools to the City during this and future drought years.  26 



City Council Work Session 

May 14, 2013 

 

 3 

 

 

The City Attorney recommends the City Council select one or more of these ordinances for public hearing and adoption at 1 

the next meeting of the City Council on May 28, 2013. 2 

6:24:10 PM  3 

 Council discussion regarding a proposed ordinance then commenced.  The outcome was to continue discussion 4 

during the business meeting and determine whether to set a public hearing regarding the proposed ordinance.   5 

 6 

6:30:04 PM  7 

Review agenda item 11, resolution amending treatment  8 

agreement with North Davis Sewer District (NDSD) 9 

A staff memo from City Attorney Carlson explained in 2002, Syracuse renewed a contract with the North Davis 10 

Sewer District (the NDSD) that began in 1955. That renewed contract will expire in 2031. The NDSD is in the process of 11 

refunding several issues of General Obligation Bonds that will mature after 2031. Bond rating agencies have asked about the 12 

expiration date ending before the bond maturation date. If unresolved, this issue could affect the NDSD’s favorable bond 13 

rating and the interest rate available to the NDSD.  The NDSD has asked the Syracuse City Council to approve the attached 14 

resolution, which will approve an amendment to the 2002 contract. The proposed amendment would change the expiration 15 

date from 2031 to the latter of: 16 

1. 2062; OR 17 

2. Five years after the NDSD has fully paid or discharged all bonds; OR 18 

3. Five years after the NDSD has abandoned or transferred all interest in its facilities and improvements; OR 19 

4. Five years after the facilities and improvements are no longer useful in providing sewer service. 20 

Other than the extension, all other terms and conditions of the 2002 contract will remain the same. Approving the 21 

amendment will increase the time that Syracuse is obligated to work with the NDSD for sewer services. Denying the 22 

amendment may affect the NDSD’s bond rating and the interest the NDSD (and thus taxpayers) must pay on bonds. 23 

Three Appendices follow: the proposed resolution, the 2002 contract, and the NDSD’s proposed Amendment. 24 

Mr. Carlson reviewed his staff memo.   25 

6:31:51 PM  26 

tre://ftr/?label=&quot;WorkSession&nbsp;Chambers&quot;?datetime=&quot;20130514182410&quot;?Data=&quot;2ec567f1&quot;
tre://ftr/?label=&quot;WorkSession&nbsp;Chambers&quot;?datetime=&quot;20130514183004&quot;?Data=&quot;017346c7&quot;
tre://ftr/?label=&quot;WorkSession&nbsp;Chambers&quot;?datetime=&quot;20130514183151&quot;?Data=&quot;aaca27d8&quot;


City Council Work Session 

May 14, 2013 

 

 4 

 

 

 Council discussion regarding the issue commenced.  The outcome was to invite the NDSD to a future Council 1 

meeting to discuss the issue with them and determine the best way to move forward with the agreement.   2 

 3 

6:38:08 PM  4 

Discuss proposed FY 2014 budget – COPS grant 5 

A staff memo from Police Chief Atkin explained he would like to ask for Council approval to submit an application 6 

for the COPS hiring grant offered through the U.S. Department of Justice/Office of Community Oriented Policing Services 7 

(COPS).  The purpose of this grant is to enhance law enforcement’s capacity to prevent, solve, and control crime by 8 

providing funds for the hiring of additional officers.  Based on the size of Syracuse Police Department, the grant would allow 9 

him to apply for one additional police officer.  The grant funds provide 75 percent of the new officer’s salary and benefits for 10 

three years; however, the maximum federal funding is $125,000.  The City would be responsible for the remaining amount 11 

and for guaranteeing that the position will be fully funded for 12 months after expiration of the grant.  The following table, 12 

which assumes a five percent annual increase, shows the cost breakdown over three years.   13 

 Year 1 Year 2 Year 3 Total 

COPS grant $50,861.00 $53,404.00 $20,735.00 $125,000.00 

City funding $16,954.00 $17,801.00 $54,030.00 $88,785.00 

Totals $67,815.00 $71,205.00 $74,765.00 $213,785.00 

 14 

The City would have approximately $45,000 in initial equipment costs, which includes an equipped vehicle, for the 15 

new officer.  Over the life of the grant, the City would be responsible for approximately $134,000 in salary, benefits, and 16 

equipment; that amount is approximately 52 percent of what it would cost the City to fund this officer out of the City budget.   17 

Chief Atkin reviewed his staff memo.   18 

6:41:06 PM  19 

 Council discussion regarding the item commenced.  The outcome was to delay hiring a new police officer at the 20 

beginning of the Fiscal Year 2013-2014 budget year in favor of waiting to see if COPS grant funding is awarded.  If grant 21 

tre://ftr/?label=&quot;WorkSession&nbsp;Chambers&quot;?datetime=&quot;20130514183808&quot;?Data=&quot;9840e2ca&quot;
tre://ftr/?label=&quot;WorkSession&nbsp;Chambers&quot;?datetime=&quot;20130514184106&quot;?Data=&quot;850c95ab&quot;


City Council Work Session 

May 14, 2013 

 

 5 

 

 

funding is awarded the officer will be hired using that funding and if no funding is awarded the original proposal to hire a 1 

new officer in the upcoming budget year will be carried out.   2 

 3 

6:50:41 PM  4 

Discuss agenda items 12 and 13 re: rezone requests 5 

The following staff memos came before the Council for consideration: 6 

The Planning Commission held a public hearing on May 7, 2013 for the Lakeview Farms LCC rezone request. No 7 

public comment was provided during the hearing. The Planning Commission reviewed the request and agreed that the 8 

property as proposed is established as R-1 Residential on the General Plan Map and this rezone request is in conformance 9 

with the General Plan.  On May 7, 2013, the Syracuse City Planning Commission unanimously recommended that the 10 

Syracuse City Council approve the rezone request from Lakeview Farms LLC to rezone property located at 700 South and 11 

3000 West from the A-1 (Agriculture) to R-1 (Residential) Zone, with a finding that the property is designated in the City 12 

General Plan for said land use of R-1 Residential. No concerns were raised by the Planning Commission or members of the 13 

public.  The Syracuse City Planning Commission hereby recommends that the City Council adopt Ordinance 13-04 and 14 

approve the rezone request from Lakeview Farms LLC to rezone property located at 700 South & 3000 West from the A-1 15 

)(Agriculture) to R-1 (Residential), with a finding that the property is designated in the City General Plan for said land use as 16 

R-1 Residential. 17 

The Planning Commission held a public hearing on May 7, 2013 for the THR Investments rezone request. No public 18 

comment was provided during the hearing. The Planning Commission reviewed the request and agreed that the property as 19 

proposed is established as R-3 Residential on the General Plan Map and this rezone request is in conformance with the 20 

General Plan.  On May 7, 2013, the Syracuse City Planning Commission unanimously recommended that the Syracuse City 21 

Council approve the rezone request from THR Investments to rezone property located at 2150 South and 1070 West from the 22 

R-2 (Residential) to R-3 (Residential) Zone, with a finding that the property is designated in the City General Plan for said 23 

land use of R-3 Residential. No concerns were raised by the Planning Commission or members of the public.  The Syracuse 24 

City Planning Commission hereby recommends that the City Council adopt Ordinance 13-05and approve the rezone request 25 

from THR Investments to rezone property located at 2150 South & 1070 West from the R-2 (Residential) to R-3 26 

(Residential), with a finding that the property is designated in the City General Plan for said land use as R-3 Residential. 27 

tre://ftr/?label=&quot;WorkSession&nbsp;Chambers&quot;?datetime=&quot;20130514185041&quot;?Data=&quot;a02284a4&quot;


City Council Work Session 

May 14, 2013 

 

 6 

 

 

Community Development Director Christensen reviewed the staff memos.   1 

 2 

6:51:44 PM  3 

Discuss Syracuse Arts Council 4 

A staff memo from City Attorney Carlson explained Syracuse Arts Council has asked for city staff to help negotiate 5 

an agreement with the Syracuse Arts Academy and draft a general contract for volunteers. Syracuse Code §3.09.050 allows 6 

the Arts Council to use City employees as long as it is first “approved by a majority vote of the City Council.”  The City 7 

Attorney also recently received bylaws which were apparently adopted by the Arts Council. In reviewing Chapter 9 of Title 8 

3, the City Attorney has identified some inconsistencies between the practices of the Arts Council and the requirements of 9 

City Code. Following are three examples: 10 

1. City code states the Arts Council Board consists of an employee of the Recreation Department and at least 11 

five other members appointed by the Mayor with advice and consent of the City Council. Municipal Code 12 

§3.09.020(A). In contrast, the Arts Council bylaws grant membership to anyone who pays dues and creates 13 

a board of directors consisting of four people. Arts Council Bylaws Article III, §1 & Article IV, §1. 14 

2. Removal of officers is also addressed differently in the Bylaws and the Code. See Municipal Code 15 

§3.09.020.D & Bylaws Article IV, §3. 16 

3. City code requires the Arts Council to provide an annual report to the City Council and a long range plan 17 

for approval by the City Council. Municipal Code §3.09.040(A-C) 18 

The contradictions between municipal code and the practices of the Arts Council merit attention. The City Attorney 19 

recommends the City Council select one of three options: 1- Edit municipal code to comply with the general practices of the 20 

Arts Council, 2- Direct the Arts Council to adjust its practices to comply with municipal code, or 3- repeal Chapter 9 of Title 21 

3 with a commitment to provide future support to the Arts Council as a separate entity that collaborates with the City rather 22 

than as a committee of the City.  Regardless of the course of action selected by the City Council, the status quo relationship 23 

between the City and the Arts Council is unsustainable. Any of the above options will require staff time and potentially a 24 

public hearing. Accordingly, to comply with Municipal Code §3.09.050, the City Attorney recommends that the City Council 25 

vote on whatever course of action it directs the staff to pursue. 26 

Mr. Carlson reviewed his staff memo.   27 

tre://ftr/?label=&quot;WorkSession&nbsp;Chambers&quot;?datetime=&quot;20130514185144&quot;?Data=&quot;5b567408&quot;


City Council Work Session 

May 14, 2013 

 

 7 

 

 

6:53:31 PM  1 

 Council discussion regarding the item commenced.  The outcome was to continue the discussion during the business 2 

meeting in order to give staff direction regarding how to proceed.   3 

 4 

   5 

 The meeting adjourned at 7:00:06 PM.   6 

 7 

 8 

 9 

______________________________   __________________________________ 10 
Jamie Nagle      Cassie Z. Brown, CMC 11 
Mayor                                  City Recorder 12 
 13 
Date approved: _________________ 14 

tre://ftr/?label=&quot;WorkSession&nbsp;Chambers&quot;?datetime=&quot;20130514185331&quot;?Data=&quot;33a8b3ff&quot;
tre://ftr/?label=&quot;WorkSession&nbsp;Chambers&quot;?datetime=&quot;20130514190006&quot;?Data=&quot;dbe87920&quot;


1 

Minutes of the Syracuse City Council Regular Meeting, May 14, 2013.  1 
   2 

Minutes of the Special meeting of the Syracuse City Council held on May 14, 2013, at   p.m., in the Council 3 
Chambers, 1979 West 1900 South, Syracuse City, Davis County, Utah. 4 
 5 

Present:  Councilmembers: Brian Duncan 6 
     Craig A. Johnson 7 
     Karianne Lisonbee 8 
       Douglas Peterson  9 
      10 
  Mayor Jamie Nagle 11 
  City Manager Robert Rice 12 
  City Recorder Cassie Z. Brown 13 
 14 
Absent:  Councilmember Larry D. Shingleton 15 
   16 
City Employees Present: 17 
  City Attorney Will Carlson 18 
  Finance Director Steve Marshall 19 
  Public Works Director Robert Whiteley 20 
  Parks and Recreation Director Kresta Robinson 21 
  Fire Chief Eric Froerer 22 
  Police Chief Garret Atkin 23 
  Information Technologies (IT) Director TJ Peace 24 
  Community Development Director Sherrie Christensen 25 
   26 
Visitors Present:  27 
     28 

1.  Meeting Called to Order/Adopt Agenda 29 

7:09:01 PM  30 

Mayor Nagle called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m. as a regularly scheduled meeting, with notice of time, place, 31 

and agenda provided 24 hours in advance to the newspaper and each Councilmember.  She asked all visitors present if any 32 

wished to provide an invocation or thought; Police Chief Atkin provided an opening thought in celebration of National Law 33 

Enforcement Week.  Boy Scout Seth Hawkes, representing Troop 439, then led all present in the Pledge of Allegiance.   34 

7:13:41 PM  35 

 COUNCILMEMBER DUNCAN MADE A MOTION TO ADD PUBILC COMMENTS TO THE AGENDA AND 36 

ADOPT THE AGENDA WITH THAT CHANGE.  COUNCILMEMBER LISONBEE SECONDED THE MOTION; ALL 37 

VOTED IN FAVOR.  Councilmember Shingleton was not present when this vote was taken.   38 

 39 

7:14:04 PM  40 

3.  Public recognition of Corey Rowley for his work with the NUHOPE Program 41 

DRAFT 

tre://ftr/?label=&quot;City&nbsp;Council&nbsp;Business&nbsp;05-14&quot;?datetime=&quot;20130514190901&quot;?Data=&quot;2fbc004e&quot;
tre://ftr/?label=&quot;City&nbsp;Council&nbsp;Business&nbsp;05-14&quot;?datetime=&quot;20130514191341&quot;?Data=&quot;ca2f35ae&quot;
tre://ftr/?label=&quot;City&nbsp;Council&nbsp;Business&nbsp;05-14&quot;?datetime=&quot;20130514191404&quot;?Data=&quot;6ca58e93&quot;


City Council Regular Meeting 

May 14, 2013 

 

 2 

 

 

 The following letter of commendation was written by Mayor Nagle to Corey Rowley.  Mayor Nagle read the letter 1 

for the official record of the meeting. 2 

Corey, 3 

In recent months, our community has been hurt by a rise in suicides and suicide attempts. Based on your reputation 4 

and contacts, you were selected to implement a program that would reach across ages, genders, races, and socio-5 

economic backgrounds to help combat this problem. 6 

You helped the City partner with NUHOPE to provide training, funding, and support. You responded to all 7 

assignments and deadlines in a prompt and professional manner. Finally, you were instrumental in implementing a 8 

successful community training event. We may never know the full impact of your efforts; but we know for a fact 9 

that on the day of the training, one citizen who was contemplating suicide obtained the help they needed.  10 

You are a very valuable employee and your dedication to this project, as well as to your other duties, reflects 11 

positively on the City. It is with pride that we say thank you for a job well done.  12 

Sincerely, 13 

Jamie Nagle 14 

Mayor 15 

Mr. Rowley then received a round of applause from those in attendance.   16 

 17 

7:16:36 PM  18 

4.  Public recognition of Lance Jensen for his work with the JCAT Task Force 19 

The following letter of commendation was written by Mayor Nagle to Lance Jensen.  Mayor Nagle read the letter 20 

for the official record of the meeting. 21 

Lance, 22 

Recently, while working as part of the JCAT Task Force, you were exposed to the real and imminent danger of 23 

being confronted by an armed assailant. Acting in accordance with your training and State law, you appropriately 24 

used deadly force to stop the threat. In doing so, you protected yourself, your fellow officers, and citizens from 25 

potential harm.  26 

tre://ftr/?label=&quot;City&nbsp;Council&nbsp;Business&nbsp;05-14&quot;?datetime=&quot;20130514191636&quot;?Data=&quot;021d33cb&quot;


City Council Regular Meeting 

May 14, 2013 

 

 3 

 

 

There is no doubt that an officer involved shooting may be the most stressful event in a police officer’s career. We 1 

want you to know that the City is proud of the way you acted during, and after, this incident.  2 

You are a very valuable employee and your response during this deadly situation reflects positively on the City. It is 3 

with pride that we say thank you for a job well done. 4 

Sincerely, 5 

Jamie Nagle 6 

Mayor 7 

Mr. Jensen then received a round of applause from those in attendance.   8 

 9 

7:20:02 PM  10 

5.  Proclamation declaring May 2013 as “Military Appreciation Month” in Syracuse City 11 

 Mayor Nagle noted there are a couple of City employees that are also members of the military that are present this 12 

evening and she asked them to stand and be recognized.  She then asked City Manager Rice to read the Military Appreciation 13 

Month proclamation for the record as follows: 14 

WHEREAS, the Mayor and City Council of Syracuse City hereby recognize that: 15 

 The freedom and security that citizens of the United States enjoy today are direct results of the 16 

bloodshed and continued vigilance given by the United States Armed Forces over the history of our great nation; 17 

and 18 

 the sacrifices that such members of the United States Armed Forces and of the family members that 19 

support them, have preserved the liberties that have enriched this nation making it unique in the world community; 20 

and  21 

 the United States Congress, in two thousand and four, passed a resolution proclaiming May as National 22 

Military Appreciation Month, calling all Americans to remember those who gave their lives in defense of freedom 23 

and to honor the men and women of all of our Armed Services who have served and are now serving our Country, 24 

together with their families; and  25 

tre://ftr/?label=&quot;City&nbsp;Council&nbsp;Business&nbsp;05-14&quot;?datetime=&quot;20130514192002&quot;?Data=&quot;26b364b6&quot;


City Council Regular Meeting 

May 14, 2013 

 

 4 

 

 

 the months of May and June were selected for this display of patriotism because during these months, 1 

we celebrate Victory in Europe (VE) Day, Military Spouse Day, Loyalty Day, Armed Forces Day/Week, National 2 

Day of Prayer, Memorial Day, Navy Day, Army Day and Flag Day;  3 

NOW THEREFORE, I, Jamie Nagle, Mayor of the City of Syracuse do hereby proclaim May 2013 as Military 4 

Appreciation Month in Syracuse City and encourage all citizens to join me in showing our gratitude by the 5 

appropriate display of flags and ribbons during the designated period.  6 

   DATED THIS 14
th

 DAY OF MAY, 2013. 7 

7:23:17 PM   8 

 COUNCILMEMBER PETERSON MADE A MOTION TO PROCLAIM MAY 2013 AS “MILITARY 9 

APPRECIATION MONTH” IN SYRACUSE CITY.  COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON SECONDED THE MOTION; ALL 10 

VOTED IN FAVOR.  Councilmember Shingleton was not present when this vote was taken.   11 

7:23:36 PM  12 

 Mayor Nagle stated she wanted to thank everyone that has served in any branch of the military; she has lived outside 13 

of the United States in the past in a country that does not enjoy the same freedoms and she is so grateful for those people that 14 

wear a uniform every day to preserve and protect our rights.  She also thanked all Police Officers that are present this evening 15 

and she asked those present to give the armed service members, retired and current, as well as the City’s public safety officers 16 

a round of applause.   17 

 18 

7:24:52 PM  19 

2. Presentation of the Syracuse City and Wendy’s “Award for Excellence”  20 

to Kade Janes and Ashlie Albrecht. 21 

The City wishes to recognize citizens who strive for excellence in athletics, academics, arts and/or community 22 

service. To that end, in an effort to recognize students and individuals residing in the City, the Community and Economic 23 

Development, in conjunction with Jeff Gibson, present the recipients for the “Syracuse City & Wendy’s Award for 24 

Excellence”.  This monthly award recognizes the outstanding performance of a male and female who excel in athletics, 25 

academics, arts, and/or community service.  The monthly award recipients will each receive a certificate and be recognized at 26 

a City Council meeting; have their photograph placed at City Hall and the Community Center; be written about in the City 27 

tre://ftr/?label=&quot;City&nbsp;Council&nbsp;Business&nbsp;05-14&quot;?datetime=&quot;20130514192317&quot;?Data=&quot;54be40c2&quot;
tre://ftr/?label=&quot;City&nbsp;Council&nbsp;Business&nbsp;05-14&quot;?datetime=&quot;20130514192336&quot;?Data=&quot;a1ca86ac&quot;
tre://ftr/?label=&quot;City&nbsp;Council&nbsp;Business&nbsp;05-14&quot;?datetime=&quot;20130514192452&quot;?Data=&quot;f234fbff&quot;


City Council Regular Meeting 

May 14, 2013 

 

 5 

 

 

Newsletter, City’s Facebook and Twitter Feed, and City’s website; be featured on the Wendy’s product television; and 1 

receive a $10 gift certificate to Wendy’s.   2 

Mayor Nagle noted both students being recognized this month are from Syracuse High School and she read the 3 

award nomination provided by each of their respective teachers. 4 

Kade Janes 5 

Kade is an outstanding student and athlete. He excels in the classroom, basketball court, and lacrosse field. Kade is 6 

also an excellent example. He is kind to everyone – a true leader! 7 

Ashlie Albrecht 8 

Ashlie has a cumulative GPA of 4.0! She takes A.P. and C.E. (advanced placement and concurrent enrollment) 9 

classes and excels! We are lucky to have Ashlie and Kade at Syracuse High School.  10 

Both students received a round of applause from those present and shook the hand of each Councilmember and the 11 

Mayor.  Mayor Nagle stated she looks forward to this item on the agenda each month; recognizing the award recipients is the 12 

highlight of the meeting for her.   13 

 14 

7:28:33 PM  15 

6.  Approval of Minutes: 16 

The minutes of the Special Meeting of April 26, 2013 were reviewed. 17 

Councilmember Johnson stated page three of the minutes includes an error in that it states that the motion made by 18 

himself was voted upon unanimously by the Council.  He stated he actually withdrew his motion before it was voted upon.   19 

 COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON MADE A MOTION TO APPROVE THE MINUTES OF THE SPECIAL 20 

MEETING OF APRIL 26, 2013 AS AMENDED.  COUNCILMEMBER DUNCAN SECONDED THE MOTION; ALL 21 

VOTED IN FAVOR.  Councilmember Shingleton was not present when this vote was taken.   22 

 23 

7:29:11 PM  24 

7.  Public comments 25 

7:29:46 PM  26 

tre://ftr/?label=&quot;City&nbsp;Council&nbsp;Business&nbsp;05-14&quot;?datetime=&quot;20130514192833&quot;?Data=&quot;cb7e6ac8&quot;
tre://ftr/?label=&quot;City&nbsp;Council&nbsp;Business&nbsp;05-14&quot;?datetime=&quot;20130514192911&quot;?Data=&quot;e01503d6&quot;
tre://ftr/?label=&quot;City&nbsp;Council&nbsp;Business&nbsp;05-14&quot;?datetime=&quot;20130514192946&quot;?Data=&quot;2d0faadc&quot;


City Council Regular Meeting 

May 14, 2013 

 

 6 

 

 

 TJ Jensen stated he has two things he would like to talk about tonight; first is the situation with the current staffing 1 

levels of the Police Department.  He stated that it has been pointed out many times that there are times during the night when 2 

there is only one active duty officer on shift in the City; while the other officers are theoretically on call, that is not a good 3 

use of their time and it drastically increases public safety response time.  He stated this forces the City to rely on other cities 4 

for emergency response.  He stated this has bothered him since 2004 when the City only had 21,000 people in the City; the 5 

current population is now closer to 26,000 and there are times during the evening when one officer is covering 26,000 people 6 

and that is a scary statistic.  He stated the Police Chief was asking to hire two new officers in the next budget year and if 7 

those officers would be working the night shift he is very much in favor of increasing staffing levels.  He stated the citizens 8 

deserve that kind of protection and the City should not be “rolling the dice”.  He then stated the other thing he wanted to talk 9 

about is relative to water availability.  He stated Councilmember Lisonbee pointed out that he serves as the vice president of 10 

the Layton Canal Irrigation Company and they are currently at a 50 percent reduction level and levels will increased to full 11 

capacity in June for farmers; sometime after that the levels will again be reduced to 50 percent.  He stated it is a floating 12 

number right now because no one knows how much water is actually available.  He stated the bottom line is that the City will 13 

likely have 75 percent of the typical water levels in the past.  He stated that the idea of using addresses to determine which 14 

days of the week a resident should water is easy to enforce by a City employee; it is not perfect, but it is easy thought it will 15 

require a use of City resources.  He stated that Councilmember Lisonbee liked his idea of placing a red letter on someone’s 16 

lawn when they are guilty of watering when they should not be.  He stated that is obviously not a realistic option, but it is 17 

important for everyone to come together regarding this issue.   18 

7:32:24 PM   19 

 Brandt Shaw stated he understands the Council will be talking about the vote-by-mail option tonight.  He stated he 20 

has not had an opportunity to talk to individual City Councilmembers, but he has talked to many people and done his own 21 

research and has found it is a great way to increase ones electoral knowledge of the candidates as well as increase voter 22 

turnout and give people the opportunity to vote upon those offices that are less commonly known.  He stated it allows people 23 

to have their ballot in hand and conduct research with the candidate's names in front of them.  He stated he is aware there is a 24 

question about voter fraud and with minimal effort it is possible to conduct internet searches to determine how different 25 

counties have handled those issues; he read one story from Durham, North Carolina about the county election officers 26 

disqualifying up to 10,000 votes because they could not verify that the person casting the ballot was the actual voter.  He 27 

tre://ftr/?label=&quot;City&nbsp;Council&nbsp;Business&nbsp;05-14&quot;?datetime=&quot;20130514193224&quot;?Data=&quot;e3f7f622&quot;


City Council Regular Meeting 

May 14, 2013 

 

 7 

 

 

stated there are steps and protocol in place to prevent those kinds of things and he thinks the correct way for the City to move 1 

for its growing population and electorate is to move to a vote-by-mail initiative.   2 

7:34:09 PM  3 

 Ray Zaugg stated he would like to talk about water restrictions; he thinks the City should encourage conservation 4 

and discuss the seriousness of the water situation this year as well as provide information and guidance via the City 5 

newsletter, but he does not think it is necessary to go as far as creating an ordinance at this time.  He stated the City has been 6 

through this before and the types of restrictions that should be put in place, such as limiting water times to a half-hour, are 7 

somewhat dependent on the type of sprinkling system a resident has; that may not be effective.  He stated there is a potential 8 

resource for additional water and that is the effluent from the North Davis Sewer District (NDSD) plant.  He stated that is 9 

something the City should maybe file upon and consider how to pump the water into the City’s system to use as a secondary 10 

source.   11 

 12 

7:35:23 PM  13 

8.  Public hearing: 2013 Municipal Election – Vote by Mail. 14 

 A staff memo from the City Recorder explained on February 26, 2013 she presented information to the Council 15 

during a work session regarding the intent to conduct the 2013 Municipal Elections entirely by mail.  During the budget 16 

retreat on Saturday, April 27, there was a follow-up discussion regarding some concerns that have been expressed by 17 

residents regarding the options available to registered voters during the 2013 election. The Recorder was directed to follow-18 

up with Davis County to determine if they would be able to offer different voting options on Election Day. Davis County has 19 

committed to provide at least two electronic voting machines at City Hall on Election Day. Registered voters that have been 20 

mailed a ballot, but wish to cast their vote on the electronic voting machines can come to City Hall between the hours of 7:00 21 

a.m. and 8:00 p.m., surrender their ballot, and vote on the machines. People who do not have a ballot to surrender will also 22 

have the option of coming to City Hall to cast their vote on the machines, but their ballots will be provisional ballots and staff 23 

will work to determine if the voter is a registered voter eligible to vote in Syracuse City and that they have not already cast a 24 

paper ballot or voted in another jurisdiction.  One piece of exciting news is that Davis County has offered to conduct our 25 

Primary Election by mail for no additional costs over the cost we would pay for an electronic voting machine election. With 26 

this offer, the City will now be able to conduct both the Primary and General Elections by mail for the amount initially 27 

tre://ftr/?label=&quot;City&nbsp;Council&nbsp;Business&nbsp;05-14&quot;?datetime=&quot;20130514193409&quot;?Data=&quot;9a3a8673&quot;
tre://ftr/?label=&quot;City&nbsp;Council&nbsp;Business&nbsp;05-14&quot;?datetime=&quot;20130514193523&quot;?Data=&quot;74e5c782&quot;


City Council Regular Meeting 

May 14, 2013 

 

 8 

 

 

included in the budget.  Two County Election Officials, Pat Beckstead and Brian McKenzie, have been invited to attend the 1 

meeting to answer any questions or address concerns raised by the public or the Council during the public hearing.  The 2 

Council packet also includes a copy of a question and answer sheet provided by the County to address frequently asked 3 

questions regarding a vote by mail system.   4 

 Ms. Brown summarized her staff memo.   5 

7:39:23 PM  6 

 Cornell Bean stated the only potential positive thing he can see about a vote-by-mail system is the potential to 7 

increase voter turnout.  He stated that on the negative side, in the long term, there will be an increase in the cost of elections 8 

due to the cost of verifying all ballots by hand and the potential for voter fraud is very significant.  He added he believes the 9 

system destroys the integrity of voting due to undue influence when some people are casting their votes.  He stated that with 10 

regard to voter turnout, he works for an engineering firm and every once in a while it is necessary to hire new employees; 11 

when they seek new engineers they receive applications after which they perform phone screenings, review resumes, and 12 

conduct interviews with a panel.  He stated that based on the review of the interview panel new engineers are hired to work 13 

for the firm.  He stated that they want goo engineers just like “we” want good elected public officials.  He stated his firm does 14 

not send the resumes to everyone in the company to ask them to vote on the best candidate in hopes they will read the 15 

resumes of the applicants.  He stated instead they rely on those that have actually done their homework and talked to the 16 

interviewee and those are the people the firm listens to in order to determine who to hire.  He stated that relative to elections 17 

there are some voters that will read candidate literature, will attend meet the candidate nights, will attend City Council 18 

meetings, and will pay attention throughout the year, but sadly most will vote based on name recognition without carrying 19 

out their due diligence that is required for the City to get really good people into office.  He stated increasing the voter 20 

turnout of uneducated voters is not in the best interest of the City; it will not improve the quality of the people “we” elect and 21 

it will not improve the decisions that are made by the City.  He stated he would contend that increasing voter turnout is not 22 

the best thing for Syracuse City.  He stated he does not want to discuss voter fraud because he came up with way too many 23 

ways that voter fraud could occur and he does not want to give anyone any ideas.  He stated that regarding undue influence n 24 

voting, when voting in a booth there is only one person voting at a time, but by mail a husband, wife, parent, child, or 25 

influential neighbor could influence a voter.  Mayor Nagle informed Mr. Bean his three minute time period had expired. 26 

7:42:55 PM  27 

tre://ftr/?label=&quot;City&nbsp;Council&nbsp;Business&nbsp;05-14&quot;?datetime=&quot;20130514193923&quot;?Data=&quot;234ad2cd&quot;
tre://ftr/?label=&quot;City&nbsp;Council&nbsp;Business&nbsp;05-14&quot;?datetime=&quot;20130514194255&quot;?Data=&quot;a492ba86&quot;


City Council Regular Meeting 

May 14, 2013 

 

 9 

 

 

 Marian Bloomquist stated she started working as an election judge in the mid 1960’s and continued until the voting 1 

machines came along, at which time she decided it was time to retire.  She stated that year after year there were names of 2 

voters in the poll books that were known to the election workers as having been deceased or no longer living in the City.  She 3 

stated she found out the name of a registered voter was only purged from the list after 10-years of not voting.  She stated she 4 

phoned the Davis County Election Clerk’s office to ask that they explain to her the policy they follow regarding deceased 5 

voters and she was told that if a registered voter has not voted for two presidential election cycles they are sent a notice two 6 

different times to determine if they are still living at their address; this process takes about two years and if the County does 7 

not hear back from the voter, their name is placed on hold and they are ultimately removed from the register.  She stated with 8 

a mail only ballot system, there will have to be a ballot sent to every registered voter; this would be a waste of printed ballots 9 

and postage and she cannot help but think of all the ballots floating around with the names of deceased voters or of people 10 

that no longer live in the City.  She stated she feels this opens the door for fraud and she has large concerns about that.  She 11 

then asked how long after Election Day it will take before the City will learn the results of the vote.  She stated the clerk’s 12 

office will have to spend the time trying to verify all the signatures.  She stated she feels there are already many options 13 

available to voters that make it easy for them to vote; early voting and absentee ballots are a few.  She stated that if a person 14 

truly wants to vote they can find a way; many are just plain lazy or have voter apathy and do not care or appreciate the 15 

privilege of voting.  She stated she has always voted, but she does not want her ballot sent to her in the mail with her other 16 

junk mail.  She stated she wants to come to an election place, show her identification, and show that she is truly a person that 17 

is privileged to vote.  She stated she would encourage the Council to reconsider the decision regarding voting by mail.    18 

7:46:05 PM  19 

 Terry Palmer stated he would like to add to the comments that have been made; first he thinks people that would be 20 

voting by mail would be looking at name recognition and that would give an advantage to the incumbents.  He stated “we” 21 

should consider that.  He stated he agrees with Ms. Bloomquist about the voter lists that have many names of people that no 22 

longer live here and it leaves it open for those that are now living at former residents’ homes to vote their ballot and that  23 

opens voter fraud.  He stated the other problem he looks at is why Syracuse City would want to be the guinea pig; nobody 24 

else in Davis County is doing vote-by-mail.  He noted Farmington voted against the option five to zero and he personally 25 

cannot see why “we” would be the ones to try it.  He stated he would recommend that “we” do not vote for it tonight. 26 

7:47:26 PM  27 

tre://ftr/?label=&quot;City&nbsp;Council&nbsp;Business&nbsp;05-14&quot;?datetime=&quot;20130514194605&quot;?Data=&quot;701525cf&quot;
tre://ftr/?label=&quot;City&nbsp;Council&nbsp;Business&nbsp;05-14&quot;?datetime=&quot;20130514194726&quot;?Data=&quot;e3c22bb4&quot;


City Council Regular Meeting 

May 14, 2013 

 

 10 

 

 

 Pat Zaugg stated she has been an election judge for many years; she has worked with paper ballots and electronic 1 

ballots and she can also see tons of problems as mentioned.  She stated people already have the opportunity to vote by mail if 2 

they choose to do that, but “we” have gone to great lengths lately to require identification to vote; if someone does not bring 3 

their drivers license to the polls they do not get to vote, but now “we” just want to mail ballots out to people without any 4 

verification.  She stated that if she is living in a home where five eligible voters also live, what is to say that she will not fill 5 

out the five ballots and send them in.  She stated that at a polling location electioneering is prohibited and that means that no 6 

one can talk about candidates while in the polling place; there is no preventing that from occurring in someone’s home.  She 7 

stated her friend could call her and ask who to vote for and she could tell them who to vote for, but that would not happen in 8 

a public polling location.  She stated it was already mentioned that someone may have moved the new person living in their 9 

home may not be a registered voter, but they could cast their ballot, which is an illegal vote and there is no way the County 10 

can catch all of those issues.  She added she also sees problems with tallying votes; when she worked in elections where 11 

paper ballots were used it was a pain to go through every one of the ballots and tallying them and she cannot imagine the 12 

County doing that same thing and not having some errors occur.  She stated she has worked as an election judge for many 13 

years and the electronic voting system is not perfect, but it is far above the paper ballot and vote-by-mail system.  She stated 14 

she would encourage the Council to vote against the option; be as wise as Sunset and Farmington and say not to the option.   15 

7:49:55 PM  16 

 TJ Jensen stated he would like a question to be answered after the public hearing is closed.  He inquired as to the 17 

percentage of registered voters that voted in the last municipal election cycle.   18 

7:50:22 PM  19 

 Ray Zaugg stated he would like to echo what has been said and discourage any type of voting by mail.  He stated he 20 

would concentrate on one portion of the vote by mail system and that is signature verification; when he signs a ballot and 21 

sends it back in the County will be comparing his signature against his signature from his voter registration record.  He stated 22 

he registered to vote when he was 18, which was several years ago, and his signature from when he was 18 would likely not 23 

match his current signature and someone will be forced to make a decision about whether to count the ballot.  He asked how 24 

long it would take to verify signatures for each ballot.  He stated it may not be possible to find out who won an election for 25 

up to three months.  He stated he thinks photo identification is very important and it is a requirement for people to vote in 26 

Syracuse and it should remain that way.   27 

tre://ftr/?label=&quot;City&nbsp;Council&nbsp;Business&nbsp;05-14&quot;?datetime=&quot;20130514194955&quot;?Data=&quot;f9f8a6d0&quot;
tre://ftr/?label=&quot;City&nbsp;Council&nbsp;Business&nbsp;05-14&quot;?datetime=&quot;20130514195022&quot;?Data=&quot;89a7dec4&quot;


City Council Regular Meeting 

May 14, 2013 

 

 11 

 

 

7:51:30 PM  1 

 There being no additional persons appearing to be heard, Mayor Nagle closed the public hearing.   2 

7:51:46 PM  3 

 Mayor Nagle asked Brian McKenzie to address the questions that were raised during the public hearing.  Mr. 4 

McKenzie approached the Council and responded to each public comment that was made during the public hearing.  He also 5 

provided an overview of how ballots are verified in a vote-by-mail election.   6 

8:00:10 PM  7 

 Council discussion and debate regarding the issue then commenced.  Three members of the Council, 8 

Councilmembers Duncan, Johnson, and Lisonbee concluded they were not supportive of a vote-by-mail system.  9 

Councilmember Peterson and Mayor Nagle stated they were supportive of a vote-by-mail system.   10 

 11 

8:47:16 PM    12 

9.  Set public hearing for May 28, 2013: Proposed Ordinance  13 

13-06 amending Title Six, Chapter Five of the Syracuse City  14 

Code regarding irrigation service. 15 

A memo from City Attorney explained the Davis & Weber Counties Canal Company, the primary supplier to 16 

Syracuse’ irrigation (“secondary”) water system, announced that 2013 water shortages require it to drastically limit water 17 

distribution. Customers can expect to receive 25% to 40% less water this year than in previous years. Since Syracuse operates 18 

its own secondary water system, the City has a choice in how to impose this reduction on the residents of Syracuse. Even so, 19 

the City should plan to have only 60% of last year’s water to meet the secondary water needs of residents and visitors during 20 

this irrigation season. This requires the City to promptly implement some form of water conservation.  Traditionally, 21 

municipal water conservation efforts have focused on prescriptive regulations, such as rationing water for specific uses or 22 

requiring installation of specific appliances or infrastructure. Recent research suggests that market-based policies (charge 23 

higher rates for more use and lower rates for less use) are the most cost effective way to conserve, while prescriptive 24 

regulations are better at reaching a specific conservation level.  Since Syracuse has thus far declined to meter secondary 25 

water, it does not currently have an option of a market-based conservation strategy.  In the short term, rationing is the only 26 

tre://ftr/?label=&quot;City&nbsp;Council&nbsp;Business&nbsp;05-14&quot;?datetime=&quot;20130514195130&quot;?Data=&quot;2458c574&quot;
tre://ftr/?label=&quot;City&nbsp;Council&nbsp;Business&nbsp;05-14&quot;?datetime=&quot;20130514195146&quot;?Data=&quot;1c36aa10&quot;
tre://ftr/?label=&quot;City&nbsp;Council&nbsp;Business&nbsp;05-14&quot;?datetime=&quot;20130514200010&quot;?Data=&quot;a2dbb0ef&quot;
tre://ftr/?label=&quot;City&nbsp;Council&nbsp;Business&nbsp;05-14&quot;?datetime=&quot;20130514204716&quot;?Data=&quot;849e4650&quot;


City Council Regular Meeting 

May 14, 2013 

 

 12 

 

 

viable conservation strategy available to the City. There are several approaches to water rationing, but most require a metered 1 

system. One approach that does not require meters is to restrict the uses to which water can be put, without specifically 2 

restricting the amount of water that a home can use. This approach usually is accompanied by a fine or possibly a brief jail 3 

sentence for violations. A typical ordinance in this strategy would be one prohibiting using sprinklers at all, or permitting 4 

sprinkling a lawn only during certain hours on certain days of the week. For longer term solutions, other options for water 5 

conservation include: encouraging gray water systems, requiring installation of moisture detectors and other water conserving 6 

technologies, or market driven strategies using meters.  Each of these strategies take time to fully implement and are unlikely 7 

to have a significant impact on the 2013 irrigation season, but should be considered by the Council to address the long term 8 

water needs of the City.  Attached are three ordinances for immediate consideration by the Council: “Tucson,” “St. John’s 9 

River,” and “Ivory Tower.” Tucson is an emergency water conservation ordinance based on one adopted in Arizona 10 

municipalities. It allows the city to declare a water emergency and prohibit certain water uses within city limits during the 11 

emergency. St. John’s River is an ordinance encouraged by water management districts in Florida, limiting the days and 12 

times that watering can occur. Ivory Tower is a model ordinance written by attorneys and law professors that contains 13 

elements of both Tucson and St. Johns as well as other additions. Adopting any of these ordinances will provide tools to the 14 

City during this and future drought years.  The City Attorney recommends the City Council select one or more of these 15 

ordinances for public hearing and adoption at the next meeting of the City Council on May 28, 2013. 16 

 Mr. Carlson summarized his staff memo and asked for direction from the City Council relative to drafting an 17 

ordinance to consider on May 28, 2013.  18 

8:51:13 PM  19 

 Council discussion regarding the issue commenced.  The Council directed Mr. Carlson to draft an ordinance 20 

patterned after the St. John’s ordinance with certain modifications to be considered following a public hearing on May 28.   21 

8:57:14 PM  22 

 COUNCILMEMBER DUNCAN MADE A MOTION TO SET A PUBLIC HEARING FOR MAY 28, 2013 TO 23 

CONSIDER PROPOSED ORDINANCE 13-06 AMENDING TITLE SIX, CHAPTER FIVE OF THE SYRACUSE CITY 24 

CODE REGARDING IRRIGATION SERVICE.  COUNCILMEMBER PETERSON SECONDED THE MOTION; ALL 25 

VOTED IN FAVOR.  Councilmember Shingleton was not present when this vote was taken.   26 

 27 

tre://ftr/?label=&quot;City&nbsp;Council&nbsp;Business&nbsp;05-14&quot;?datetime=&quot;20130514205113&quot;?Data=&quot;9aedd4db&quot;
tre://ftr/?label=&quot;City&nbsp;Council&nbsp;Business&nbsp;05-14&quot;?datetime=&quot;20130514205714&quot;?Data=&quot;c155e5e5&quot;


City Council Regular Meeting 

May 14, 2013 

 

 13 

 

 

8:57:23 PM   1 

10.  Accept the tentative Fiscal Year (FY) 2013-2014 budget and set  2 

public hearing for June 11, 2013 to allow for consideration of adoption  3 

of a final budget. 4 

 A memo from Finance Director Marshall explained that as required by Utah Code Annotated 10-6-111, the City 5 

Budget Officer is required to prepare and file with the governing body a tentative budget for consideration. Each tentative 6 

budget shall be reviewed and tentatively adopted during any regular City Council meeting on or before the last meeting in 7 

May.  Also as required by Utah Code Annotated 10-6-112, each tentative budget adopted by the governing body and all 8 

supporting schedules and data shall be a public record in the office of the city auditor or the city recorder, available for public 9 

inspection for a period of at least 10 days prior to the adoption of a final budget.  Also as required by Utah Code Annotated 10 

10-6-113, the governing body shall establish the time and place of a public hearing to consider its adoption and shall order 11 

that notice of the public hearing be published at least seven days prior to the public hearing. The City Council could set a 12 

public hearing for June 11, 2013 to consider adoption of the final budget. 13 

 Mr. Marshall’s budget message explained The City Administration is pleased to present the Fiscal Year 2014 budget 14 

for your consideration.  The budget begins July 1, 2013 and ends June 30, 2014. This document reflects the efforts of the City 15 

Manager, department directors, their staff and each of you.  This year’s budget proposal requests funding for 3 new full-time 16 

positions. Administration is recommending adding a police officer, building inspector, and a storm/sewer maintenance 17 

worker.  These positions are all necessary as the City continues to grow and as additional responsibilities and workloads have 18 

increased.  The lion’s share of benefit costs that are paid for our employees is our health insurance.  Health insurance 19 

premiums have been increasing every year by 5-15% depending on the organization. Syracuse City has been on the lower end 20 

of that spectrum the last few years only seeing 4-8% increases. However, we know that this increase each year is not 21 

sustainable. Therefore, staff has been working hard to come up with new options that would save the city money long-term 22 

that would also be comparable to other cities.  We are looking at implementing a high deductible health insurance plan that 23 

would be offered alongside our traditional plan. Statistics show that high deductible plans are 10-15% less expensive than 24 

traditional plans. We are in process of educating our employees about this new plan. Implementing a high deductible plan 25 

this next fiscal year will benefit the city and employees now and in the future. By offering a high deductible health care plan, 26 

we hope that employees will become consumers of their health care costs and will help drive down costs that are incurred on 27 

tre://ftr/?label=&quot;City&nbsp;Council&nbsp;Business&nbsp;05-14&quot;?datetime=&quot;20130514205723&quot;?Data=&quot;da16aff2&quot;


City Council Regular Meeting 

May 14, 2013 

 

 14 

 

 

the plan. This should benefit the employees and the city because lower costs would mean lower increases in rates from year 1 

to year.  The goal would be to phase out the traditional plan over the next few years and make the high deductible plan the 2 

primary plan offered to employees.  This year’s budget proposal does not include any increases in property taxes. It does 3 

include a fee increase from the North Davis Sewer District of $1.5 per month. The monthly rate will increase from $13.30 to 4 

$14.80 per month. The City is seeing an increase in costs for our utilities that we offer citizens. As a result, City 5 

Administration and elected officials will be holding public meetings and discussions in the upcoming months to discuss 6 

potential rate increases for utilities. We encourage citizens to get involved with these discussions.  City Administration 7 

recognizes that rate increases are never popular and can increase the burden to our citizens; however, we all must realize that 8 

the cost of living in our city, state, and country continues to rise. The consumer price index increased 3.0% in Utah last year 9 

and 2.0% nationally.  This means that the cost to the city to provide utilities to our citizens is also increasing. City 10 

Administration has held rates constant over the past 3 years to try and ease the burden to our citizens during the economic 11 

recession. We realize that the economic recession is not over, but we are seeing signs of a recovering economy as discussed 12 

below.  Administration believes that our local economy is showing signs of recovery from the economic recession. This is 13 

evidenced by the 5.25% increase in sales tax revenues over the past 12 months.  Another key indicator of economic recovery 14 

is the increase in building permits.  Residential building permits issued in fiscal year 2013 are up approximately 84% over 15 

last fiscal year at this same time and new development plans within the city suggest that this increase will continue in the 16 

future. The City issued 118 building permits for new single family homes in fiscal year 2013. The City has issued 153 17 

building permits for new single family homes through April 2013 of this fiscal year and anticipates that number will be close 18 

to 200 building permits by the end of June 2013. This large increase in new home builds is a major factor why administration 19 

is proposing adding a new building inspector and a new police officer.  Commercial development is also taking off with 20 

Ninigret developing its land on the north end of the city. The first phase of their development is already underway. The 21 

utilities are being installed and the ground is being graded in preparation for Ninigret’s first major tenant. U.S. Cold Storage 22 

will soon be building a 300,000 square foot facility on the south portion of the property east of the power corridor. The 23 

Syracuse Family Fun Center will also be expanding it facilities to install a pool and additional bowling lanes. These are two 24 

of the major commercial developments that are planned to be completed in fiscal year 2014. Both of these commercial 25 

developments will generate more franchise tax revenue for the City as they will both use large amounts of electricity to 26 

conduct their business. This additional revenue has not been earmarked in this budget proposal, but could be used for road 27 



City Council Regular Meeting 

May 14, 2013 

 

 15 

 

 

improvements in the City.  Home sales state-wide are up 12.6% over last year. The unemployment rate in Utah is down to 1 

5.2% compared to the national average of 7.7%. Overall, Utah’s economy is one of the strongest economies in the nation. 2 

Utah is recovering from this recession faster than most other states in the nation.  Even with all of the positive trends noted 3 

above, we know that there is still some economic uncertainty on the horizon. The sequestration and mandatory furloughs on 4 

hill air force base are of valid concern. Administration believes that the biggest impact would be on sales tax revenue. 5 

Therefore, we have budgeted for no increase in our sales tax revenue for fiscal year 2014 even with the trend showing a 6 

positive 5.25% growth over the last 12 months. We have also built into our budget a conservative estimate on revenues and a 7 

liberal estimate on expenses. By doing this, we can alleviate some of the uncertainty and potential fluctuations that may come 8 

as a result of the sequestration.  The biggest issue facing the City is maintenance, repair, and upkeep of our infrastructure 9 

systems within the city. This include our roads, culinary water system, secondary water system, storm water system, sewer 10 

system, buildings, and street lighting system. Administration is currently investing over $7,100,000 into infrastructure repairs 11 

and improvements in the current fiscal year.  This large infusion of money into our infrastructure will greatly improve the 12 

efficiencies in our systems and will rehabilitate some of our older infrastructure that exists in our city today.  Administration 13 

is continually working on a 5 year capital improvement plan that will invest ongoing money into our infrastructure to ensure 14 

that the systems are properly maintained in the future. For the fiscal year 2014 budget, administration is proposing 15 

$1,848,000 in capital improvement projects.  Administration’s philosophy is to budget conservative on revenues and liberal 16 

on expenses. This philosophy has resulted in our general fund balance increasing from a low of 5% in FY2009 to a 17.3% at 17 

the end of FY2012. It has also allowed the City to fund an additional $636,000 to road projects in the last two fiscal years. 18 

State statute mandates that our general fund balance remain between 5and 25%. It is important to have a healthy fund balance 19 

that acts as a “rainy” day fund in case of any unforeseen circumstances such as economic downturns, etc. Administration 20 

with the consent of the governing body intends to earmark excess fund balance reserves to be used for future roads projects.  21 

Administration has brought forward a balanced budget for the General Fund which includes budgeted revenues and expenses 22 

of $7,523,840 or a decrease from prior year of $172,606 or 2.2%.  The major change over prior year is a decrease of one-time 23 

monies in fiscal year 2013 of $320,955 to fund roads. Administration will evaluate and determine if additional funds can be 24 

transferred to road projects at the completion of fiscal year 2013. Increased costs to fund the new positions for police officer 25 

and building inspector are budgeted at $137,973. The remaining change is due to benefit increases including health insurance 26 

increases, URS retirement increases, and workers compensation increases.  The City tracks each of its utilities it provides to 27 



City Council Regular Meeting 

May 14, 2013 

 

 16 

 

 

citizens separately in its own utility fund. The City has 5 utility funds and 1 internal services fund. Each of these funds should 1 

be self sustainable and should not rely on another fund or revenue source to cover its costs. The City is proposing hiring one 2 

new storm/sewer maintenance worker in the storm water operating fund to handle new compliance requirements mandated by 3 

the State of Utah. The cost of this worker is budgeted at $56,454.  The City has not raised rates in 3 years with the exception 4 

of the North Davis Sewer District rate increase last year. Over these three years costs have increased. Most of the utility funds 5 

shown below are now operating at a deficit which means that the fund will eventually run out of money to operate the utility. 6 

For this reason, administration and elected officials will be holding public meetings and discussions in the upcoming months 7 

to discuss potential rate increases for utilities.  These rate increases are needed to make the utility funds whole and allow the 8 

city to continue to maintain the utility systems now and in the future. We encourage citizens to get involved with these 9 

discussions.  This fiscal year, the City will reduce its outstanding debt by $823,000.  The proposed budget includes 10 

$1,336,553 for principal and interest payments on bonds; the bonds were secured at low interest rates ranging from 3 to 5 11 

percent.  The City just recently paid off its 1992A and 1992B water bonds in FY 2013 and there are no plans to issue any new 12 

debt in this budget proposal.  The City has been challenged for the last few years by reduced revenues and the need to meet 13 

citizen demands to maintain and expand City services.  This budget identified the financial operations of each of the City’s 14 

departments and gives direction to the Department Directors in coordinating the services their departments are providing with 15 

the goals of the City Council.  The administration is pleased to submit a budget that retains all employees and continues to 16 

maintain a sense of community for which we can all be proud.   17 

 Mr. Marshall summarized his staff memo and the budget message. 18 

9:07:28 PM  19 

 COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON MADE A MOTION TO ACCEPT THE TENTATIVE FISCAL YEAR (FY) 20 

2013-2014 BUDGET AND SET A PUBLIC HEARING FOR JUNE 11, 2013 TO ALLOW FOR CONSIDERATION OF 21 

ADOPTION OF A FINAL BUDGET.  COUNCILMEMBER PETERSON SECONDED THE MOTION. 22 

9:07:43 PM  23 

 Councilmember Duncan stated he recognizes development of the budget is an overwhelming task and to a large 24 

degree the Council must rely on Mr. Marshall and the other Department Heads to express their needs.  He stated that he was 25 

very appreciative of the detail and thought that went into the budget prior to the budget retreat meeting.  He stated he is still 26 

not sure that he understands it and there is a trust level that he must have in Mr. Marshall; this is full-time work for him and a 27 

tre://ftr/?label=&quot;City&nbsp;Council&nbsp;Business&nbsp;05-14&quot;?datetime=&quot;20130514210728&quot;?Data=&quot;709bafd8&quot;
tre://ftr/?label=&quot;City&nbsp;Council&nbsp;Business&nbsp;05-14&quot;?datetime=&quot;20130514210743&quot;?Data=&quot;71c3cbc4&quot;


City Council Regular Meeting 

May 14, 2013 

 

 17 

 

 

big chunk of the work load for Department Heads leading up to the budget season.  He stated he appreciates the attention that 1 

has been paid to the budget and he saw some interesting and innovative ideas that could be very helpful to the City and he 2 

thanked staff for that.  He stated he thought the budget retreat was very informative.  Councilmember Johnson agreed.   3 

9:09:01 PM  4 

  Mayor Nagle stated there has been a motion and second and she called for a vote.  ALL VOTED IN FAVOR.  5 

Councilmember Shingleton was not present when this vote was taken.   6 

 7 

9:09:05 PM  8 

11.  Proposed Resolution R13-10, authorizing and approving an  9 

amendment to the treatment contract with North Davis Sewer District  10 

(NDSD) and providing for an effective date. 11 

A staff memo from City Attorney Carlson explained in 2002, Syracuse renewed a contract with the North Davis 12 

Sewer District (the NDSD) that began in 1955. That renewed contract will expire in 2031. The NDSD is in the process of 13 

refunding several issues of General Obligation Bonds that will mature after 2031. Bond rating agencies have asked about the 14 

expiration date ending before the bond maturation date. If unresolved, this issue could affect the NDSD’s favorable bond 15 

rating and the interest rate available to the NDSD.  The NDSD has asked the Syracuse City Council to approve the attached 16 

resolution, which will approve an amendment to the 2002 contract. The proposed amendment would change the expiration 17 

date from 2031 to the latter of: 18 

1. 2062; OR 19 

2. Five years after the NDSD has fully paid or discharged all bonds; OR 20 

3. Five years after the NDSD has abandoned or transferred all interest in its facilities and improvements; OR 21 

4. Five years after the facilities and improvements are no longer useful in providing sewer service. 22 

Other than the extension, all other terms and conditions of the 2002 contract will remain the same. Approving the 23 

amendment will increase the time that Syracuse is obligated to work with the NDSD for sewer services. Denying the 24 

amendment may affect the NDSD’s bond rating and the interest the NDSD (and thus taxpayers) must pay on bonds. 25 

Three Appendices follow: the proposed resolution, the 2002 contract, and the NDSD’s proposed Amendment. 26 

Mr. Carlson reviewed his staff memo.   27 

tre://ftr/?label=&quot;City&nbsp;Council&nbsp;Business&nbsp;05-14&quot;?datetime=&quot;20130514210901&quot;?Data=&quot;55d1536b&quot;
tre://ftr/?label=&quot;City&nbsp;Council&nbsp;Business&nbsp;05-14&quot;?datetime=&quot;20130514210905&quot;?Data=&quot;dab3c43c&quot;


City Council Regular Meeting 

May 14, 2013 

 

 18 

 

 

9:09:24 PM  1 

 COUNCILMEMBER DUCAN MADE A MOTION TO TABLE CONSIDERATION OF PROPOSED 2 

RESOLUTION R13-10 AUTHORIZING AND APPROVING AN AMENDMENT TO THE TREATMENT CONTRACT 3 

WITH NORTH DAVIS SEWER DISTRICT (NDSD) AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE.  4 

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON SECONDED THE MOTION.  ALL VOTED IN FAVOR, WITH THE EXCEPTION OF 5 

COUNCILMEMBER PETERSON.  Councilmember Shingleton was not present when this vote was taken.   6 

9:09:45 PM  7 

 City Manager Rice stated staff will invite representatives from the NDSD to the next work session to address the 8 

concerns of the City Council relative to this proposed agreement amendment.  Councilmember Duncan stated his biggest 9 

concern is what the absolute needs of the NDSD are.   10 

 11 

9:10:34 PM    12 

12.  Proposed Ordinance 13-04 amending the existing zoning map of  13 

Title 10, Syracuse City Zoning Ordinance, by changing from Agriculture 1  14 

(A-1) Zone to Residential 1 (R-1) Zone the parcel(s) of property located  15 

at approximately 700 South 3000 West. 16 

A memo from Community Development Director Christensen explained the Planning Commission held a public 17 

hearing on May 7, 2013 for the Lakeview Farms LCC rezone request. No public comment was provided during the hearing. 18 

The Planning Commission reviewed the request and agreed that the property as proposed is established as R-1 Residential on 19 

the General Plan Map and this rezone request is in conformance with the General Plan.  On May 7, 2013, the Syracuse City 20 

Planning Commission unanimously recommended that the Syracuse City Council approve the rezone request from Lakeview 21 

Farms LLC to rezone property located at 700 South and 3000 West from the A-1 (Agriculture) to R-1 (Residential) Zone, 22 

with a finding that the property is designated in the City General Plan for said land use of R-1 Residential. No concerns were 23 

raised by the Planning Commission or members of the public.  The Syracuse City Planning Commission hereby recommends 24 

that the City Council adopt Ordinance 13-04 and approve the rezone request from Lakeview Farms LLC to rezone property 25 

located at 700 South & 3000 West from the A-1 )(Agriculture) to R-1 (Residential), with a finding that the property is 26 

designated in the City General Plan for said land use as R-1 Residential. 27 

tre://ftr/?label=&quot;City&nbsp;Council&nbsp;Business&nbsp;05-14&quot;?datetime=&quot;20130514210924&quot;?Data=&quot;2fc70252&quot;
tre://ftr/?label=&quot;City&nbsp;Council&nbsp;Business&nbsp;05-14&quot;?datetime=&quot;20130514210945&quot;?Data=&quot;4122862a&quot;
tre://ftr/?label=&quot;City&nbsp;Council&nbsp;Business&nbsp;05-14&quot;?datetime=&quot;20130514211034&quot;?Data=&quot;1416a1e2&quot;


City Council Regular Meeting 

May 14, 2013 

 

 19 

 

 

 Ms. Christensen reviewed her staff memo.   1 

9:11:22 PM  2 

 COUNCILMEMBER LISONBEE MADE A MOTION TO ADOPT PROPOSED ORDINANCE 13-04 3 

AMENDING THE EXISTING ZONING MAP OF TITLE 10, SYRACUSE CITY ZONING ORDINANCE, BY 4 

CHANGING FROM AGRICULTURE 1 (A-1) ZONE TO RESIDENTIAL 1 (R-1) ZONE THE PARCELS OF PROPERTY 5 

LOCATED AT APPROXIMATELY 700 SOUTH 3000 WEST.  COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON SECONDED THE 6 

MOTION.  ALL VOTED IN FAVOR.  Councilmember Shingleton was not present when this vote was taken.   7 

 8 

9:11:42 PM  9 

13.  Proposed Ordinance 13-05 amending the existing zoning map of  10 

Title 10, Syracuse City Zoning Ordinance, by changing from Residential 2  11 

(R-2) Zone to Residential 3 (R-3) Zone the parcel(s) of property located at  12 

approximately 2150 South 1070 West 13 

 A memo from Community Development Director Christensen explained the Planning Commission held a public 14 

hearing on May 7, 2013 for the THR Investments rezone request. No public comment was provided during the hearing. The 15 

Planning Commission reviewed the request and agreed that the property as proposed is established as R-3 Residential on the 16 

General Plan Map and this rezone request is in conformance with the General Plan.  On May 7, 2013, the Syracuse City 17 

Planning Commission unanimously recommended that the Syracuse City Council approve the rezone request from THR 18 

Investments to rezone property located at 2150 South and 1070 West from the R-2 (Residential) to R-3 (Residential) Zone, 19 

with a finding that the property is designated in the City General Plan for said land use of R-3 Residential. No concerns were 20 

raised by the Planning Commission or members of the public.  The Syracuse City Planning Commission hereby recommends 21 

that the City Council adopt Ordinance 13-05and approve the rezone request from THR Investments to rezone property 22 

located at 2150 South & 1070 West from the R-2 (Residential) to R-3 (Residential), with a finding that the property is 23 

designated in the City General Plan for said land use as R-3 Residential. 24 

 Ms. Christensen reviewed her staff memo.   25 

9:12:07 PM  26 

tre://ftr/?label=&quot;City&nbsp;Council&nbsp;Business&nbsp;05-14&quot;?datetime=&quot;20130514211122&quot;?Data=&quot;368b2d05&quot;
tre://ftr/?label=&quot;City&nbsp;Council&nbsp;Business&nbsp;05-14&quot;?datetime=&quot;20130514211142&quot;?Data=&quot;e0d2ce18&quot;
tre://ftr/?label=&quot;City&nbsp;Council&nbsp;Business&nbsp;05-14&quot;?datetime=&quot;20130514211207&quot;?Data=&quot;c2127bdf&quot;


City Council Regular Meeting 

May 14, 2013 

 

 20 

 

 

 COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON MADE A MOTION TO ADOPT PROPOSED ORDINANCE 13-05 1 

AMENDING THE EXISTING ZONING MAP OF TITLE 10, SYRACUSE CITY ZONING ORDINANCE, BY 2 

CHANGING FROM RESIDENTIAL 2 (R-2) TO RESIDENTIAL 3 (R-3) ZONE THE PARCEL(S) OF PROPERTY 3 

LOCATED AT APPROXIMATELY 2150 SOUTH 1070 WEST.  COUNCILMEMBER DUNCAN SECONDED THE 4 

MOTION. 5 

9:12:29 PM  6 

 Councilmember Duncan stated it is important to note for the record the reasons the Council is approving this 7 

ordinance.  Councilmember Johnson stated the discussion took place during the work session and both proposed rezones 8 

considered this evening are in accordance with the General Plan of the City.  Councilmember Duncan stated he likes for that 9 

information to be on the record.  Mr. Carlson stated staff includes information in each ordinance that provides reasons for 10 

adopting the ordinance itself, so that creates a case record every time an ordinance is adopted.   11 

9:13:45 PM  12 

 Mayor Nagle stated there has been a motion and second to adopt the proclamation and she called for a vote.  ALL 13 

VOTED IN FAVOR.  Councilmember Shingleton was not present when this vote was taken.   14 

 15 

9:13:48 PM  16 

14.  Vote to direct the staff’s course of action regarding the Arts Council. 17 

A staff memo from City Attorney Carlson explained Syracuse Arts Council has asked for city staff to help negotiate 18 

an agreement with the Syracuse Arts Academy and draft a general contract for volunteers. Syracuse Code §3.09.050 allows 19 

the Arts Council to use City employees as long as it is first “approved by a majority vote of the City Council.”  The City 20 

Attorney also recently received bylaws which were apparently adopted by the Arts Council. In reviewing Chapter 9 of Title 21 

3, the City Attorney has identified some inconsistencies between the practices of the Arts Council and the requirements of 22 

City Code. Following are three examples: 23 

1. City code states the Arts Council Board consists of an employee of the Recreation Department and at least 24 

five other members appointed by the Mayor with advice and consent of the City Council. Municipal Code 25 

§3.09.020(A). In contrast, the Arts Council bylaws grant membership to anyone who pays dues and creates 26 

a board of directors consisting of four people. Arts Council Bylaws Article III, §1 & Article IV, §1. 27 

tre://ftr/?label=&quot;City&nbsp;Council&nbsp;Business&nbsp;05-14&quot;?datetime=&quot;20130514211229&quot;?Data=&quot;6f05ade7&quot;
tre://ftr/?label=&quot;City&nbsp;Council&nbsp;Business&nbsp;05-14&quot;?datetime=&quot;20130514211345&quot;?Data=&quot;3f20f1dc&quot;
tre://ftr/?label=&quot;City&nbsp;Council&nbsp;Business&nbsp;05-14&quot;?datetime=&quot;20130514211348&quot;?Data=&quot;cd4a2901&quot;


City Council Regular Meeting 

May 14, 2013 

 

 21 

 

 

2. Removal of officers is also addressed differently in the Bylaws and the Code. See Municipal Code 1 

§3.09.020.D & Bylaws Article IV, §3. 2 

3. City code requires the Arts Council to provide an annual report to the City Council and a long range plan 3 

for approval by the City Council. Municipal Code §3.09.040(A-C) 4 

The contradictions between municipal code and the practices of the Arts Council merit attention. The City Attorney 5 

recommends the City Council select one of three options: 1- Edit municipal code to comply with the general practices of the 6 

Arts Council, 2- Direct the Arts Council to adjust its practices to comply with municipal code, or 3- repeal Chapter 9 of Title 7 

3 with a commitment to provide future support to the Arts Council as a separate entity that collaborates with the City rather 8 

than as a committee of the City.  Regardless of the course of action selected by the City Council, the status quo relationship 9 

between the City and the Arts Council is unsustainable. Any of the above options will require staff time and potentially a 10 

public hearing. Accordingly, to comply with Municipal Code §3.09.050, the City Attorney recommends that the City Council 11 

vote on whatever course of action it directs the staff to pursue. 12 

Mr. Carlson reviewed his staff memo.   13 

9:14:59 PM  14 

 Council discussion regarding the issue commenced with the Council directing staff to invite the Chair of the Arts 15 

Council to attend a future Council meeting to discuss the relevant issues.   16 

9:17:17 PM  17 

 COUNCILMEMBER LISONBEE MADE A MOTION TO GIVE THE CITY ATTORNEY THE AUTHORITY TO 18 

PROVIDE OPEN AND PUBLIC MEETINGS ACT TRAINING TO THE ARTS COUNCIL AND ASSIST IN 19 

NEGOTIATION OF CONTRACTS.  COUNCILMEMBER DUNCAN SECONDED THE MOTION; ALL VOTED IN 20 

FAVOR.  Councilmember Shingleton was not present when this vote was taken.   21 

 22 

9:17:41 PM  23 

15.  Councilmember Reports 24 

 Councilmember Johnson’s report began at 9:17:45 PM.  He was followed by Councilmembers Duncan, Lisonbee, 25 

and Peterson. 26 

tre://ftr/?label=&quot;City&nbsp;Council&nbsp;Business&nbsp;05-14&quot;?datetime=&quot;20130514211459&quot;?Data=&quot;b46f94d8&quot;
tre://ftr/?label=&quot;City&nbsp;Council&nbsp;Business&nbsp;05-14&quot;?datetime=&quot;20130514211717&quot;?Data=&quot;41aea61e&quot;
tre://ftr/?label=&quot;City&nbsp;Council&nbsp;Business&nbsp;05-14&quot;?datetime=&quot;20130514211741&quot;?Data=&quot;34086871&quot;
tre://ftr/?label=&quot;City&nbsp;Council&nbsp;Business&nbsp;05-14&quot;?datetime=&quot;20130514211745&quot;?Data=&quot;bb6aff26&quot;


City Council Regular Meeting 

May 14, 2013 

 

 22 

 

 

 1 

9:25:49 PM  2 

16.  Mayor’s report. 3 

 Mayor Nagle’s report began at 9:25:49 PM . 4 

 5 

9:29:36 PM  6 

17.  City Manager’s Report. 7 

 City Manager Rice’s stated he had nothing to report. 8 

 9 

9:29:55 PM  10 

18.  Consideration of adjourning into Closed Executive Session  11 

pursuant to the provisions of Section 52-4-205 of the Open  12 

and Public Meetings Law for the purpose of a strategy session to  13 

discuss the sale of real property, including water rights or water  14 

shares directly south of Jensen Park. 15 

9:29:54 PM  16 

COUNCILMEMBER DUNCAN MOVED THE COUNCIL ADJOURN INTO A CLOSED EXECUTIVE 17 

SESSION PURSUANT TO THE PROVISIONS OF SECTION 52-4-205 OF THE OPEN AND PUBLIC MEETINGS LAW 18 

FOR THE PURPOSE OF A STRATEGY SESSION TO DISCUSS THE SALE OF REAL PROPERTY, INCLUDING 19 

WATER RIGHTS OR WATER SHARES DIRECTLY SOUTH OF JENSEN PARK.  COUNCILMEMBER PETERSON 20 

SECONDED THE MOTION, WITH THE FOLLOWING ROLL CALL VOTE:  VOTING “AYE” – COUNCILMEMBERS 21 

DUNCAN, JOHNSON, LISONBEE, AND PETERSON.  VOTING “NO” – NONE.    Councilmember Shingleton was not 22 

present when this vote was taken.   23 

 The meeting adjourned into Closed Executive Session at 9:30:00 PM   p.m. 24 

 The meeting reconvened at 10:40 p.m. 25 

tre://ftr/?label=&quot;City&nbsp;Council&nbsp;Business&nbsp;05-14&quot;?datetime=&quot;20130514212549&quot;?Data=&quot;58aefce0&quot;
tre://ftr/?label=&quot;City&nbsp;Council&nbsp;Business&nbsp;05-14&quot;?datetime=&quot;20130514212549&quot;?Data=&quot;58aefce0&quot;
tre://ftr/?label=&quot;City&nbsp;Council&nbsp;Business&nbsp;05-14&quot;?datetime=&quot;20130514212936&quot;?Data=&quot;4a67c941&quot;
tre://ftr/?label=&quot;City&nbsp;Council&nbsp;Business&nbsp;05-14&quot;?datetime=&quot;20130514212955&quot;?Data=&quot;8e8b85b2&quot;
tre://ftr/?label=&quot;City&nbsp;Council&nbsp;Business&nbsp;05-14&quot;?datetime=&quot;20130514212954&quot;?Data=&quot;3637e2d7&quot;
tre://ftr/?label=&quot;City&nbsp;Council&nbsp;Business&nbsp;05-14&quot;?datetime=&quot;20130514213000&quot;?Data=&quot;19159426&quot;


City Council Regular Meeting 

May 14, 2013 

 

 23 

 

 

 1 

 2 

 At 10:41 p.m. COUNCILMEMBER LISONBEE MADE A MOTION TO ADJOURN.  COUNCILMEMBER 3 

PETERSON SECONDED THE MOTION; ALL VOTED IN FAVOR.   4 

 5 
 6 
 7 

______________________________   __________________________________ 8 
Jamie Nagle      Cassie Z. Brown, CMC 9 
Mayor                                  City Recorder 10 
 11 
Date approved: __________________ 12 



  
 

Agenda Item #3 Public Hearing: Proposed Ordinance 13-06, 

Amending Title Six, Chapter Five of the Syracuse 

City Code regarding irrigation service. 

 

Factual Summation  

• Questions may be directed at Public Works Director Robert Whiteley or City 

Attorney Will Carlson.  

• Please see the attached memo, proposed secondary water user notice, and 

proposed Ordinance 13-06.  

  

 

COUNCIL AGENDA 
May 28, 2013 



 

 

 

          
MEMORANDUM 

 
  To: Mayor and City Council  

From: City Attorney, William J. Carlson  
Date: May 28, 2013  

  Subject: Water Conservation Ordinance 
 

 

 

The Davis & Weber Counties Canal Company, the primary supplier to 
Syracuse’  pressurized irrigation (“secondary”) water system, announced that 
2013 water shortages require it to drastically limit water distribution. Customers 
can expect to receive 25% to 40% less water this year than in previous years. 
Since Syracuse operates its own secondary water system, the City has a choice 
in how to impose this reduction on the residents of Syracuse. Even so, the City 
should plan to have only 60% of last year’s water to meet the secondary water 
needs of residents and visitors during this irrigation season. This requires the 
City to promptly implement some form of water conservation. 
 

Traditionally, municipal water conservation efforts have focused on 
prescriptive regulations, such as rationing water for specific uses or requiring 
installation of specific appliances or infrastructure. Recent research suggests 
that market-based policies (charge higher rates for more use and lower rates for 
less use) are the most cost effective way to conserve, while prescriptive 
regulations are better at reaching a specific conservation level. See “Comparing 
price and nonprice approaches to urban water conservation,” Water Resources Research, 
Volume 45, W04301. Since Syracuse has thus far declined to meter secondary 
water, it does not currently have an option of a market-based conservation 
strategy. 
 

At the meeting on May 14, 2013, the City Council expressed interest in 
an ordinance recommended by the St. Johns River Water Management District 
in Florida. This ordinance allows watering two days per week for up to thirty 
minute increments, subject to several exceptions. Four concerns were 
expressed: 

1. Agricultural irrigation needs to be exempt. 
2. Any penalties should only be applicable in drought years. 
3. Moisture detectors on sprinkler systems may be prohibitively 

expensive.  
4. People should be trusted to self regulate without an ordinance. 



 

 

 

Regarding agriculture, in the draft ordinance landscape irrigation is 
defined to exclude “agricultural crops, nursery plants, cemeteries, golf course 
greens, tees, fairways, primary roughs, and vegetation associated with 
recreational areas such as playgrounds, football, baseball and soccer fields.” 
Accordingly, farms will not be regulated by the proposed ordinance. 

 
An enforcement trigger has also been added to the proposed ordinance. 

The proposed ordinance attaches no penalty for watering outside the schedule 
“unless the City Council has passed a resolution declaring a drought.” The 
ordinance allows the Council to pass such a resolution upon recommendation 
of the Public Works Director and limits the life span of the resolution to “the 
end of Daylight Savings Time for that calendar year or passage of a nullifying 
resolution by the City Council.” 

 
Basic research on moisture detectors indicates that costs can be minimal. 

For example, Amazon is selling a Hunter Solar Sync Rain Sensor for about $77. 
 
Finally, whether to regulate secondary water conservation or simply 

educate is a policy decision for the Council to make. Even so, as operators of a 
secondary water system, the City has a duty to ensure that the system operates. 
The City has been informed that its water supply will be substantially lower this 
year than in past years. Failure to take action to conserve water will result in a 
drained and damaged system and substantial expense to the city.  

 
###### 
 

 



 

2013 Secondary Water User Notice 

Syracuse City has been notified by our irrigation water supplier that there are water shortages 

amounting to 25% to 40% this year. This shortage is a result of low snow pack in the high 

mountain elevations during the winter seasons of 2011/12 and 2012/13. Many of the cities in 

this area are responding to this watershed shortage by implementing watering schedules. 

Because our water delivery has been reduced, we request our residential water users in 

Syracuse City to implement water conservation practices by following the schedule, as 

indicated: 

Day of the 

week House Number 

Max. watering 

time / setting 

Monday Odd 20 - 30 min 

Tuesday Even 20 - 30 min 

Wednesday Other 20 - 30 min 

Thursday Odd 20 - 30 min 

Friday Even 20 - 30 min 

Saturday Other 20 - 30 min 

Sunday No watering 0 min 

 

We strongly recommend that good judgment be used when utilizing secondary water. We have 

included some simple considerations that may help us be more responsible in conserving this 

precious resource. 

1. Apply water anytime between 6:00 PM and 10:00 AM when temperatures are lower. 

2. Adjust water sprinklers and spray heads to prevent overspray that is wasted into the 

gutters, streets and storm drains. 

3. Periodically check for leaks in the sprinkler system and make repairs as necessary.  

4. Hose watering should not be left unattended. 

5. Turn off sprinklers during moderate to high winds, during and immediately after 

rainstorm downpours as well as mild rainstorm events lasting more than 20 minutes. 

6. Small garden areas may be supplemented more frequently with water using 

conscientious efforts to remain attentive. 

7. New landscape areas and areas where grass must be established from seed are able to 

water more frequently once approval is obtained from the city in advance. 

 



Ordinance 13-06 1 

An Ordinance Amending Chapter 5 of Title 6 Regarding Irrigation Service 2 

WHEREAS, the state legislature has granted general welfare power to the City Council, 3 

independent, apart from, and in addition to, its specific grants of legislative authority, 4 

which enables the City Council to pass ordinances as are necessary and proper to 5 

provide for the safety, promote the prosperity, improve the peace and good order, 6 

comfort, and convenience of the City and its inhabitants, and for the protection of 7 

property in the City; and 8 

WHEREAS, one of the ways the City Council has exercised its legislative authority is 9 

through the creation of a secondary water system providing for the irrigation and 10 

secondary water needs of the residents of Syracuse; and 11 

WHEREAS, the primary supplier of water to the City secondary water system is Weber & 12 

Davis Counties Canal Company (WDCCC); and 13 

WHEREAS, WDCCC issued a notice on May 1, 2013 that water shortages are inevitable due 14 

to low snow pack in the high mountain elevations during the 2013 winter, the drought 15 

of 2012, the Echo Reservoir Safety of Dams construction, and low reservoir storage 16 

carryovers; and 17 

WHEREAS, in that May 1 notice WDCCC estimated water shortages could be as much as 18 

40% less water than last year for the 180 day outdoor irrigation water season; and 19 

WHEREAS, as the operator of the secondary water system for Syracuse, it behooves the 20 

City Council to implement regulations to address the inevitable water shortages; 21 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF SYRACUSE, 22 

UTAH, Sections 4-05-200 through 4-05-280 of the Syracuse Municipal Code are 23 

hereby enacted as follows: 24 

SECTION 1: 25 

4-05-200  Intent and Purpose. It is the intent and purpose of this Part to implement 26 

procedures that promote water conservation through more efficient landscape 27 

irrigation.  28 

4-05-210 Definitions. For the purposes of this part: 29 



“Landscape irrigation” means the outside watering of plants in a landscape such as 30 

shrubbery, trees, lawns, grass, ground covers, plants, vines, gardens and other 31 

such flora that are situated in such diverse locations as residential areas, public, 32 

commercial, and industrial establishments, and public medians and rights-of-33 

way. “Landscape irrigation” does not include agricultural crops, nursery plants, 34 

cemeteries, golf course greens, tees, fairways, primary roughs, and vegetation 35 

associated with recreational areas such as playgrounds, football, baseball and 36 

soccer fields.  37 

“Non-residential landscape irrigation” means the irrigation of landscape not included 38 

within the definition of “residential landscape irrigation,” such as that 39 

associated with public, commercial and industrial property, common areas not 40 

assigned to a specific unit, and public medians and rights-of-way.  41 

 “Residential landscape irrigation” means the irrigation of landscape associated with 42 

any housing unit having sanitary and kitchen facilities designed to accommodate 43 

one or more residents, including multiple housing units and mobile homes. 44 

4-05-230  Landscape Irrigation Schedules 45 

(1)When Daylight Savings Time is in effect, landscape irrigation should occur 46 

only in accordance with the following irrigation schedule:  47 

(a) Residential landscape irrigation at odd numbered addresses may occur on 48 

Monday and Thursday, but not between 10:00 a.m. and 6:00 p.m.; and  49 

(b) Residential landscape irrigation at even numbered addresses may occur 50 

on Tuesday and Friday, but not between 10:00 a.m. and 6:00 p.m.; and  51 

(c) Non-residential landscape irrigation and residential landscape irrigation at 52 

addresses without a number may occur on Wednesday and Saturday, but 53 

not between 10:00 a.m. and 6:00 p.m.; and  54 

(d) Landscape irrigation should not last more than 30 minutes per irrigation 55 

zone on each day that irrigation occurs.  56 

(2) All landscape irrigation should be limited in amount to only that necessary 57 

to meet landscape needs.  58 

4-05-240  Exceptions to the Landscape Irrigation Schedule. Landscape irrigation 59 

shall be subject to the following irrigation schedule exceptions: 60 



(1) Irrigation using a micro-spray, micro-jet, drip or bubbler irrigation system is 61 

allowed anytime.  62 

(2) Irrigation of new landscape is allowed at any time of day on any day for the 63 

initial 30 days and every other day for the next 30 days for a total of one 60-64 

day period, provided that the irrigation is limited to the minimum amount 65 

necessary for such landscape establishment.  66 

(3)Watering in of chemicals, including insecticides, pesticides, fertilizers, 67 

fungicides, and herbicides, when required by law, the manufacturer, or best 68 

management practices, is allowed at any time of day on any day within 24 69 

hours of application. Watering in of chemicals shall be limited to the amount 70 

required by law, the manufacturer, or best management practices. 71 

(4) Irrigation systems may be operated at any time of day on any day for 72 

maintenance and repair purposes not to exceed 20 minutes per hour per 73 

zone.  74 

(5) Irrigation using a hand-held hose equipped with an automatic shut-off 75 

nozzle is allowed at any time of day on any day.  76 

(6) Discharge of water from a water-to-air air-conditioning unit or other water- 77 

dependent cooling system is not limited.  78 

(7) The use of water from a reclaimed water system is allowed anytime. For the 79 

purpose of this paragraph, a reclaimed water system includes systems in 80 

which the primary source is reclaimed water, which may or may not be 81 

supplemented from another source during peak demand periods.  82 

4-05-250 Additional Regulations. Any person who purchases and installs an automatic 83 

landscape irrigation system must properly install, maintain, and operate 84 

technology that inhibits or interrupts operation of the system during periods of 85 

sufficient moisture.  86 

4-05-260 Declaration of Drought Authorized. The City Council, upon the 87 

recommendation of the Public Works Director, is hereby authorized to pass a 88 

resolution declaring a drought during any irrigation season and to implement 89 

penalties as set forth in section 4-05-290. Any resolution declaring a drought 90 

shall remain in effect until the earlier of the end of Daylight Savings Time for 91 

that calendar year or passage of a nullifying resolution by the City Council. 92 



4-05-270 Variance From Specific Day of the Week Limitations. A variance from the 93 

specific landscape irrigation days or day set forth in Section 4-05-230 may be 94 

granted by the City Manager if strict application of the scheduled days or day 95 

would lead to unreasonable or unfair results in particular instances, provided 96 

that the applicant demonstrates with particularity that compliance with the 97 

scheduled days or day will result in a substantial economic, health or other 98 

hardship on the applicant requesting the variance or those served by the 99 

applicant. Where a contiguous property is larger than one acre, a variance may 100 

be granted hereunder so that each acre may be irrigated on different days or day 101 

than other acres of the property. However, in no event shall a variance allow a 102 

single acre to be irrigated more than two days per week during Daylight Savings 103 

Time.  104 

4-05-280 Enforcement Officals. Law enforcement officials having jurisdiction in the 105 

area governed by this Ordinance are hereby authorized to enforce the 106 

provisions of this Ordinance. In addition, the City Manager may also delegate 107 

enforcement responsibility for this ordinance to other City employees.  108 

4-05-290 Penalties. There shall be no penalty for violating any provision of this 109 

ordinance unless the City Council has passed a resolution declaring a drought in 110 

compliance with section 4-05-260. When such a resolution declaring a drought 111 

is in effect, violation of any provision of this Ordinance is subject to the 112 

following penalties:  113 

(1) First violation per calendar year: Written Warning 114 

(2) Second violation per calendar year: Infraction with a fine of $50.00  115 

(3) Subsequent violation per calendar year: Infraction with a fine of $500.00 116 

A separate offense shall be deemed committed upon each day during or on 117 

which a violation occurs or continues.  118 

SECTION 2. Effective Date. This ordinance shall become effective upon publication. 119 

PASSED BY THE SYRACUSE CITY COUNCIL, STATE OF UTAH, THIS ______ 120 

DAY OF _________________, 2013. 121 

 122 

____________________________________ 123 

Jamie Nagle, Mayor 124 



 125 

_________________________________  126 

 127 

ATTEST:        SEAL 128 

Cassie Brown, City Recorder 129 



  
 

Agenda Item #4 Authorize Mayor Nagle to execute the “Addendum 

No. 4” to the Real Estate Purchase Contract with 

Irben Development 

 

Factual Summation  

• Any questions regarding this agenda item may be directed at City Attorney Will 

Carlson.  

• Please see the attached memo, executed contract, and proposed Addendum No. 4. 

  

 

COUNCIL AGENDA 
May 28, 2013 



 

 

 

          
MEMORANDUM 

 
  To: Mayor and City Council  

From: City Attorney, William J. Carlson  
Date: May 28, 2013  

  Subject: South Jensen Park Seller Financing and Water Rights 
 
 

Summary 
 
In January 2012 the City entered an agreement to sell 60.595 acres of 

land directly south of Jensen Park (“South Jensen Park”) to Irben 
Development (“Irben”). That sale had a settlement deadline of October 18, 
2013 and did not include the transfer of any water rights. Irben has asked the 
city to finance the sale over 18 months between next October and April 2015. 
Additionally, Irben plans to develop a residential subdivision on the property, 
which will require Irben to convey water rights to the City as a condition of 
subdivision approval. 

 
Seller Financing 

 
Irben has drafted the attached “Addendum No. 4” to the Real Estate 

Purchase Contract and requests the City Council’s approval. This addendum 
proposes five changes to the contract: 

1. Under the current agreement, payment of $1,969,400 is due in full at 
the settlement date, October 18, 2013. Under this Addendum, Irben 
will make a down payment “at closing” of $527,850.00. There is no 
closing date provided. 

2. Under this addendum, Irben will make three additional payments at 
six month intervals for the remaining $1,441,550.00 owed.  

3. The City’s loan to Irben will be charged 3% simple interest per year. 
Assuming the payments are on schedule, this will amount to 
approximately $43,200.00 in interest over 18 months. 

4. The land would be divided into four horizontal quarter sections 
stacked from south to north. At closing, the southernmost section 
would be transferred to Irben. Upon the first loan payment the next 
section to the north would be transferred, and so on until all 
payments are received and all land transferred. 



 

 

 

5. Irben has until September 18, 2013 to choose this City financing. By 
September 18, both parties must also agree on the form of the 
promissory note. 

 
City staff has three concerns about the proposed addendum: the 

extended time of the contract will extend the time that the city is exposed to 
risk, seller financing will place restrictions on the city’s ability to expend the 
funds as required by law, and the proposed time frame assumes a rate of home 
sales that is historically unsupported for new subdivisions in Syracuse. 

 
First, approving addendum 4 will extend the time that the city is exposed 

to risk. The City entered this real estate purchase contract seventeen months 
ago and is obligated for another five months under the current agreement. 
During that time, the city has been prevented from considering changed 
circumstances, including the improved economy and UDOT’s proposed West 
Davis Corridor route, in deciding what to do with the land. Should addendum 
4 be approved by the City Council, the City will sell land in April 2015 based on 
its estimated value in December 2011. Additionally, during the time that the 
city is financing Irben’s development, it will also be regulating the development 
as the land use authority. This could result in subdivisions being proposed 
under an ultimatum of approving a subdivision or risking the sale of the 
remaining sections of land.  

 
Second, the land in question was purchased by the city with park 

purchase impact fees and so the money from the sale must be used to purchase 
additional park lands. Under state code, the city must spend impact fees 
“within six years of their receipt.” UCA §11-36a-602(2)(a). Unspent impact fees 
plus interest should be refunded to the developer. UCA §11-36a-603. Neither 
statutes nor case law outline the time frame that applies when impact fees are 
spent and then returned to the city years later, which is what is anticipated here. 
If the time frame is six years from original receipt, then the City will be in 
violation as soon as it receives payment for South Jensen Park. If the six year 
time frame is paused while the city has expended the funds and then resumes 
when the funds are returned to the city, then it will be important the City act 
promptly to expend the Park Purchase funds. If the six year time frame restarts 
when spent impact fees are returned, then the city will have six years from the 
first payment for South Jensen Park to spend the funds.  

 
Since the city is selling a large span of park property, it would serve to 

promptly purchase a separate large span of park property. The Seller financing 
will create a span of at least eighteen months between the first payment and 



 

 

 

final payment to the city, which will require the city to either purchase multiple 
smaller land areas or to wait to purchase a large space. This delay increases the 
risk that the City would be in violation of the time restraints on expending 
impact fees. 

 
Third, while Irben anticipates using profits from the sale of properties 

on the earlier sections to fund their payments for later sections, the eighteen 
month time frame would require that homes be built at a rate that is not 
supported historically in Syracuse. This increases the risk to the city that either 
1- the sale of the later sections will fall through, or 2- Irben will return with 
requests for subsequent addendums to further extend the time before payment 
is due.  

 
Since the recession, developers have been cautious in creating 

subdivisions. For example, Trailside Park has proposed subdivision phases of 
approximately ten lots at a time, completing one phase before beginning the 
next. Since 2002, city code has required subdivisions larger than 36 lots be 
planned in subsequent phases, which prevents developers from over 
committing resources before the subdivision can be completed. Even with this 
cap, several subdivisions across the city remain unfinished, the result of 
developers who were more optimistic than the market could support. Irben 
anticipates building approximately 200 homes, or 50 per quarter section. This 
would require Irben to build and sell approximately 150 lots over the course of 
eighteen months, approximately two per week every week. Even with the 
recovering economy, Syracuse has issued building permits for 74 single family 
residences in 2013, which is about 3.5 per week across the entire city. While 
possible, Irben’s projected development is very optimistic. Should Irben fall 
short, the City will either be left holding the bag on the remainder of the 
property, or be asked by Irben to extend the city’s time commitment and risk. 

 
For the above reasons, City Staff urges extreme caution in considering 

whether to approve Addendum 4. 
 

Water Rights 
 
The City serves dual roles as the “Seller” of South Jensen Park without 

water rights and the “Land Use Authority” requiring conveyed water rights as a 
condition of subdivision approval. Irben has asked the city as Seller for help 
providing the water rights to the Land Use Authority. Accordingly, the City 
Attorney has drafted the attached Memorandum of Understanding for the 
Council’s consideration. 



 

 

 

 
Under this Memorandum of Understanding, Irben must convey water 

rights to the Land Use Authority as required by city code. This is a condition of 
subdivision approval. However, for the portion of any proposed subdivision 
that is on South Jensen Park, Irben Development may instead pay the City 
$9,836.07 per acre or part thereof. The city will not deposit any such payment 
in the general fund or park purchase impact fund, but in the Secondary Water 
Operating Fund. If Irben’s proposed subdivision were to develop less than an 
acre of South Jensen Park, it could pay $9,836.07 instead of conveying water 
rights for that portion. On the other end of the spectrum, if Irben’s proposed 
subdivision develops all of South Jensen Park, it could pay $600,000.00 instead 
of conveying water rights for South Jensen Park’s portion of the subdivision. 
Whether it pays or conveys water rights is in the discretion of Irben. 

 
This price is in accordance with the fair market value of water rights at 

Layton Canal Company, the irrigation company that supplies water to the area 
surrounding South Jensen Park. Public Works Director Robert Whiteley has 
determined that Layton Canal water shares are one acre foot per share and are 
currently valued between three and four thousand dollars per share. This MOU 
values the water rights at under $3,300 per acre foot. 

 
Mike Thayne of Irben has disputed the City’s valuation of water shares. 

He indicated that he has purchased some water shares at a lower price and that 
several decades ago, before water rights were conveyed as a condition of 
subdivision approval, water shares were valued under one hundred dollars each. 
Nevertheless, he has agreed to enter this Memorandum of Understanding at 
the price indicated.  

 
The City Council may accept, reject, or amend this Memorandum of 

Understanding. If accepted or amended, it will be forwarded to Irben 
Development for consideration. 

 
Summary & Staff Recommendation 

 
The City Council may accept, reject, or amend Addendum 4 and the 

Water Rights Memorandum of Understanding. If accepted or amended, they 
will be forwarded to Irben Development for consideration. 

 
City Staff recommends extreme caution regarding Addendum 4. 
 
###### 





























 
ADDENDUM NO.  4    

TO 
REAL ESTATE PURCHASE CONTRACT 

 
THIS IS AN [X ] ADDENDUM  [   ] COUNTEROFFER to that REAL ESTATE PURCHASE CONTRACT (the "REPC") with 
an Offer Reference Date of December 22, 2011, including all prior addenda and counteroffers, between IRBEN 
DEVELOPMENT LLC,  as Buyer, and SYRACUSE CITY CORP. as Seller, regarding the Property described in the REPC.   
The following terms are hereby incorporated as part of the REPC: 
 
1. Seller Financing:   If elected by Buyer on or before the Financing and Appraisal Deadline, Seller agrees to provide 
Buyer with Seller financing in the following form: 
 a. Buyer will provide an additional down payment at Closing of $25,000.00, for a total of down payment, including 
earnest money deposit, of $527,850.   
b. Buyer may satisfy the Loan portion of the Purchase Price by executing a Promissory Note, in favor of Seller, in the 
amount of $1,441,550, secured by a First Position Trust Deed.   
 b. The Promissory Note shall provide for three equal payments of principal and interest, due each six (6) months, 
from and after the Closing.   The entire principal balance of the Promissory Note shall be fully paid on or before April 18, 
2015, and may be prepaid in whole or in part at any time.   
 c. Interest will accrue at the rate of 3% per year, simple interest.   
 d. At Closing, one-fourth of the land to be purchased, comprising approximately the southern-most quarter section of 
the land (for purposes of this paragraph, consider the property as if divided into four horizontal quarter sections), will be 
conveyed free of the lien of the Trust Deed.  At the time of each payment, a proportionate amount of the Land (beginning 
with the quarter section immediately north of that quarter section which is conveyed free and clear at Closing, and then 
the quarter section immediately north of that, and finally the northern-most quarter section of the land) will be released 
from the Trust Deed.  .  The parties shall cooperate in good faith to reach mutual agreement on the particular location and 
boundaries of the released portions of land, on the form of the land releases, and on the reservation and priority of 
easements and rights for access and utilities as may be reasonably necessary to protect the security of the Promissory 
Note and to allow for development of the released land. As part of the release provisions, adequate access and utility 
easements shall be granted/retained for the parties. 
 e. The form of the Promissory Note and Trust Deed, release provisions and other terms and conditions must be 
agreed upon satisfactory to Buyer and Seller prior to the Financing and Appraisal Deadline. 
2. Buyer’s financing contingency will remain effective until the Financing and Appraisal Deadline. Until that date, Buyer 
may reject all financing options in Buyer’s discretion, based on terms and conditions which may be unsatisfactory to 
Buyer. If other financing is found by Buyer, Seller will no longer be obligated to provide Seller financing.   
                                 
 
To the extent the terms of this ADDENDUM modify or conflict with any provisions of the REPC, including all prior addenda 
and counteroffers, these terms shall control.  All other terms of the REPC, including all prior addenda and counteroffers, 
not modified by this ADDENDUM shall remain the same.  [X ] Seller [    ] Buyer shall have until                  [   ] AM [   ] 
PM Mountain Time on                                                    (Date), to accept the terms of this ADDENDUM in accordance with 
the provisions of Section 23 of the REPC.  Unless so accepted, the offer as set forth in this ADDENDUM shall lapse. 
 
                                 
[ X] Buyer  [   ] Seller Signature  (Date) (Time)    [   ] Buyer  [   ] Seller Signature   (Date) (Time) 
 

ACCEPTANCE/COUNTEROFFER/REJECTION 
CHECK ONE: 
[   ]  ACCEPTANCE:  [   ] Seller [   ] Buyer hereby accepts the terms of this ADDENDUM. 
 
[   ]  COUNTEROFFER:  [   ] Seller [   ] Buyer presents as a counteroffer the terms of attached ADDENDUM NO.     
. 
 
                                 
 (Signature)       (Date) (Time)    (Signature)        (Date) (Time) 
 
[   ]  REJECTION:  [   ] Seller [   ] Buyer rejects the foregoing ADDENDUM. 
 
                                 
 (Signature)       (Date) (Time)    (Signature)        (Date) (Time) 



 
THIS FORM APPROVED BY THE UTAH REAL ESTATE COMMISSION AND THE OFFICE OF THE UTAH ATTORNEY 
GENERAL, EFFECTIVE AUGUST 17, 1998.  IT REPLACES AND SUPERSEDES ALL PREVIOUSLY APPROVED 
VERSIONS OF THIS FORM. 



  
 

Agenda Item #5 Authorize Mayor Nagle to execute the 

Memorandum of Understanding with Irben 

Development 

 

Factual Summation  

• Any questions regarding this agenda item may be directed at City Attorney Will 

Carlson.  

• Please see the attached Memorandum of Understanding 

• Please see the attached memo and executed REPC.  

  

 

COUNCIL AGENDA 
May 28, 2013 



1 

MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING 

Regarding Water Rights related to Stillwater Estates 

After entering into an agreement between Syracuse, a Municipal Corporation (“Seller” and “Land Use 

Authority”), and Irben Development LLC (“Buyer”) to purchase 60.95 acres of land (“South Jensen 

Park”) which will be part of a residential development (“Stillwater Estates”), the parties have concluded 

that the best method to address a transfer of water rights related to Stillwater Estates is through this 

Memorandum of Understanding.  

A. Recitals 

1. Whereas, a reliable secondary water supply is needed by current and future residents, 

businesses and agriculture; and 

2. Whereas, In addition to selling South Jensen Park, Seller is also the Land Use Authority for the 

area; 

3. Whereas, the Land Use Authority has considered the area’s climate, temperature, precipitation, 

evapotranspiration rate, length of irrigation season, and soil type and has concluded that each 

acre of irrigable property in the area requires roughly four acre feet (4 a.f.) of secondary water 

annually during normal water years; and  

4. Whereas, based on such considerations, the Land Use Authority has calculated that during 

normal water years the nature and extent of a residential subdivision’s impact on the water 

supply is roughly proportionate to three acre feet of secondary water annually for each acre or 

part thereof; and  

5. Whereas, the Land Use Authority has approved an ordinance imposing various conditions of 

subdivision approval, including that residential developers convey sufficient water rights 

equivalent to 3 acre feet of secondary water annually for each acre or part thereof within the 

subdivision; and 

6. Whereas, Buyer wishes to develop South Jensen Park and surrounding property into Stillwater 

Estates, a residential subdivision; and 

7. Whereas, the agreement to purchase South Jensen Park excluded the transfer of any water 

rights with the land; 

B. Now, Therefore Be It Resolved That: 

1. As a condition of subdivision approval for Stillwater Estates, Buyer will comply with city code 

and convey to the Land Use Authority water rights sufficient to provide three acre feet of 

secondary water for each acre or part thereof within the proposed Stillwater Estates subdivision. 

In the event there are no owner water rights on property to be developed, Buyer shall obtain and 

convey water rights acceptable and usable by the Land Use Authority. 

2. For water rights necessary to develop 60.95 acres of Stillwater Estates referred to herein as 

South Jensen Park, Buyer may, at Buyer’s discretion, either: 



2 

a. obtain and convey water rights acceptable and usable by the Land Use Authority which 

are sufficient to provide 183 (61 x 3) acre feet of secondary water annually during normal 

water years; or 

b. pay Seller six hundred thousand dollars ($600,000), which is the fair market value of 

water rights sufficient to provide 183 acre feet of secondary water annually during 

normal water years at a price of $9,836.07 per acre or part thereof that is developed. 

The water is valued at $3,278.69 per acre foot. 

3. Should Buyer propose a subdivision that develops only a portion of the 60.95 acres of South 

Jensen Park, he will only be required to provide water shares for the portion that is developed. 

As an alternative to providing water shares for that portion, he may pay Seller $9,836.07 for 

every acre or part thereof of South Jensen Park that is developed. 

4. Should Buyer elect to pay Seller the fair market value of water rights as outlined in Sections 

B.2.b and B.3 herein, Seller shall deposit such funds into the Secondary Water Operating Fund 

of the Land Use Authority. Seller shall then affirm to the Land Use Authority that Buyer has 

conveyed water rights acceptable and usable by the City which are sufficient to provide 

necessary secondary water annually during normal water years for the portion of Stillwater 

Estates developed on South Jensen Park.  

5. Except to the extent stated herein, Buyer shall not receive subdivision approval from the Land 

Use Authority until sufficient water rights have been transferred for the secondary water needs 

of the subdivision as calculated by city code.  

C. Term of the Memorandum of Understanding 

This Memorandum of Understanding shall remain in force and effect until the earlier of either the 

Settlement Date identified in the purchase agreement for South Jensen Park, October 18, 2013, or the 

approval of the final subdivision plat by the Land Use Authority for Stillwater Estates, whichever comes 

first. Should the Settlement Date occur before final subdivision plat approval, this Memorandum of 

Understanding is null and void. 

D. Legal Authority 

Nothing in this Memorandum of Understanding or attached Real Estate Purchase Contract (Exhibit A) 

is intended to give any signatory, agency, entity or organization expansion of any existing authority. 

E. Non-Contractual Agreement 

This Memorandum of Understanding is intended to embody general principles agreed upon between 

and among the signatories but it is not intended to, and does not, create contractual relationships, 

rights, obligations, duties or remedies enforceable in a court of law by, between, or among the 

signatories or any third parties.  

F. Changed Conditions and Amendments to this Memorandum of Understanding 

Given the complexity of issues, level of detail, and changed circumstances that will undoubtedly occur 

some changes may call for renegotiation of some terms. However, a request for renegotiation does not 



3 

necessarily mean the Memorandum of Understanding will be revised. The Memorandum of 

Understanding can be changed or modified only with the expressed approval and consent of the 

signatories. Any proposal to amend this Memorandum of Understanding would be considered in the 

context of the city’s coequal roles as Seller and Land Use Authority. 

G. In witness thereof the undersigned parties have executed this Memorandum of Understanding this 

________ day of _______________, 2012. 

__________________________________________________________________________________ 

Buyer Signature  (Title)  (Date)  (Time) 

__________________________________________________________________________________ 

Seller Signature  (Title)  (Date)  (Time) 

  



4 

 

 

 

 

EXHIBIT A 

Real Estate Purchase Contract for South Jensen Park 



 

 

 

          
MEMORANDUM 

 
  To: Mayor and City Council  

From: City Attorney, William J. Carlson  
Date: May 28, 2013  

  Subject: South Jensen Park Seller Financing and Water Rights 
 
 

Summary 
 
In January 2012 the City entered an agreement to sell 60.595 acres of 

land directly south of Jensen Park (“South Jensen Park”) to Irben 
Development (“Irben”). That sale had a settlement deadline of October 18, 
2013 and did not include the transfer of any water rights. Irben has asked the 
city to finance the sale over 18 months between next October and April 2015. 
Additionally, Irben plans to develop a residential subdivision on the property, 
which will require Irben to convey water rights to the City as a condition of 
subdivision approval. 

 
Seller Financing 

 
Irben has drafted the attached “Addendum No. 4” to the Real Estate 

Purchase Contract and requests the City Council’s approval. This addendum 
proposes five changes to the contract: 

1. Under the current agreement, payment of $1,969,400 is due in full at 
the settlement date, October 18, 2013. Under this Addendum, Irben 
will make a down payment “at closing” of $527,850.00. There is no 
closing date provided. 

2. Under this addendum, Irben will make three additional payments at 
six month intervals for the remaining $1,441,550.00 owed.  

3. The City’s loan to Irben will be charged 3% simple interest per year. 
Assuming the payments are on schedule, this will amount to 
approximately $43,200.00 in interest over 18 months. 

4. The land would be divided into four horizontal quarter sections 
stacked from south to north. At closing, the southernmost section 
would be transferred to Irben. Upon the first loan payment the next 
section to the north would be transferred, and so on until all 
payments are received and all land transferred. 



 

 

 

5. Irben has until September 18, 2013 to choose this City financing. By 
September 18, both parties must also agree on the form of the 
promissory note. 

 
City staff has three concerns about the proposed addendum: the 

extended time of the contract will extend the time that the city is exposed to 
risk, seller financing will place restrictions on the city’s ability to expend the 
funds as required by law, and the proposed time frame assumes a rate of home 
sales that is historically unsupported for new subdivisions in Syracuse. 

 
First, approving addendum 4 will extend the time that the city is exposed 

to risk. The City entered this real estate purchase contract seventeen months 
ago and is obligated for another five months under the current agreement. 
During that time, the city has been prevented from considering changed 
circumstances, including the improved economy and UDOT’s proposed West 
Davis Corridor route, in deciding what to do with the land. Should addendum 
4 be approved by the City Council, the City will sell land in April 2015 based on 
its estimated value in December 2011. Additionally, during the time that the 
city is financing Irben’s development, it will also be regulating the development 
as the land use authority. This could result in subdivisions being proposed 
under an ultimatum of approving a subdivision or risking the sale of the 
remaining sections of land.  

 
Second, the land in question was purchased by the city with park 

purchase impact fees and so the money from the sale must be used to purchase 
additional park lands. Under state code, the city must spend impact fees 
“within six years of their receipt.” UCA §11-36a-602(2)(a). Unspent impact fees 
plus interest should be refunded to the developer. UCA §11-36a-603. Neither 
statutes nor case law outline the time frame that applies when impact fees are 
spent and then returned to the city years later, which is what is anticipated here. 
If the time frame is six years from original receipt, then the City will be in 
violation as soon as it receives payment for South Jensen Park. If the six year 
time frame is paused while the city has expended the funds and then resumes 
when the funds are returned to the city, then it will be important the City act 
promptly to expend the Park Purchase funds. If the six year time frame restarts 
when spent impact fees are returned, then the city will have six years from the 
first payment for South Jensen Park to spend the funds.  

 
Since the city is selling a large span of park property, it would serve to 

promptly purchase a separate large span of park property. The Seller financing 
will create a span of at least eighteen months between the first payment and 



 

 

 

final payment to the city, which will require the city to either purchase multiple 
smaller land areas or to wait to purchase a large space. This delay increases the 
risk that the City would be in violation of the time restraints on expending 
impact fees. 

 
Third, while Irben anticipates using profits from the sale of properties 

on the earlier sections to fund their payments for later sections, the eighteen 
month time frame would require that homes be built at a rate that is not 
supported historically in Syracuse. This increases the risk to the city that either 
1- the sale of the later sections will fall through, or 2- Irben will return with 
requests for subsequent addendums to further extend the time before payment 
is due.  

 
Since the recession, developers have been cautious in creating 

subdivisions. For example, Trailside Park has proposed subdivision phases of 
approximately ten lots at a time, completing one phase before beginning the 
next. Since 2002, city code has required subdivisions larger than 36 lots be 
planned in subsequent phases, which prevents developers from over 
committing resources before the subdivision can be completed. Even with this 
cap, several subdivisions across the city remain unfinished, the result of 
developers who were more optimistic than the market could support. Irben 
anticipates building approximately 200 homes, or 50 per quarter section. This 
would require Irben to build and sell approximately 150 lots over the course of 
eighteen months, approximately two per week every week. Even with the 
recovering economy, Syracuse has issued building permits for 74 single family 
residences in 2013, which is about 3.5 per week across the entire city. While 
possible, Irben’s projected development is very optimistic. Should Irben fall 
short, the City will either be left holding the bag on the remainder of the 
property, or be asked by Irben to extend the city’s time commitment and risk. 

 
For the above reasons, City Staff urges extreme caution in considering 

whether to approve Addendum 4. 
 

Water Rights 
 
The City serves dual roles as the “Seller” of South Jensen Park without 

water rights and the “Land Use Authority” requiring conveyed water rights as a 
condition of subdivision approval. Irben has asked the city as Seller for help 
providing the water rights to the Land Use Authority. Accordingly, the City 
Attorney has drafted the attached Memorandum of Understanding for the 
Council’s consideration. 



 

 

 

 
Under this Memorandum of Understanding, Irben must convey water 

rights to the Land Use Authority as required by city code. This is a condition of 
subdivision approval. However, for the portion of any proposed subdivision 
that is on South Jensen Park, Irben Development may instead pay the City 
$9,836.07 per acre or part thereof. The city will not deposit any such payment 
in the general fund or park purchase impact fund, but in the Secondary Water 
Operating Fund. If Irben’s proposed subdivision were to develop less than an 
acre of South Jensen Park, it could pay $9,836.07 instead of conveying water 
rights for that portion. On the other end of the spectrum, if Irben’s proposed 
subdivision develops all of South Jensen Park, it could pay $600,000.00 instead 
of conveying water rights for South Jensen Park’s portion of the subdivision. 
Whether it pays or conveys water rights is in the discretion of Irben. 

 
This price is in accordance with the fair market value of water rights at 

Layton Canal Company, the irrigation company that supplies water to the area 
surrounding South Jensen Park. Public Works Director Robert Whiteley has 
determined that Layton Canal water shares are one acre foot per share and are 
currently valued between three and four thousand dollars per share. This MOU 
values the water rights at under $3,300 per acre foot. 

 
Mike Thayne of Irben has disputed the City’s valuation of water shares. 

He indicated that he has purchased some water shares at a lower price and that 
several decades ago, before water rights were conveyed as a condition of 
subdivision approval, water shares were valued under one hundred dollars each. 
Nevertheless, he has agreed to enter this Memorandum of Understanding at 
the price indicated.  

 
The City Council may accept, reject, or amend this Memorandum of 

Understanding. If accepted or amended, it will be forwarded to Irben 
Development for consideration. 

 
Summary & Staff Recommendation 

 
The City Council may accept, reject, or amend Addendum 4 and the 

Water Rights Memorandum of Understanding. If accepted or amended, they 
will be forwarded to Irben Development for consideration. 

 
City Staff recommends extreme caution regarding Addendum 4. 
 
###### 




























	5-28-13 Work Session Agenda
	b.0 memo- recycling
	b.1 Letter to Mayor Nagle re recycling program
	b.2 Syracuse City Opt-Out Recycling Program Presentation
	b.3 Letters from  Legacy Jr High
	SKMBT_C45113052310531
	SKMBT_C45113052310580

	c.0 Mosquito Abatement
	d.0 memo- WDC
	e.0 memo NDSD
	e.1 NDSD Agreement Extension Memo 4.15.13
	f.0 memo Ord.13-06, Irrigation Service
	f.1 Water Conservation Memo 5.28
	f.2 Secondary Water User Notice
	f.3 Ordinance No.13-06  St. Johns River for 5.28
	g.0 memo- Discuss items 4 and 5
	g.1 South Jensen Park Memo 5.28
	g.2 South Jensen Park finalized REPC
	g.3 Revised 4th Addendum to REPC
	g.4 Water Shares MOU 5.2.13
	h.0 CC Memo General Plan Amendments
	h.1 Ninigret Proposed GP Amendments
	h.2 PC Recomendation GP Map Changes
	i.0 memo- RDA Detail Discussion
	i.1 RDA Budget Discussion Presentation
	i.2 RDA Maps
	i.3 RDA - Estimated FY2013 ending numbers
	i.4 1700 South RDA - Future Year Budget Estimates
	i.5 750 West RDA - Future Year Budget Estimates
	j.0 Factual Summation Utility Rate Discussion
	j.1 Utility Rate Discussion - May 2013
	j.2 Secondary Water Fund Detail
	j.3 Storm Water Fund Detail
	j.4 Culinary Water Fund Detail
	j.5 Sewer Fund Detail
	j.6 Garbage Fund Detail
	j.7 North Davis Sewer District Fee Increases
	j.8 Utilty Rate Comparison - FY2014 Budget
	k.0 memo- budget discussion
	5-28-13 Special Meeting Agenda
	2.0 memo- Minutes
	2.a 05-14-13 draft work session mintes
	2.b 05-14-13 draft SPECIAL meeting minutes
	3.0 memo Ord.13-06, Irrigation Service
	3.1 Water Conservation Memo 5.28
	3.2 Secondary Water User Notice
	3.3 Ordinance No.13-06  St. Johns River for 5.28
	4.0 memo
	4.1 South Jensen Park Memo 5.28
	4.2 South Jensen Park finalized REPC
	4.3 Revised 4th Addendum to REPC
	5.0 memo- Memorandum of Understanding
	5.1 Water Shares MOU 5.2.13
	5.2 South Jensen Park Memo 5.28
	5.3 South Jensen Park finalized REPC
	6.0 CC Memo General Plan Amendments
	6.1 Ninigret Proposed GP Amendments
	6.2 PC Recomendation GP Map Changes
	6.3 GP Amendment Letters



